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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighth Annuai General Meeting of the Members of Apcotex
Soiutions India Private Limited (Formerly known ag OMNOVA Soiutions India Private Limited) will be
ICE o i

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

L5

PLEASE REPLY TO

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited statement of Accounts together with the Directors’
Report and the Auditors' Report thereon for the period ended 30™ November, 2015,

To appoint M/s, Kalyaniwalia & Mistry, Chartered Accountants Firm (FRN 104607w) Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 in place of M/s, SRBC
& Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants the retiring statutory auditor of the company, who hold the
office till the conciusion of ensuing Annyal General Meeting.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
== AL BUSINESS

To consider appointment of Mr. Abhiraj Choksey (DIN: 000021 20 ) as a Director and for
this to consider and if thought fit, to Pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

of directors as an additional director of the company with effect from 5™ February, 2016 under
section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom
the company has received a notice in writing from a member under section 160 signifying his
intention to Propose the candidature of Mr. Abhiraj Choksey for the office of director be and is
hereby appointed as a director of the company,

To consider appointment of Mr, Anand V Kumashij holding DIN: 07351031 as a Director
O consider and if thought fit, to Pass with or without modification, the
following resotution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To consider appointment of Mr. Yashodhan B, Gadgil holding DIN: 07353169 as a
Director and for this to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification,
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil holding DIN: 07353169 who was aPpointed by
the Board of directors as an additional director of the company with effect from 5™ February,
2016 under section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom
the company has received a notice in writing from a member under section 160 signifying his
intention to Propose the candidature of Mr. Yashodhan B, Gadgil for the office of director be
and is hereby appointed as a director of the company,
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6. To consider appointment of Smt. Priyamvada A Bhumkar (DIN 00726138) as a Director
and for this to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Smt. Priyamvada A Bhumkar (DIN 00726138), who was appointed by the
Board of directors as an additional director of the company with effect from 22" February,
2016 under section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom
the company has received a notice in writing from a member under section 160 signifying his
intention to propose the candidature of Smt. Priyamvada A Bhumkar for the office of director
be and is hereby appointed as an independent director of the company.

7. To consider appointment of Mr. Kaushikbhai Patel (PAN: ) as a Manager and for this to
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, and 203, read with Schedule
V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rutes, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Shri
Kaushikbhai Patel be and is hereby designated as Key Managerial Personnel viz. Manager of
the Company, for a period of 1 year, effective from 22nd February 2016, on the same terms
and conditions of the existing employment with the Company , with liberty to the Board of
Directors, to alter and vary such terms and conditions of the said appointment, including
remuneration within, the maximum limits prescribed under provisions of the Companies, Act
2013".

BY ORDER CF THE BOARD

For Apcotex Solutions India Private limited
(Formerly known as Omnova Solutions India Private Limited)

Date: 31* March, 2016 ! P
(\}‘mrff 7

; BINAY YADAV
&) Company Secretary
Registered Office:
Plot no. 311,
MIDC Industrial Area,
Taloja - 410 208,
Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra
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Notes:

1. The relevant statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
hereto,

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote, instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of the company.

The instrument appointing a proxy should be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than forty eight (48) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behaif of the members not exceeding fifty in number and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights.

A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
vating rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or shareholder

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company,
a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen
signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the .
meeting.

5. Relevant documents referred in the accompanying Nofice and in the Explanatory Statements
are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered Office on all working
days of the Company, during the business hours upto the date of the Meeting

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

For Apcotex Solutions India Private limited
{Formerly known as Omnova Solutions India Private Limited)

Date: 31* March, 2016 (\%ﬂ‘ﬂ 1 7,/\&'/

BINAY YADAV
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Plot no. 31,

MIDC Industrial Area,
Taloja - 410 208,

Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

item No.34 &5

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 05/02/2016 have appointed the following Additional
Directors of the Company pursuant to provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act:

1. Mr. Abhiraj Choksey
2. Mr. Anand V Kumashi
3. Mr. Yashedhan B, Gadgil

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Abhiraj Choksey, Mr. Anand V Kumashi &
Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil would hold the office upto the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The Company has received a notice in writing from a member along-with the deposit of
requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Abhiraj Choksey, Mr.
Anand V Kumashi & Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil for the office of the Director of the Company.

Mr. Abhiraj Choksey, Mr. Anand V Kumashi & Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil are not disqualified from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a
Director.

Mr. Abhiraj Choksey, Mr. Anand V Kumashi & Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil possess appropriate skills,
experience and knowledge, inter alia in the field of finance, business strategy etc.

Considering the vast experience and knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company that Mr.
Abhiraj Choksey, Mr. Anand V Kumashi & Mr. Yashodhan B. Gadgil are appointed as Director.

None of the directors are interested in the said resolutions..

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 to 5 of the Nofice for approval
by the shareholders.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 22/02/2016 have appointed Mrs. Priyamvada A.
Bhumkar as Additional Director of the Company pursuant to provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act.

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mrs. Priyamvada A. Bhumkar would hold the
office upto the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a
notice in writing from a member along-with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the
Act proposing the candidature of Mrs. Priyamvada A. Bhumkar for the office of the Director of the
Company.

Mrs. Priyamvada A. Bhumkar is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has given her consent o act as a Director.

Mrs. Priyamvada A. Bhumkar possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge, inter alia in the
field of finance, business strategy etc,

Considering the vast experience and knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company that Mrs.
Priyamvada A. Bhumkar is appointed as an Independent Director.

None of the director is interested in the said resolutions.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by
the shareholders,

PLEASE REPLY TO
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item No. 7

On the recommendation of the Board of Director and subject to approval of the Members, the Board
of Directors of the company at its meeting held on 22™ February 2016 have appointed Mr.
Kaushikbhai Patel as Manager under section 196, 197 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 or other
applicable provisions, if any, for a period of 1Year (One Year) with immediate effect.

The directors after considering the qualification, experience, expertise of Mr. Kaushikbhai Patel and
having regard to the provisions in respect of managerial remuneration of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules made thereunder, thought it is justified to appoint him as Manager and the remuneration
payable to him as mutually agreed.

in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, Mr. Kaushikbhai Patel shall be
paid remuneration by way of salary and perquisites in compliance with schedule V of Companies Act,
2013, the companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 and
other applicable provisions, if any.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions at Item No, 7 of the notice for your approval.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

For Apcotex Solutions India Private limited
{Formerly known as Omnova Solutions India Private Limited)

Date: 31 March, 2016 VV\W
Tinr1

BINAY YADAV
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

) Plot no. 311,

y MIDC Industrial Area,
Taloja - 410 208,
Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra
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To,

The Members of

Apcotex Solutions India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Omnova Solutions India Private Limited)

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the 8" Annual Report together with the Audited
Statement of Accounts of your Company for the period ended November 30, 2015.

A,

O

C

D

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS
REGD. OFFICE

OFFICE ADDRESS

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars

30 November, 2015
{Rs.)

30 November, 2014

(Rs.)

Revenue from Operations

1,83,23,85,387

2,07,44,80,214

Other Income

3,88,27,838

6,15,36,347

' Total Revenue

1,87,12,13,225

2,13,60,16,561

Less:Expenses 1,97,44,71,257 2,22,68,66,643
(Loss) before tax {10,32,58,032) {9,08,50,083)
Current Tax - -
Loss for the year (1,03,258,032) {9.08,50,083)

Balance Brought forward from previous year

(42,47,56,392)

Balance carried forward

(33,39,06,309)

(52,80,14,425)

(42,47,56,392)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW/REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
During the period ended 30th November, 2015 your company has incurred a loss of Rs.
10,32,58,032, after impairing fixed assets of Rs. 5,39,71,625.00/- which were not in use and after
depreciation of Rs 7,24,41,920.00/- and earned cash profit of Rs.2,31,55,513.00/- .

DIVIDEND

in view of the carry forward losses, your Directors regret their inability to recommend any

dividend.

RESERVE

As the company incurred loss, no amount was transferred to the reserves for the period ended

November 30, 2015

* Village Dungr, Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Gujral, India. Tel  +91-02643-270442-45
: Plot No.3/1, MIDC Industnal Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra. India

Tel. : (022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052

: The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st flaor, Phoenix Market City Mall, 15 LBS Marg. Kurla (W),Mumbai - 400070 India

Tel.: (022) 61680 2004/5, 3340.2004/5,
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698




o
%

apcotex solutions india pvt. 1td.
{a wholly owned subsidiary of apcolex industries td. }

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS
REGD. OFFICE
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CHANGE IN MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Apcotex Industries Ltd acquired 100% shareholding of the company from Omnova Solutions India
Private Limited on 5" February, 2016. The company ceased to be a wholly owned subsidiary of
Omnova Solutions India France Holding SAS, France and become wholly owned subsidiary of
Apcotex Industries Limited with effect from 05/02/20186.

CHANGE OF NAME
Subsequent to change in management of the company, the name of the company has been
changed o Apcotex Solutions India Private Limited with effect from 05/03/2016.

Disclosure under companies act, 2013

1.

Energy, technology & foreign exchange.

Information sought under the provisions of section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding of conservation of
energy, technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo are given in
Annexure A, forming part of this report.

Extract of annual return
The details forming part of the extract of the annual return is enclosed in Annexure B.

Changes in share capital

The company had made a rights issue of 40,89,272 equity shares to the existing
shareholders of the Company at a premium of Rs. 52.30 per share on 14™ September, 2015,
resulting into increased in paid up capital from 120,100,000 to Rs. 16,09,92,720.

During the Financial year ended 30-11-2015 the company has not issued or allotted any
shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares or Employees stock options.

Number of board meeting.
During the period ended under review, the Board of Directors met 5 (five) times.

Comments on Auditors Report.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks on disclaimers made by
Statutory Auditors, in their report.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of the Company
during the year under review.

Related Party Transactions

All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially significant
related party fransactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel etc., which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company
at large.
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The particulars of Contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1), read with Rule 15 of The Companies {Meetings of Board and Its Powers) Rules 2014
is appended to this report in prescribed Form AQC 2 as Annexure C .

7. Material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the company.
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the period end 30™ November 2015 to which this financial statement
relates and the date of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is not falling under the criteria as mentioned in Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 which specifies the requirement of forming the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Directors responsibility statement

In terms of Section {134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,

b. The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
or loss of the Company for the year under review

c. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d. The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

Disclosure in terms of the sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention,
prohibition and redressal act, 2013

The company takes all necessary measures to ensure a harassment free workplace and has
instituted an internal complaints committee for redressal of complaints and to prevent sexual
harassment. No Complaints relating to sexual harassment were received during the year.

Fixed Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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Insurance

All insurable assets of the company including inventories, buildings, plant and machinery etc., as
also liability under legislative enactments, are insured on reinstatement basis after due valuation
of assets by an external agency.

Ecology and safety

Company ensures safe, healthy and eco-friendly environment at its plant and surrounding area.
Company continually works towards identification and reduction of risks and prevention of
pollution at its plant and its surroundings.

Personnel

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Rule 5(2)
of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is not
applicable to the company as there are no employees drawing remuneration exceeding the
prescribed limit.

Directors and key managerial personnel

Appointment

Mr. Paul Fredric Desantis (DIN: 07018467) appointed as director on 29™ May, 2015 on the
Board.

Cessation

Mr. Anupkumar Srivastava (DIN: 03122445) the director of the company, resigned from the office
of director with effect from 31* May, 2015 after serving the board for a period of about 4 years.
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for his service and contribution made
during his tenure as a director.

AFTER CHANGE IN MANAGEMENT

Apcotex Industries Ltd acquired 100% shareholding of the company from Omnova Solutions India
Private Limited on 5™ February, 2016, and nominated following directors on the board:

Abbhiraj Choksey (DIN: 00002120), Yashodhan Gadgil (DIN: 07353169) and Anand Kumashi
(DIN: 07351031) appointed as additional director with immediate effect.

The Board is also appointed Ms. Priyamvada Ashesh Bhumkar (DIN: 00726138) as an
additional director on the Board in their Board meeting held on 22/02/2016.

The following directors resigned with effect from 5" February, 2016:

Mr. Deepak Birje (DIN: 00694998), Mr. Kevin Michael McMullen (DIN: 03344618), Mr. Paul
Fredric Desantis (DIN: 07018467) and Andrew Thomas Higgin (DIN: 06632051) directors of
the company, resigned from the office of director with immediate effect. Your Directors wish to
place on record their appreciation for their service and contribution made during their tenure as a
director.
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Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) under section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013

Kaushikbhai Patel (PAN: ADOPP4138P) designated as Manager of the company with effect
from 22/02/2016.

Dinesh Bale (PAN: ABFPB4615G) designated as Chief Financial Officer of the company with
effect from 22/022018.

Binay Yadav (PAN: AKTPY1876B) appointed as Company Secretary of the company with effect
from 22/02/2016.

Auditors

Your Directors have recommended appointment of M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry, Chartered
Accountants Firm (FRN 104607W), Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2015-16 in place of M/s. SRBC & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants the retiring
statutory auditor of the company, who hold the office till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Further, proposed auditor have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept office, if
appointed

Development of human resourcefindustrial relation
The company continuously monitors its Human Resource requirement to ensure that it has
adequate human skills commensurate with its needs.

Cordial relations exist between the employees at various levels and the management.

To upgrade human skills and improve their efficiencies, the company continuously organizes
workshops on different management areas and also deputes employees to external workshops
and seminars.

Miscellaneous

1. Change in the nature of business, if any.
The company has not change its nature of business for the year under review.

2. Particulars of Loans, guarantee or investments:
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements

3. Significant And Material Orders Passed By The Regulators Or Courts
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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N. Acknowledgement
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to Standard

Chartered Bank, various departments of State / Central Government and local authorities for their
continued guidance and support.

We would also like to place on record our sincere appreciation for the commitment, dedication
and hard work put in by every member of the Apcotex family. To all shareholders, we are deeply
grateful for the confidence and faith that you have always reposed in us,

The accompanying Annexure A to C is an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

] A ~1

\SX\N\’\ _ . )
Place: Navi Mumbai Abhiraj Choksey
Date: 25/03/2016 Chairman

DIN: 00002120
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Tel : {022) 6180 2004/5, 3340 2004/5

CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698
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ANNEXURE A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND QUTGO ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and
outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

A(Q')Conservation of Energy : Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at all
levels. All efforts are made to conserve and optimize use of
energy with continuous monitoring, improvement in batch cycle
time and improved operations.

(B) Technology absorption No new technology has been acquired during the year.
Upgradation of present technology is a continuous process,
implemented and adapted by the Company through innovation.
Efforts are made to reduce batch cycle time and improve
operational efficiency.

No technology import has been made in the recent past.

Expenditure incurred on R&D during the period ended 30" November, 2015

Particulars 30/11/2015 30/11/2014
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Capital 9,06,066 25,22 401
Recurring 2,93,894 447,626
Total 11,99,960 25,70,027
Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of Total 0.05787% 0.1292%
Rayenue e ¥
oreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo
Earning (Rs.) 8,05,44,298 10,56,28,058
| Outgo  (Rs.) _ 4,92,09,628 5,60,42,229
PLEASE REPLY TO
PLANT ADDRESS : Village Dungri, Taluka-Vaka, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Guyrat. India. Tel - +91-02643-270442.45
REGD. OFFICE : Plot No.3/1, MIDC Industnal Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist Raigad, Maharashtra India.
Tel. {022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052
OFFICE ADDRESS : The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mail, 15 LBS Marg. Kurla {(W),Mumbai - 400070. India

Tel.: (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698
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(a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries Itd )

ANNEXURE B TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the period ended on 30" November 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN U24296MH2007PTC174698
i) Registration Date 04/10/2007
i) Name of The Company Apcotex Solution India Private limited
( ) (Formerly known as Omnova Solutions India
: Private Limited)
iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non Government
company
v} Address of the Registered Office and | Plot no 3/1, MIDC Industrial area, Taloja, Raigad,
contact delails . Maharashitra
Tel no.:022-27403500
Upto 23™ February 2016
707/708 Meadows Sahar Plaza Complex, Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri-east, Mumbai — 400050,
vi} Whether listed Company NO
vii) Name, address and conlact details of | Not Applicable
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.
O
Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:-
Sl. No. Name and NIC Code of % to total
Description of the Product/ turnover of the
main products/ service company
This AT services
1 Manufacture of 40025900 80
Nitrile Rubber
2 Manufacture of 20132 20
| synthetic rubber o
PLEASE REPLY TO
PLANT ADDRESS : Vilage Dungri, Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - BharuchGujrat, india. Tel - +91-02643-270442-45
REGD. OFFICE : Plot No.3/%, MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra. India
Tel. : (022) 27403500 Fax : (022} 2741 2052
OFFICE ADDRESS : The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Markel City Mall, 15 LBS Marg, Kurla(W).Mumbai -~ 400070. India

Tel.: (022) 6380 2004/5, 3340 2004/5,
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC174638
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apcotex solutions india pvt. 1td.

(@ wholly ownif! YRR SLR%S B UL BME” dussipIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. | NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
NO OF THE SUBSIDIARY/ shares Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE held
1 Omnova Solutions India Holding 100
France Holding SAS. Company

V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%o

Change
during
the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Totai
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individualf HUF

b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt (5)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks/FI

f} Any Other..

Sub-total (A) (1):-

(2) Foreign

a} NRIs - Individuals

b} Other - Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

1,20,10,000

1,20,10,000

100

1,60,99,272

1,60,99,272

100

34

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (2):-

1,20,10,000

1,20,10,000

100

1,60,99,272

1.60,99,272

100

34

Promoter (A) =
(AYHAN 2)

Total sharehalding of

1.20,10,000

1,20,10,000

100

1,60,99,272

1,60,99,272

100

34

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

k) Banks/FI

¢} Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance Companies

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS
AEGD. OFFICE

Tel. : (022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052

OFFICE ADDRESS

Tel.: {022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698

: Village Dungn. Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Gujrat, India. Tel  +91-02643-270442-45
: Piot No.3/1. MIDC Industnial Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra India

: The Centrtum, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mali,15 LBS Marg. Kurla (W),Mumbai - 400070. India
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apcotex solutions india pvt. 1td.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries Itd.)

g} Flis

h} Foreign Venture Capital
Funds

i} Others (specify) —
Foreign banks

Sub-total (B){1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
apital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians
{Repat)

Non Resident Indians
{Non Repat}

Clearing Member

Directors/Relatives of
Director

Trusts

Sub-total {(B){2):-

Total Public
Shareholding (B} =
(B)(1) + (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

@urand Total (A+B+C})

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS
REGD. OFFICE

1,20,10,000

1,20,10,000

100

1,60,99,272

1.60.99,272

00|

Tel. : {022) 27403500 Fax : (022} 2741 2052

OFFICE ADDRESS

Tel.: (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5,
CIN NO. U24236MH2007PTC174698

: Village Dungri, Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Guyral, india. Tel . +91-02643.270442-45
: Plot No.3/1, MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad. Maharashtra. India

: The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Malt,15 LBS Marg. Kurla (W),Mumbai - 400070 India.
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apcotex solutions india pvt. 1td.
{a wholly owned subsidiary ofapcotex industries Itd )

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

P L - —— -
Shareholding at the beginning of the
ear o I Shareholding at the end of the year |
| %of % of % of
i Shares total Shares
| % of total | Pledged! Shares Pledged/ % change in
| Shares of | encumber of the encumber | shareholding
; the ed to total | No. of compan | ed to total | during the
| Sl No. Shareholder's Name No. of Shares | company | shares Shares y shares year
Omnova Solutions India
1| FranceHoldingSAS | "20710000 | 90909 | . | 18089271 | 990909 | . | 34
@ Omnova Solutions SAS 4 1
2 | France 00001 | = - | 0.00001 < 0.00

(i) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) -

There has been no change in shareholding of the promoter of the company.

' Srno. | Name of the promoter with change in | Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding during
share holdings beginning of the year the year
No. of | % of total | No. of | % of total shares of
shares shares of | shares the company
the
company
NOT APPLICABLE.
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NOT APPLICABLE
Sr.no. [For Each of the Top 10* Shareholding at the | Cumulative Share-holding c-ItTriEgm
Shareholders beginning of the year the year
No. of | % of total | No. of | % of total shares of
shares shares of | shares the company
the
company
| |
| |
PLEASE REPLY TO
PLANT ADDRESS : Village Dungri, Taluka-Vaha, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Guyrat, India. Te! . +91-02643-270442-45
REGD. OFFICE : Plot No.3/1, MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra_ India,
Tel. - (022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052
OFFICE ADDRESS : The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mall, 15 LBS Marg. Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400070. India

Tel.: (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340,2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698
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(a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries Itd }

(v) Shareholgli_ng of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. No. | For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Reason for change
beginning of the year Shareholding during
theyear
i No. of | % of total No. of | % of total
. shares | shares of the shares | shares of
company the
. company
| 1 | Deepak Birje 0 0 0 0 -
| Anupkumar Srivastava resigned w.e.f 0 o/ NA|  NAT Ees@ned |
! 31/03/2015
| 3| Kevin Michael McMuller 0 0 0 0 -
!r 4 | Andrew Thomas Higgin 0 0 0] 0 -
E 5 | Paul Fredric DeSantis appointed w.e.f 0 0 o 0 .
@ 29/05/2015 3
V. [INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

fc_)[ Egyment

Secured Loans

excluding Unsecured Deposits

deposits {Rs.In  Loans (Rs.In | (Rs.In Total Indebtedness (Rs. In
Particulars Lacs) Lacs) Lacs) Lacs)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 5
year '
i) Principal Amount - 21,07,74,235 - 21,07,74,235

ii) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

| Total (i+iiviii)

hange in Indebtedness during the financial
sear

¢

- Addition - - | - -

* Reduction - | 11,25,17,284 | - 11,25,17,284
I

Net Change - 111,25,17,284 | : 11,25,17,284

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

-| 9,82,56,951

9,82,56,951

| ii) Interest due but not paid

:r iii) Interest accrued but not due

|
|
|

|

| Total {i+ii+iii)

| H
T
I

9,82,56,951

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS
REGD. OFFICE

Tel. : (022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052

OFFICE ADDRESS

Tel. (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC174693

: Vitlage Dungn. Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Guyral, india Tel +91-02643.270442-45
: Plot No.3A1, MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja - 410 208, Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra. India.

: The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mall, 15 LBS Marg. Kurla (W), Mumba) - 400070. India
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(a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries itd )

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager:
Sl no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of wholes Name of whole time Total Amount
time Director Director
Deepak Birje Anupkumar Srivastava |
| 1. Gross salary 49,53,545 14,24,883 63,78,428 '
i (a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the I
Income-tax Act, 1961 (Rs. In
Lacs) |
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 (Rs. In
Lacs)
{c)y Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
; 1961 (Rs. In Lacs) |
@2 Stock Option - -
3. Sweat Equity = -
4. Commission e C I
- as % of profit |
- others, specify...
5, Others, please specify - - :
Total 49,53,545 14,24 883 63,78,428
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sr. no. Name of Director Particulars of Remuneration
Fees for attending | Commission Others Please Total
Board/ committee Specify

Meetings

Non-Executive Director

PAUL FREDRIC DESANTIS

ANDREW THOMAS HIGGIN

KEVIN MICHAEL MCMULLEN

Total Managerial Remuneration

PLEASE REPLY TO

PLANT ADDRESS

REGD. OFFICE

OFFICE ADDRESS

: Village Dungri, Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-393135, Dist ~ Bharuch, Guyrat, India. Tel  +91-02643-270442-45

: Plot No.3/1, MIDC Industnal Area, Taloja - 410 208,Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra. India
Tel. - {022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052

Tel.: (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174628

: The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mali, 15 LBS Marg. Kurta {W).Mumbai - 400070. India
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apcotex solutions india pvt. ltd.
{a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries Ita. )

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD — NOT APPLICABLE

Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
[ Total
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17{1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 (Rs. In Lacs)
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 (Rs. In Lacs)
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under L
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, ,
@ 1961 (Rs. In Lacs) .
2. Stock Option -
Sk Sweat Equity o g
4, Commission =
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify -
Total
VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section Brief ' Details of Authority | Appeal made, if any (give
of the | Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ Details)
Compan | Punishment/ COURT]
ies Act Compoundin
g fees
l imposed
3 A. COMPANY ]
Penally NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL I
Punishment NIL |
Compounding NIL e ‘
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
| Compounding NIL f
| }
PLEASE REPLY TO
PLANT ADDRESS : Village Dungn. Taluka-Valia, Ankleshwar-383135. Dist - Bharuch, Gural. India. Tel  +91-02643-270442-45
REGD. OFFICE : Plot No.3/1. MIDC Industrial Area, Taloja - 410 208, Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra. India
Tel. | (022) 27403500 Fax : (022) 2741 2052
OFFICE ADDRESS : The Centnium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mali,15 LBS Marg, Kurla (W),Mumbai - 400070 India.

Tel.: (022) 6160 2004/5, 3340.2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC174698
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{a wholly owned subsidiary of apcotex industries Itd. )

ANNEXURE C TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.

Sl. ! Name (s} of | Nature  of | Duration Salient terms of | Justification Date  of | Amount | Date on which |
Noi_ the related | contracts/arr | of the | the contracts or | for  entering | approval paid as | the special
party & | angementsft | oyniracts/ | @Mrangements or | into such | by the | advance | resolution was
nature of | ransaction transaction contracts  or | Board s, ifany | passed in
: . arrangem | . - .

relationship including the | arrangements General meeting
entsftrans | \a)ue, if any or as required |
action transactions’ under first |
proviso to

section 188

NOT APPLICABLE

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis.

Sr.No. | Names(s) of the | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Dates (S) of | Amount paid |
related party and | contracts/arrangeme | contracts/arrang | contracts or | approval by | as advances
nature of | nis/transactions ements/transacti | arrangements or | the Board if | ifany
refationship on transactions any

including the value,
if any.
1 Omnova Solutions | WAN service charges | Dec-14 to Nov- | 55,12,594/- - -
O Inc. Travel exp. 15
' 48,130/-

2 Omnova Solutions | Interest &  other | Dec-14 to Nov- | Nil 15.04.15 -
India France | payable 15
Holding SAS :

3 Omnova Solutions | Travel expense & | Dec-14 to Nov- | 22,49,636 15.04.15
SAS other expenses 15

4 Omnova Solutions | Management service | Dec-14 to Nov- | 1,13,74,624/- 15.04.15
France  Holding | charges 15
SAS

5 Omnova Bank fees accrued Dec-14 to Nov- | 27,02,692 15.04.15
Solutions 15
International SAS

PLEASE REPLY TO
PLANT ADDRESS : Village Dungri, Taluka-Valia, Anklgshwar-393135, Dist - Bharuch, Guyrat. India Tel +91-02643-270442-45
REGD. OFFICE : Plot No.31. MIDC Industnial Area, Taloja - 410 208, Dist. Aaigad, Maharashtra. India
Tel. : (022) 27403500 Fax : (022} 2741 2052
OFFICE ADDRESS : The Centrium, Unit No. 3, 1st floor, Phoenix Market City Mall,15 LBS Marg, Kurla (W),Mumbai - 400070 India.

Tel.” (022) 6180 2004/5, 3340.2004/5.
CIN NO. U24296MH2007PTC 174698
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Chartered Accountants Anmedaban-380 015, India

Tel : +91 79 6608 3800
Fax 1 +91 79 6608 3900

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Apcotex Solutions India Private Limited (formerly known as OMNOVA
Solutions India Private Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apecotex Solutions India Private Limited
(formerly known as OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at November 30, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be incfuded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aunditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the porpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the effectiveness of such controls, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

SREBCE&COLLP a Limited Lisbility Partnership with LLP Identily Mo, AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'C'. 3rd Floor, Kalkats-700 016
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Auditors’ report for the year ended November 30, 2015
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted m India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at November 30, 2015, its loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Repert on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on November 30, 2015,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
November 30, 20135, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2} of the Aet;

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rufe 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 6 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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ili. There were no amounts which were required to be fransferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC&COLEP
/ixggrea}Accoumants
Flrr&ﬁ Registration Number: 324982F

e i G

Partner
Membership N’i{mber 93669

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: March 25, 2016
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

of cur report of even date
Re: Apcotex Selutions India Private Limited

1)

i)

iii)

vi)

a)

b)

a)

b)

The Company has mamtained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in two years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Material discrepancies noticed on such verification were properly dealt with in the books of
account.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such physical verification is reasonable. Inventories lying with
outside parties have been confirmed by them as at year end.

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.
The Company is maintaining proper records of imventory. Discrepancies noted on physical
verification of inventories were not material, and have been properly dealt with in the books
of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause (iii) (a) & (b) of the Order arc not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods.
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing
failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control system of the Company in respect
of these areas.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of Synthetic rubber which
primary includes Styrene butadiene rubber (SBR), Nitrile butadiene rubber (NRB) and Latex,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made

= and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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vii} a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undispuied statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, value added taxes, sales tax, service tax,
customs duty, excise duty cess and other material statutory dues. The provisions of
employees’ state insurance and wealth tax are not applicable to the Company.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, value added taxes, service tax, sales-
tax, customs duty, excise duty and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢} According to records of the Company, dues outstanding of income tax, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of | Nature of Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
the statute dues (Rs) the amount is pending
relates
Income Tax | Income 4,966,004 2009-10 The Commissioner of
Act, 1961 | tax 14,510,503 2010-11 Income Tax (Appeals)

d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder.

viiif)  The Company’s accumulated lesses at the end of the financial vear are less than fifty per cent
of its net worth. The Company has not incurred cash loss during the year. In the immediately
preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash loss.

ix) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders as
mentioned below:

Nature of pavment Bue date Date of Payment | Amount )

Interest on debentures December 31, 2010 07-Cct-15 2.72,21,918
Interest on debentures March 31, 2011 07-Oct-15 2,66,30,137
Interest on debentures June 38, 2011 07-Oct-15 2.,69.26.027
Interest on debentures September 30, 2011 07-Oct-15 2,72,21,918
Interest on debentures December 31, 2011 07-Oct-15 202.21,918
Tnterest on debentures | March 31, 2012 07-Oct-15 2,69,26,028
Interest on debentures June 30,2012 07-0ct-15 2,65,26,028
Interest on debentures September 30, 2012 07-Oct-15 2,72,21,918
Interest on debentures December 31, 2012 07-Oct-15 2,72,21,918
Interest on debentures February 07, 2013 07-Oct-15 1,12,43.833
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The Company has not defauvited in repayment of dues to a bank. The Company did not have
any outstanding dues in respect of a financial institution during the year.

X) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

xi) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the vear.

xii) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

For SRBC & COLLP

Char‘te}:gd%Accountants

ICA}fF iy Registration Number: 324982
_f =

per Santosh A%/gjwal
Partner L
Membership Number: 93669

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: March 25, 2016




Apcotex Solutiens Iadia Priva@Liiﬁited (Formerly OMNOVA Selutions Tndia Private Limited}

Balance Sheet as at 30 November 2015

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated}

Mates 30 November 2013 30 November 2814
x ¥
Equity and liabifities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 160,992,720 120,100,000
Reserves and surplos 4 765.854.501 655,243,607
976,847,221 775,343,607
Mon-current liahilities
Other long-term liabilities 3 750,000 275,674
Long-term provisions 6 8,382,264 6,748,845
9 132,264 7,024,519
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 98,256,951 210,774,235
Trade payables 8
- Dues to Micro and small enterprises 6,065,246 7.457,709
- Others 150,246,715 213,125,994
Other current liabilities 9 70.820.976 365,098,092
Short-term provisions 6 28,744,194 23,403,600
354,134,082 819,859,630
TOTAL 1,290,113,567 1,602,227,756
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 346,017.28% 466,180,289
Intangible assels 11 953,604 1,974,284
Capital work-in-progress - 2,003,338
Non-current investments 12 2,492,510 2,492,510
Loans and advances 20.201,172 41,702,535
378,664,578 514,352,936
Current assels
[nyentorics 14 257,486,250 305,242,083
Trade receivables 15 400,431,916 474,536,829
Cash and bank balances 16 63,564,744 74,604,471
Loan and advances 13 41,388.219 54,553,238
Other current assets 17 148,577,863 178,938,179
911,448,992 1,087,874,800
TOTAL 1,290,113,567 1,602,227,756
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our reporl ol even dale

For SRBC & CoLLP
IFirm Refisiation No: 3240821
Chartgred Accountants

et b
per Santosh Agparwal
Pariner /
Membership No.; 93669

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: March 25, 2016
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Ancotex Solutions India Privatgl.imited (Formerly OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 30 November 2015

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees. unless otherwise stated)

Maotes 30 November 2015 30 November 2014
£ z

Continnipg cperations
Income
Revenue from operations (gross) I8 2,042,196,161 2,258,083,027
Less; excise duty 209,810,774 236,282,046
Revenue from operations (zet) 1,832,385,387 2,061,800,981
Other income 19 38,827,838 58,500,124
Total revenue 1,871,213,225 2,126,307,1065
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 20 1,118,846,740 1,401,789.290
Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 21 52,685,013 56,718,463
Employee benefils expense 22 151,252,037 123,700,578
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 72,441,920 58,963,170
Impairment loss on [ixed assels 42 33,971,625 -
Finance costs 24 25,672,755 35,680,413
Other expenscs 25 499,601,167 534,303,275
Taotal 1,974,471,257 2,211,157,18%
{1.0ss) before tax (103,258,032 (90,850,084)
Tax expenses - -
(Loss) for the year (103,258,032} (90,850,084)
Basic and diluted Loss per equity share [nominal value per
share 210 (30 November 2014: Z£10)] 26 (8.0) (7.6)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For SRB C & CoLLLP
Firnvf{/;%isu‘ation No: 3249821
Chasteresl Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Apcotex Sclutions India Private Limited

(Formerly OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited)

e |
{
\ o drind’ A
»f%ﬂﬁﬂé@éﬁ e y ﬁﬁ %i’ g ! 3
per Santosh {%garwal nand Kumashi Abhiraj Choksey
Partner ;‘) Ji Director Director
Memberslnp‘f\lo.: 93669 E N w{:}g""’
o b T s e LE T
%ﬂ _{:}\ wa L q;; LA % :

Dinesh Bale

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Drate: March 23, 2016

Binay Yadav

Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: March 23, 2016



Apcotex Solutiens Indis Privaglimited (Formerly OXMNOWVA Solutions India Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 30 November 2015
{All amounis are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

30 November 2015

¥

34 Movember 3084

Cash flow from operating activities

(L0s5) before tax

Addiustiment o reconcile laks before fox fo net cash flows
Depreciaiion and amortisation

Assets written off

{nterest expenses

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

Dividend from long-term investments

interest Income

Impairment on tangible assets

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)

Bad debts written off

Provision for doubtful debts

Operating profit / (foss) before working capital changes
Movements in working capitai:

{Decrease) in trade payables

{Decrease¥increase in other current liabilitics

Increase in short term provisions

Increasei{decrease) in long-term provisions
Increase/{deerease) in other long term labilities
Decrease/(increase) in short term loan and advances
Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease In inventories

Decrease in other current assets

Decrease/{increase) i long-terin loans and advances
Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid

Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows {rom investing aclivities

Purchase of fixed assets, including Capital work in progress
Proveeds [Tom sale of fixed assels

Proceeds from sate of investments

Dividend from long-term investments

Interest received

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B8)

Cash tlows from financing activities

Proceeds {rom 1ssue of share capital

Repayment of excess share capital proceeds

Proceeds from short-tenm borrowings

Repayment of short-term borrowings

Proceeds from cash credit account {net)

Tnterest paid on debentures

interest paid on others

[et eash generated from/(used in) financing activitics ()

Net {(decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivaienis
Cash on hand

Batance with banks

- on1 current account

Total Cash and cash equivalents (note 16)

(103,258,032)

72,441,920

(50,850,084)

58,965,170

- 2,717,952
12,536,984 18,369,250
(156,112) (6,804,749}
- (2409
{12,042,237) (7.180,873)
53,971,625 -
543379 £,206.943
1,644,274 3,091,786
16,043,265 25,014,557
41,725,096 4,619,712
(64,270.110) (103.586.031)
(39,513,632) (18,859,026}
5,340,394 3,896,676
1,633,419 (1.871.806)
474326 {10,690,766)
13,165,019 (19,885,422)
56,571,824 13,657,100
47,755,833 111,583,686
30,488,573 34,133,931
12,718,776 (6,658,142)
106,089,718 5,339,012
(217.413) {42,865}
105,872,305 8,297,047
{3.983.459) (26.262.179)
213,553 617,475
- 36,000
- 240
11,913,980 7,222,256
8,144,074 (18,386,208)
257,907,000 :

{3,145,334)

(131,574 ,494)

153.335995

(252,301.866)

19457210 32,723,195

(254,761,646) -

(12,538,822) (17,624.214)
(125,056, 106) 16,033,110
(11,039,727) 6,043,949
74,604,471 68,560,522
63,564,744 74,604,471
265075 126,520
63,299,665 74,477,951
63,564,744 74,§04,47 [

As per our report of even date

For SRBE & CoLLP
Firm R_e'%isngm'ion Mo 3249828
Chartgred A%counlams

a4/

per Santosh Aggarwad
Partner !’E

. H
Membership No.: 93669

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: March 25, 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Apcotex Solutions India Private Limited
(Form

. j}” Epes

Dircetor

Pinesh Bale
Chief Financial OfTicer
Place; Mumbai

Date: March 25, 201
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Binay Yadav
Company Secretary
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Abhiraj Choksey




Apcotes Solutions India Private Limited (Formerly OMNGVA Solutions Indis Privaie Limited)
Motes o financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2015
{ All amounis are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

OMINOVA Solutions India Private Limited (“the Company™) (formerly known as Eliokem India Private Limited) is a subsidiary of OMNOV A
Solutions India France Holding SAS, France, a Company incorporated under the laws of the Republic of France in 2001, The Company is
engaged in manufacturing of nitrile rubbers and latex prodocts.

2. Basis of preparation .

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringiples in India (Indian
GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to comply m all material respects with the accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, The financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. . '

The accoumting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, except for the change in
accounting policy explained below.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Change in Accounting policy
(i) Bepreciation on fixed assets

Till the year ended 30 November 2014, Schedule XTIV o the Companies Act, 1956, prescribed requirements concerning depreciation of fixed
assets. From the current year, Schedule X1V has been replaced by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The applicability of Schedule I has
resulted in the following changes related to depreciation of fixed assets. Unless stated otherwise, the impact mentioned for the current vear is
likely o hold good for future years also. ‘

{il) Usefui fives/ depreciation rates

Till the year ended 30 November 2014, depreciation rates prescribed under Schedule XIV were treated as minimum rates and the Company was
not allowed to charge depreciation at lower rates even if such lower rates were justified by the estimated useful life of the asset. Sehedule II of the
Companies Act 2013 prescribes useful lives of the fixed assets which , in many cases are different from the lives prescribed under erstwhile
Schedule XTV. However Schedule II allows companies to use higher / lower lives and residual values if such useful lives and residual values can
be technically supported and justification for difference is disclosed in financial statement.

Considering the applicability of Schedule IT, the management has re-estimaied the useful lives and residual values of all its fixed assets {including
intangibles) to compute depreciation, {o confinm to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and other considerations applicable.

e to this change in useful lives and residual value of assets the depreciation charge for the current vear has been higher by ¥ 1,28,12,595,

(i1} Depreciation on asseis costing less than ¥ 5000

Till year ended November 30, 2014, to comply with the requirements of Schedule XIV to the Companies Act,1956, the Company was charging
100% depreciation on assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 in the year of purchase. However Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable form
the current year, does not recogmize such practice. Hence, to cormply with the requirement of Schedule IF i the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has changed it's accoumting policy for depreciation of assets costing less than ¥ 5,000. As per the revised policy, the Company has
depreciated such assets over their useful life as assessed by the management. The management has decided to apply the revised accounting pelicy
from accounting period commencing on or after December 1, 2014.

The change in accouniing policy for depreciation of assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 did not have any material impact on financial statemenis of
the Company for the current year .

{b) Use of estimates 7

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management io make judgements, estimates and asswmptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period.
Alihough these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current evenis and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates conld result in the outcomes requiring & material adjustment to the carmrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.




Apeotex Solutiens India Private Limited (Formerty OMNGVA Solutions India Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the yesr ended 30 November 2815
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continned)

{c} Tangible fized assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accwmmiated fmpairment Josses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase
price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for iis intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cos of replacing parts, are charged to the staiement of profit and loss for the peried during which such expenses are incusred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

(d) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Factory Leasehold Land is amortised on siraight line basis over the balance period of lease agreement. Land was initially allotied to the Company
for 99 years of lease period. The leasehold land in respect of wind farm assets are amortised over the balance contractual peried as at year end.

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management.
The company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Asset Useful Life estimated by the management (Years)
Computers 3-6
Office equiprent 5
Furniture and fixtures 14
Vehicles 8-10
Leasehold improvements 9.09% or the rate based on lease period, whichever
is higher
Building 26
Roads 14
Plant & machinery - Gas
. 7
turbine
Plant & machinery < "
Others
Software 3

The management has estimated, supported by assessment by technical professionals, the useful lives of the following classes of assets:
= The useful lives of buildings and plant and machinery - others is estimated as 26 years and 11 years respectively, which is lower than that
indicated in schedule 11.

{e) Intangible asseis

Intangible assets acquired separziely are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
fess accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intemally generated intzngible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets are amoriized on a siraight line basis over the estimated useful economic life, which, in management's estimate represent the
period during which will be derived from iis use.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an infangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill: At the time of acquisition of the business, the difference between purchase price and the fair value of asseis as at the daie of
acquisition is accounted for as goodwill Goodwill is amortized using the straighi-line method over a period of five years.

Sofiware : Costs relating to compuier software are capitalized and amortized on seraight line basis over theiy usefiul life of 3 years, as techmically
agsessed.




Apeotex Solutions India Private Limited (Formerly OMNOVA Solutions fndia Private Limited)
Motes to fimancial statements for the year ended 30 November 2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summeary of sigaificant acconnting pelicies {continned)

{e} Leases

Where the company is lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recogiized as an sxpense in the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amouni is the higher of
an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset docs not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in uss, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the tisks specific fo the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

{g) Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not mare than one year from the date on which such mvestments are mads,
are classified as current investments, All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initia] recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly atiributable acquisition charges such
.as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are cairied in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-
{erm imvestments are carried af cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value
of the investmenis.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged of credited to the statement of
profit and loss.

{h) Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials and stores and spares are valued at Tower of cost and net realizable value, However, materials and other itemns
Teld for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, packing materials and stores and spares i¢ determined on a weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty and is determined on a
weighied average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimaied selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estirnated costs
necessary to make the sale.




Apeotex Selutions [ndiz Private Limited (Formerly OMNOV A Solntions India Private Limited)
Wotes to hnancial statements for the year ended 3¢ November 2015
{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Sumumary of sigaificant acconnting policies {continued)

{i} Revenue recogrition
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The Tollowing specific recognition eriteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale af goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significani risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the govermment and, therefore, these
are not ecopomic benefits fiowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Excise duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the
amount that is included in the revenue (gross) and not the entire amount of liability arising during the year.

Export benefiis
Export benefits are accounted on accrual basts on the basis of exports made,

Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest
income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right te receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

{j) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings, Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they oceur.

(k) Foreign currency tramsacéions

Imitial Recognition
Foreign currency ansactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the {ransaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are refranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried
in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the fransaction.

Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of company at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the
vear in which they arise.

(1) Retirement and other employee bepefits

1} Provided fund and superannuation fund:

Retirement benefii in the form of provident fund and superannuation fund is a defined contribution scheme. Contributions payable ic the
provident fund and superannuation fund are charged to the profit and loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related
service. The Company contribuies a sum equivalent to certain percentage of basic salary of the eligible managerial cadre employees’ salary 1o
Superannuation Pund administered by trusiees and managed by an insurence company. The company has no obligation, other than the
contribusion payable to the provident fund and superannuation fund.

ii} Gratuity

The company operates a defined benefit plan for its employses, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are determined on
the basis of actuarial valuation at each vear-end. Separate actuarial valoation is carried out for each plan using the projected uait credit method.
The Company has taken an insurance policy under ihe Group Gratuity Scheme with the Future Generally Life Insurance to cover the gratuity
liahality of the employees snd amount paid/payable in respect of the present value of Hability for past services is chazged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss every vear. Aciuarial gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the
statement of profit and loss.




Apenter, Sotutions Indiz Private Limited (Formerly ORMNOV A Soletions India Private Limited)
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continned)

iii} Compensated leave

Accumulated leave, which is expectsd to be uiilized within the next 12 months, is freated as shori-term ernployee benefits. The company measures
the expected cost of such abisences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitternent that has accumulated at the
reporiing date.

The Company ireats accumudated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valvation using the projected unit credit method at the
vear-ciid. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire
ieave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer ifs settlement for 12 months afier the
reporting date.

{m) Encome taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax raies and tax laws used to compute the amouni are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year
and reversal of timing differences for the carlier vears. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recegnized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available agamst which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convineing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each reporiing date, the company re-assesses unrecogiized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that
it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax asseis can be realized. :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date. The company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax
asset fo the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtnally certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed 1o the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

(12} Segment reporting

The Company's operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to nature of services provided, with sach segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different services, the risk and retumn profile of individual business unit, the organisational
structure and internal reporting systern of the Company. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the focation of the customers.

(¢} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

{p} Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a resuit of past event; it is probable that an ouiflow of resources will be
required to seffle the obligation, in respect of whick a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to seitie the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adinsied o reflect the current hest estimnates.

{q) Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and is hand and shori-term frvestments with an original
marity of three months or bess,




" rAgprotex Solutions India Private Limited (Formerly OMNOVA Selutions fndiz Private Linited)

Na_{es_iﬂ finaneial statements for the year ended 30 November 2013
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees. unless otherwise mated)

3, Share capital

30 November 2815 30 November 2014
& L4
Authorised shares (No.)
161,606,000 (30 November 2014: 12,050,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 16,16,00,000 16,16, 00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (Ne.}
16,099,272 (30 November 2014: 12,010,000} equity shares of ¥ 10 each 16,09,92,720 12,01,00,000
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capitai 16,09.52, 720 12,41,00.000
a. Reconciliation of the shares outsianding af the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares
30 November 2013 30 November 2014

No. g Ne. ¥
At the beginning of the year 1,20,10,000 12,01,00,000 1,20,10,000 12,01,00,000
Issued during the vear 40,80.272 4,08,92,720 - -
Outstanding at the ead of the period 1,60,29,272 16,00,92,720 1,24,10,060 12,01,06,000

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 7 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one voie per share.

There were no dividends paid to eguity shareholders during the year ended 3¢ November 2015 and year ended 3¢ November 2014,

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled te receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢, Shares held by holding/uitimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Out of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its helding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/associates are as

below:
3¢ November 2015 30 November 2014
T g
OMNOVA Solutions India France Helding SAS, France, {Holding Company)
16,099,271 {30 November 2014: 12,009,999} equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up 16,09,92,710 12,00,99,990

d. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five vears immediately preceding the reporting date:

30 November 2015 30 November 2014
Mo, No.

Equity shares aliotted on conversion of fully compulsorily convertible 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
debentures {Finangial year 2012-13)
¢. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder 30 November 2018 30 November 2014

Mo, % bolding i the M. holding in the class

class
Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up
OMMNOWVA Solutions Indiz France Holding SAS, France 1,60,99,271 99 99% 1,20,05,999 59.99%
4, Reserves and surplus
30 November 2815 30 November 2014
g g

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial stafements 1,08,00,00,0600 1,08,00,00,000

Add: presniuim on issue of equity share
Clesing Balance

Deficit in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements

{Loss) for the year

Net deficit in the statement of profit and Joss

Total reserves and surplas

21.38.68.926

1,29.38,68,92¢

1,08,06,00,000

{42.47,56,393) (33,39,06.309)
{10,32,58,032) (9.08,50,084)
(52,86,14,425) (82,47,56,393)

76,58,54,501

65,52,43,607




_-Apcoter Solutions Indiz Private Limbed (I qrm_e_ﬂy_();m@vﬁx Solutions India Private Limited)
‘Neotes to financial siatements for the year ended 30 November 2015
(A smmousts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

5, Other long-term liabilities

36 Movemsber 2818 30 Movember 2014
¥ g
Lease equalisation reserve - 2,75,674
Security deposits from consignment agents 7,50,000 -
7,510,008 2,75,674

€. Provisipns

Long-term Shori-term
30 November 2015 30 November 2814 30 Novemwher 2015 30 November 2014
S g g ¥
Provision for employes benefits
Provision for grauity (refer note 27) 83,82,264 67,48,845 28.61,821 36,94,393
Provision for leave benefits - - 81,72,030 89,65,045
Provision for litigations - - 1,77,10,343 1,07,44,162
Total 83,582,264 07,48,845 2,87.44,1%4 2,34,03,606

Provisions for litigations

Provisions for litigations represents estimate made for probable claims arising out of litigations / disputes pending with authorities under statutes, ie.
service tax, etc. The probability and the timing of the outflow with regard to these matter depend on the ultimate settlement / conclusion with the relevant

authorities.

7. Shori-term borrowings

30 November 2015 30 November 2014
g £
Loans repayable on demand
- from banks (1} & (2) - 12,00,00,000
- from related parties (refer note 25) - 1,15,74 . 494
Cash Cradit (2) 9.82.56,951 7,91,99.741

The abeve amount inchedes
Unsecured borrowings

1. Leans repayable on demand from banks includes:
- working capital demand loan of T NIL (30 November 2014: T 50,000,000} carrying interest @11.5% p.a

- buyers credit utilized of T NIL (30 November 2014: ¥ 70,000,000) carrying interest @ 10.1% p.a.

2. The above loan 1epayable on demand from banks is made available against a promissory note of T 50,000,000 issued by company in favour
of HSBC bank and a standby letter of credit (SBLC) granted by BNP Paribas Bank, Paris out of the credit facility provided to OMNOVA

Solutions India France Holdings SAS.

9,82,56,951

21,87,74,235

9,82,56,951

21,07,74,235

8, Trade Payables
30 November 2015 30 November 2014
g g
Trade payables including accrual for employees
- ues to Micro and small enterprises (refer note 32) 60,65,246 74,571,709
- Oihers 15,02.46,715 21,31,25.994

Dues io relaied parties included m above (refer note 31)

15,63,11,961

22,05,83,703

Trade payables 4,4047 589 7.76,70,569
9. Other current Habilities
30 November 2015 30 Movember 2014
g g
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (1) - 25,63,01,131
Interest accrued but not due 4,38,364 440203
Security deposits from consignment agents 86,05,001 1,06,75,001
Advance from.customners 3,115,992 18,32,290
Others
Interest free deposit from contractors (2) 28,29,199 20,59,199
Excise and customs dufy payable 2,58,84,794 2.49,60,663
Tax deducted at source payable 16,11,077 19,777,742
Provident fund payable 8,779,326 8,50.511
Professional tax payable 39,580 39,360
Orther Payables 30221643 6,59.61,992
7,08,20,975 36,50,58,403
Tres 1o related parlies included in above (refer note 31) .
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 25,63,01,131
Other Payables 2,32.82 448 5,79.00,340

Note -

1, Inierest accrued and due on berrowings includes unpaid debenture interest of ¥ NIL (30 November 2014
lepasiis agamst cancellable contracts for a period less than one year

¥254.761,646).
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- Apeotex Sobutlons India Private Limited (Formerly OMNOVA Soletions Tndia Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the wear ended 30 November 1015
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

12. Non-corrent inv i
30 Movemher 2615 30 November 2014
g g
Non-trade investizents (valued at cost unless stated stherwise)
Investment in equity instruments (unguoted)
247 500 (30 November 20142 247,500) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid-up 24,775,000 24,75,000
in Narmada Clean Tech Limited
1,751 (30 November 2014: 1,751) equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up 17,510 17,510
in Bharuch Enviro Infrastruciure Limited
24.93.518 24.92,510
Aggrepgate arnount of unquoted invesiments 24,92,510 24,92.510
13. Loans and advances
Nop-current Current
38 November 2015 30 November 2014 30 November 2015 30 November 2014
€ g g g
Security deposit
Unsecured, considered good 2,76,79,984 3,93,73,617 - -
[A) 2,76,79,984 3,93,73,617 - -
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good - - 1,19,92,220 285,149,742
{B) . - - 1,19,92,229 2,85,19,742
Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Tax deducted at source 2,65,944 48,531 - -
Prepaid expenses - - 69,07.316 T8,80,995
Loans to employses (refer note 31} 12,55,244 22.80,387 20,34,103 30,13,850
Cenvat recoverable - - 1,26,54,150 90,36,295
Value added tax recoverable - - 78,00421 61,02,356
el 15,721,188 23,28,518 3,93,95,990 2,60,33,496
Total (A+B+C) 2,92,01,172 4,17,02,535 4,13,88,219 5,45,53,238
Loans and advances due by directors
Loans to employees include - 10,85,000 - 6,000,000
14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
30 November 2015 30 November 2814
g g
Raw materials and components (includes in transit ¥ 5,536,274; 6,50,38,516 5,94.00,457
30 November 2014: ¥ 6,146,975, (refer note 20})
Work-in-progress (tefer note 21) 1,44.98,727 4,30,03,362
Finished goods (refer note 21} 17,33,12,121 19,80,99,444
Packing material 23,9501 31,03,900
Serap (refer note 21) 22,41,865 16,34,920
25,74,86,250 34,52.42,083
18, Trade receivables
30 November 2615 30 November 2814
€ ¥
QOuistanding for a period exceeding six monihs from the date ¢they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 58.03,327 50,73,239
Unsecured, considered doubtful 42305313 2,81,33,031
4,81,98,640 3,32,86,270
Provision for doubtful debis 4,23 95313 2,81,33,031
58,903,327 50,73,239
Others
Unsecured, considered good 39.46,28,589 46,94.63,5390
39,46.28,58¢ 46,94.63,5%0
40,84,31,916 47,458,36,829
16. Cash and bank balances
30 Movember 2015 30 Noverber 2014
z g
Cash and eash cquivatenis
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 6,32,99,660 744,77 951
{ash on hand 2,65,075 1,726,520
6,35,64,744 7,46,84,471
17. Qiber Current Asset
30 November 2815 30 November 2014
i g
4,770,355 3,442,008
14,81,07,508 17,85.86,081

14,85,77,863

178038079




2 _Apcutex Soluticns Indis Private Limiled (Formerly DM‘\IO@A Sazutmm Iadiz Private mesd)

“Notes-te Boancizbstatements for the vear ended 30 November. 2015

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

i3 Revenue from operations

30 November 2015 30 November 2814
¥ Z

Revenpe from operations
Sale of products

Finished goods 2.02,68,15,930 2,77.04,99,344
Cther operafing revenue

Serap sales 1,31,24 413 2,45,58,450

Dty drawback 22,55,818 30,25,233
Revenue from operations (gross} 2,04,21,96, 155 2,2%,80,83,027
Less: Excise duty # 20,9810,774 23,62,82,046
Revenue from operations (net) 1,83,13,85,387 2,06,18,00,581

# Excise duty on sales amounting fo T 209,810,774 (30 November 2014: ¥ 236,282,046) has been reduced from sales in profit & loss account and excise
duty on increase/decrease in stock amounting to ¥ (18,862) (30 Novemnber 2014: ¥ (8,383,961)) has been considered as (income Yexpense in note 25 of

financial stafernents,

Details of products sold
30 November 2815 30 November 2014
£ k4
Finished goods sold
Bale 1,07.84,06,165 1,16,83,88 842
Cruns 40,22,06,827 55,04,68,064
Latex 543,23,619 7,48,.81,437
Powder 14,76,32,505 15,63,83,219
Sheets 34,4246, 814 320377782
2,02,68,15,930 2,27,04,99,344
19. Other income
30 November 2615 30 November 2014
Z €
Interest incormne on
Fixed deposits with banks 15,82,771 -
Others 1,04,55 466 71,80,873
Dividerd from Long-term investments - 240
Excess provisions / Unpaid liabilifies no longer payable, written back 2,62,01,385 4,47.95,098
Foreign exchange fluctnations (net) - 53,25,847
Miscellaneous income 584,216 12,04,066
Total 3.88,27,838 5,85,06,124

This space is intentionally lefi blank
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Motes t financiabstatements for the vesrended 3¢ November 2015,
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless ofherwise stafed)

28, Cost of raw material and componenis consumed

3¢ November 2015 30 November 2014
T g
Inventory at the beginning of the vear 5,94,00,457 11,48,33,234
* Add: Purchases {net of materials scid during the year ¥ 7,023,291, Previous year: Mil) 1,12,44.84,799 1,34,63,56,513
1,18,38.85256 1,46,11,89,747
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 6,50,38.516 5.94.00 457
Cost of raw material and components consumed 1,11,88,46,740 1,40,17,89,290
Details of raw materials and components consumed
30 November 2018 30 November 2614
g g
Acrylonitrile 31,52,94,771 34,76,01,876
Butadine 40,88,30,323 39.271,03,866
Styrene 16,43,65,273 23,95,45,628
Others 23,03,56,373 24,19.37.920
1,11,88,46.740 1,40,17.89,200
Details of inventory
30 November 2015 30 November 2014
g €
Acrolyte 3,60,09.949 78,01,6G0
Butadine 38,08,096 1,15,60,163
Styrene 4,58,355 1,25,21,800
Others 2,47,62,116 2,75,16,894
6,50,38,516 5.94,00,457
21, Increase/ (decrease) in inventories
30 November 2615 30 November 2014 Imcrease / (decrease)
g g 2
Tnventories at the end of the year 30 November 2015
‘Work-in-progress 14498727 4.30,03,362 {2.85,04,635)
Finished goods 17,33,12,121 19,80,99,444 {2,47.87323)
Scrap 22,41,865 16,34,920 6,06,545
19,00,52,713 24,27,37,728 {5,26,85,013)
30 November 2014 30 November 2013  Increase/ (decrease)
g g g
Toventories at the beginning of the year 30 November 2014
‘Work-in-progress 4,30,03,362 3,35,82,404 94 20958
Fimshed goods 15,80,9%,444 26,33,30,860 {6,52,31.416)
Scrap 16,34,920 25,42 025 (9,08,005)
24,27,37,726 29,94,56,189 (5,67,18,463)
{5.26,85013) {5,67,18,463)
Details of inventory
30 November 2013 30 November 2014
g g
Work-in-progress
Raw material 24 84 962 44 63,924
Latex 64,51,727 3.43,07,181
Rubber 52,16,882 40,62,625
Others 3,45 156 1,69,622
' 1,44,98,727 4,30,03,362
Finished goods
BHale 11,57,84,481 14,36 28,538
Crums 2.26,14,488 1,22,18,260
Latex 4472683 53,67.325
Powder 5598974 §7.01,387
Sheats 24841495 2,81,83,933
17,33,12,121 19,80,99,444
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».:x Netes t Bnancial statements for ﬁne wear ended 30, November. 2015 -

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, imless otherwise staied)

22, Emplovee benefif cxpense

30 Movember 2015 30 Movember 2014
T ¥
Salaries, wages and bonus 13,90,45,727 11,22.87.171
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 55,52,813 52,56,264
(Gratuity expense (tefer note 27} 21,86,330 20.73,715
Staff welfare expenses 44,67,167 40,83.428
15,12.52,037 12,37,80,578
23. Depreciation zand amortization expense
30 November 2815 30 Novemher 2014
g Z
Depreciation on tangible assets 7,14,21,240 5,80,74,360
Amortization on intangible assets 10,20,680 8,590,810
7,24,41,929 5,89.65,17%
24. Finance costs
30 Novemsher 2015 30 November 2014
¥ g
Interest on short term borrowings 1,13.24,283 1,35,45,194
Interest- Others 12,12,701 48,24,056
Bank charges 1,31,35,771 1.73,11,163
2,56,72,755 3,56,80,413
25. Other expeises
30 November 2015 30 November 2014
g ¥
Consumption of stores and spares 2,9826,592 3,04,02,.498
Consumption of packing material 2,22,60,498 2,22.07.430
Labour Charges 3,73,85,419 28296817
Decrease of excise duty on inventory (18,862} (83,83,961)
Power and fuel 19,22.57.893 21,83,06,134
Water charges 1,05,33,593 1,01,53,649
Freight and forwarding charges (net of recovery) 2,13,32,380 2,50,01,115
Rent 36,51,006 41,12,698
Rates and taxes- others 1,04,78,326 1,49,51,155
Insurance 1,08.20,545 1,20,68,816
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 1,81,07,580 1,87,78,191
- Buildings 62,97.037 05,98,088
- Others (including IT support costs) 1,95,53.451 1,83,10,858
Commission 3,26,46,026 44099612
Traveling and conveyance 1.52,29,087 1,51,33,422
Paymeni to auditors 3245327 3095327
Legal and professional fees 1,00,48,319 1,35,73,562
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net} 98,84,579 -
Bad Debts written off 16,44,274 30,91,786
Provision for doubtful debts 1,60,43,295 2,50,14,557
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 543,379 12,96043
Management service charges (refer note 31) 1,13,74,024 1,46.21.244
Miscellaneous expenses 1,54,52,309 1,33,13,204
49,96,01,167 53,43.03,275
Payment te auditers
30 November 2015 30 November 2614
g T
As anditor:
Audit fee 32,00,000 29,00,000
Reimbursement of expenses 45,327 1,95327
32,45,327 30,958,327
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L6, {Loss) per share

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations:

30 Movember 2013 30 Movember 2014
T ¥

Total operations for ihe vear
Loss after tax (10,32,58,032) {9,08,50,084)
Net loss for calculation of basic and diluted EPS {10,32,58 632} {9,88,50,084)
Ho. Ne.
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 1,28,83,872 1,20,10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 1,28,83 872 1,20,10,000
Basic and diluted BEamings/{Loss) per share (8.0} (7.8)

27, Gratuity

The company operates gratuity plan, wherein every employee who has completed at-least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at the rate of 15
days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service, Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement or separation or

death or permanent disablement in ferms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the finded status and amounts

recognized in the balance sheet.

Statement of profit and loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

30 November 2013 30 November 2014
g T
Current service cost 16,00,143 15,37,829
Interest cost cn benefit obligation 17,42,543 18,138,722
Expected retum on plan assets {1127.310) {9.95,613)
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognized in the year (29,046) {2,87,223)
Net benefit expense 21,86,330 20,73,718
Actual return on plan assets 19,53,579 3,22.478
Balance sheet
Benefit asset/ (liability)
30 November 2015 30 November 2004
€ k4
Present value of defined benefit obligation (2,53,78,818) (2,29,68,903)
Fair value of plan assets 1,41,34,733 1,25725 665
Plan asset / (lability) (1,12,44.G85) (1,04,43,238)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
30 November 2315 30 November 2014
(4 i
Qpening defined benefit obligation 2,29.68,903 2,15,67,368
Current service cost 16,00,143 15,37 ,82%
Interest cost 17,42,543 T18,18,722
Benefits paid (17,29.994) (9,94,653)
Actuarizl {gains) / losses on obligation 7,897,223 (9,60,301)
Closing defined benefit oblipation 1,53,78,818 2,29,68,903
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
30 November 2015 30 November 2014
g g
Opening fair value of plan assets 1,25,25,663 1,18,96,717
Expected return 11,27,310 995613
Contributions by employer 13,85,483 13,01,128
Benefits paid (17,29.994) (9.94,655)
Actuarial gains / (losses) §,26,26% (6,73,138)
Closimg fair value of plan assefs 1,41,34,733 1,25,25,665

The compary expects to contribute ¥ 2,861,821 to gratuity in the next year (30 November 2014: T 3,694 39),

|
|
|
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27, Grateity (Contipued}
The major categories of plar assels as a percentage of the falr value of total plan assets are as follows:

30 November 20815 38 November 2014

Investments with insurer 100% 100%

The principal assunpfions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the company's plans are shown below:

30 November 2015 38 November 2014

Discount rate 8.00% 8.25%
Expected rate of refumn on assets 9.00% 9.00%
Future salary increase 12% for first 3 years  12% for first 3 years
and 8% thereafter and 8% thereafter
Employee turnover 11% for all ages 13% for all ages

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take acceunt of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the empleyment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the
obligatien is to be seitled. There has been significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

Amounts for the curment and previoﬁs four periods are as follows:
30 November 2018 30 November 2014 31 December 2813 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

g T : g g T
Gratwity
Defined benefit obligation 2,53,78,818 2.25.68.003 2,15,67 368 1,90,34.877 1,08,39,163
Plan assets 1,41,34,733 1,25,25. 665 1,18.96,717 1,00,43,087 82 86,461
Surplus / (deficif) 1,12,44,085 1,04,43,238 96,70,651 8991790 25,52,702
Experience adjustments on plan 1,46,030 5,98,515 £.41,844 10,92,577 10,99,981
liabilities
Experience adjustroents on plan 8,26,269 (6,73,138) 4,05,121 1,66.739 (2,651)
assets
28. Leases

Operating lease: company as lessee
The company has entered into commercial leases for office premises. These leases have an average life of three to five years. There are no restrictions

placed upon the company by entering info these leases. There is an escalation clanse of 20% on lease rentals and deposits after 3 years for office premises.
There are no subleases.

Future minimum rentals payabie under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 November 2015 30 November 2014

< g
Within one year 304,750 43,52,400
After one year but nof mere than five years ~ 1,02,67,462
More than five years - -
2,94, 750 1,46,19,862

Mote: Subsequent to year end, the Company has ierminaied the lease agreement for office premises.

29, Segment information
a) Segment information for primary reporting (by business segmeni}
Since the Company has cnly cne reportable business segment of synthetic rubber, hence information for Primary business segment is not applicable.

b) Segment informadion for secordary segment reporting (by geographical segment)
The Company has two reportable geographical segments based on location of custorners.
1) Revenue from costomers within India

i} Revenue from customers outside India
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(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, undess otherwise stated)

Geographical Seoments

The company's secendary segments are the geographic distribution of activities. Revenue and receivables are specified by location of customers while the
other geographic information is specified by the location of the asscts. The following table shows the distribution of the Company's sales by geographicat
mnarket, regardiess of where the goods were produced:

Sales Revenue by Geographical Market

30 November 2015 30 November 2014

g g
India (domestic) 1,74,18,41,08% 1,95,61,72,923
Outside India (exports) 9,05.44,29§ 10,56,28 058
1,83,23,85,387 2,06,18,80,581

The revenue figures are reported above are net of excise duty.
Total assets and additions ¢ tangible and intangible fixed assets by geographical area;

The fellowing table shows the carryirg amonnt of segment assets and addition to segment assets by geographical area in which assets are located:

Carrying amount of segment assets and
intangible assefs (T }
30 November 2015 30 November 2014

Receivables for sales made within India ) 1,28,56,85,.996 1,58,74,92,541
Receivables for sales made outside India 4427571 1,47,35,215
1,20,01,13,567 1,60,22,27,756

Note: The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for sale within India and sales outside India. Hence, the separate disclosure
for fixed assets is not required fo be furnished.

30. Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars of un-hedged foreipn currency exposure as at the reporting date
Particulars Amount
Trade Payables US$ 659,249 (30 November 2014: US$ 1,320,329} 4,40,47,589 (30 November 2014: ¥
8,18.25341)
GBP 824 (30 November 2014: GBP 1,899) ¥ 82,704 (30 November 2014: T 184,900}
Advances recoverable in cash or USS Nil (30 November 2014: USS 12,582) Nil (30 November 2014: ¥ 796,485)
kind - Advance to suppliers

Short Term Borrowings €Nil (30 November 2014: € 150,000) ¥ NIL {30 November 2014: ¥ 11,574,455)

Trade Receivables US$ 66,266 (30 November 2014: USS$ 237,766)T 44,27,571 (30 November 2014: 3
14,735,215)

Other Curreni Liabilities US$ 348,462 (30 November 2014: US$ 930,293) T 2,32,82,448 (30 November 2014:

5.76,53,621)
€ NIL (30 November 2014: € 15,080}, NIL (30 November 2014: % 11,63,579)

Cash and bank balance US$ 507 (3¢ November 2014: USS 101) ¥ 33,866 (30 November 2014: ¥ 6,282)
€ 190 (30 November 2014: €903 ¥ 13,463 (30 November 2014: T 6,981)
HEKS$ 70 (30 November 2014 HKS Nil} ¥ 690 (30 November 2014: ¥ Nil)
RMB 345 (30 November 2014: RMB Nil} ¥ 3,401 (30 Novernber 2014: ¥ Nil)

' Closing rates 25 on Movember 30:

Currency 2013 2014
INR/USD 66.8148 619736
INR/GBP 100.3692 87.3670
INR/EURG 70.6834 77.1604
INR/RMB 2.8571 NA

INR/HKS 9.8578 NA
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fl\etes to financial statements for the year ended 36 Movember 2015
(A1l amounis are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

32, Detaiis of dues to micro and small enterprises ss defined voder the MEMED Act, 2408

38 Movember 2015 30 November 2014
€ g
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid tc any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 60,65,246 74,57,70%
- Interest due on above 28,243 -
58,93,48% 74,357,769
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the - .
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid - -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end. 28,243 -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until sueh date - -
when the imterest dues as above are actuatly paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
The sbove information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company and is relied upon by aunditors.
33. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
30 November 2615 30 November 2014
g €
Raw materials 38,07,28,063 40,91,78,970
Compenents and spare parts 21,75,126 16,21,255
Capital goods - 73,41,438
38,29,03,189 41,81,41,663
34. Expenditure in foreign currency (acerual basis)
30 November 2015 30 Movember 2014
T €
Interest - 34,76,391
Service charges and other expenses 1,95,89 910 2,79,38,252
Salary reimbursement 2,36,53,022 1,26,55,806
Legral expenses 4,259,436 21,44,537
Repair and maintenance - plant and machinery 22,19,778 44,31,736
Commission. 11,41,616 30,04,726
Traveling and conveyance 21,75,866 23,90,78]1
4,92,09,628 5,66,42,228
35, Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consnmed
% of total Value % of total Value
consumption g consamption g
30-Nov-15 30-Mov-15 30-Nov-14 30-Nov-14
Raw Materials
Tmported 35 39,01,82,841 32 45,30,39,496
Indigenously obtained a5 72,86,63,899 a8 24,87,49,794
100 1,11,88,46,740 106 1,46,17,89,290
Spare parts
Imporied 3 9,74,635 9 25,91,966
Indigenonsly obtained 97 2,88,51,057 91 2,78,10,532
100 2,98,26,502 108 3,04,02,498
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36, Eavnings o foveign carvency {wcerual buasis)

30 November 2018 30 Movember 2014

& z

Exports at F.O.B Value 90,544,298 103,628,058

90,544,298 105,628,058

37, Belerred Taxes

30 November 2013 30 November 2014

Deferred tax iabibity

Fixed assets, Impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization (including 20,816,041 46,784,070
impairment) charged {or the financial reporting
Gross deferved fax liabilities {4) 20,816,04) 46,784,070

Deferred tax asset

Carried forward Josses and unabsorbed depreciation 139,969 369 145,891,771
Provision tor doubtful debts 13,100,152 9,123 960
Provision (or gratuity 3474422 3,388,309
Inpact of expenditure charged 1o profit and loss account in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on 6,958,710 5.402,642
payment basis

Gross deferred tax asseis (B) 163,502,833 163,806,682
Restricted to deferred tax liability 20,816,041 46,784,070

Nei deferred tax asset / (Nability) - R

The Company follows Accounting Standard (AS-22) "Accounting for taxes on [ncome". as notified by Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 Bue
1o losses, the Company has delerred lax asset wilh carried forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation as a major component. THowever, deferred lax assel has
been recognized enly to the extent of deferred tax lability since there is no convincing evidence which demonstrates virtual certainty of realization of such
deferred tax asset in the near future,

38, Capifal and other commiiments
- As al 30 November 2015, the company has capital commitments of & NIL (30 November 2014; §346‘500)1

39, Gther compliances

With regard to compliance of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 {earlier section 3834 of the Companics Act, 1956), the Company did not had
appointed a fall time company secretary during (he vear. However, subsequent to year end, the Company has appomited a Company Secretary w.e.f. February
22, 2016,

40. Subscquent fo year end, i.c. on February 5, 2016, the entire shareholding ol the Company is purchased by Apeotex Industries Limited and
1S NoMInees,

41. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities as at 30 November 2015 is Nil {30 November 2014 Nil).

42, Impairment of assets
At the year end, the Company has recognised the following impairment loss on write down of following assets to their recoverable amount:

- Building related to windmills 47,018
Leasehold land related to windmills 5,701,573
Plant and Machinery related to windmills 3,723,360
Plant and Machinery related to (ias turhine and instruments 42,499 674
Total 53,971 625

The impairment loss in case of above assets is recognised on account of management's decision to disinvest these assets and these assets being not in use due
to technical issues. The Company written-dewn these assets to the net realisable value {net selling price) based on management estimate,

42, Previous year figures
Previous vear figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform fo this vear classification.

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & CoLLP
Firm regas&zauon number: 324982F For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chaﬁcmd Ag,LOimfdnts e Apcotex Sofutions [ndia Private Limited
el {Formerly OMNOVA Sofutions Indis Private Limited)

Kumashi Abhiraj Choksey

an

per Santosh ¢ gg i Director Director

Partner L s ooy pod
D v W ) T e

Membership No“ 93669 S T i%"';f}h/ TR R £ zw"}%‘ ;

Binay Yadav
Company Secretary

Dinesh Bale
Chief Frnancial Qfficer
Place: Almedabad Place: Mumbai

Date: March 25, 2016 Date: March 25, 2016
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Members of OMNOVA
Solutions India Private Limited will be held on Friday, the 29" day of May, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. at the
Registered Office of the Company to transact the lollowing business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited statement of Accounts together with the Directors'
Report and the Auditors' Report thereon for the period ended 30™ November, 2014.

2. To ratify the appointment of Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To appoint Mr. Paul Fredric De Santis as Director of the Company.

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companics Act,
2013 is annexed hereto.

By Order of the Board
for OMNOVA Solutions India Pvt. Ltd.

sd-
Director

Dated: 27™ April, 2015
Regd. Office:  707/708, Meadows, Sahar Plaza Complex,
Andheri Kurla Road, Mumbai 400059




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS

OF SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Item No. 3

Members will note that Mr. Paul Fredric DeSantis was appointed as an Additional Director during the
year and would hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. It is proposed to appoint him as
director of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Apart from Mr. Paul Fredric DeSantis, none of the directors or key managerial person or their

relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution,

By Order of the Board
for OMNOVA Solutions India Pvt. Ltd.

sd-
Director

Dated: 27* April, 2015
Mumbai



To
The Members of
QMNOVA Solutions India Private Timated

Your Directors have pleasure in preseating their 7 Annual Report for the pened ended 300 November,

20H 4.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Particulars 30 November, 2014 30 November, 2013

{Rs) (Rs.)

Revenuce from Operations 2074450214 2179737103
Other Income 6,15,36,347 116,69 484
Less:Fxpenses 2.22,68,66,643 2,25,09,66,824
(L.oss) before tax (4,08,30.083) (5,95.60,237
Current Tux s -
Loss for the year (4,08,50.083) (3.95,60,237)
Balanee Brought forward from previous year (33,39.06,309) (27,43,46,072)
Balance earned forward (12,47,56,392) (33,39.06.30%

DIVIDEND:

In view of the carry forward losses, your Direcrors regret thetr inability to recommend any dividend.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of sccion 207(2.\.\) of the Act, the directors confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed:

2. A proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of
policies have been selected and applied conststently, and have made
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and Fuir view

November, 2014 and of the loss of the Company for that year.

adequate appropriate accounnng
judgments and esumares that are
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 304

3. accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acr, 1956 for safe-guarding the
assets of the Company and for prevennng and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. the annual accounts have been peepared on a ‘gramy concern” basis.




CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

The detils as required under the Companes (Disclosure of Particulars 1n the Reporr of the Board of
Directors) Rules, 1994 concermng conservaton of energy and technology absorprion, respectively are ptven
in Annexure A,

Foreign exchange earnings and utilization during the financial year were Rs. 101,56,28,058 and Rs. 5,60,42,229
respecuvely

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION 217(2A)

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limirs spectfied under section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Compantes (Paruculars of Employee) Rules, 1975 as amended.

DIRECTORS

Duning the year br. Michael Hicks resigned as Ehrector and Me Paul de Santis was appointed as an
Additional Director. Mr. de Santis holds office ull the next AGM and his appoingnent s pruposed at the
ensuing AGM. M, Anupkumar Savastav retired as 2 Director on March 31, 2015,

AUDITORS OBSERVATIONS

The OMNOVA Group has an insurance policy which covers all the companies within the Group. Cost of the
‘sunnce premium o be borne by each af the Group companies, and accordingly the Company has shown
the expense in its books. The Company has made an application seeking the permission of the Reserve Bank
of India for treadng such allocation as expenditure of the Company. There have been slight delays by a few
days in payment of tax deducted at source, The Company has taken hecessary steps to ensure compliance in
funire. On aceounr of the losses, the Company has not been able to make the payment of the interest on
debentures issued to the parent company.

AUDITORS

M/sSR B C & Co LLP,, Chartered Accounnant, were appointed as Auditors of the Company at the previous
AGM and are eligible to continue as Auditors for the current financial year. You are requested to ratify their

appotntment as Auditors and fix theiz rem I

For and on behalf of the Board o

Kevith McMullen Phul de Santis
Director Director
DIN: 03344618 DIN: 07018467
Place :USA

Dated: April 27, 2015



4)

The Company continuously makes endeavors to use energy efficie
measures. "The total energy conswnption

under:-

b)

Conterygiion of | Lerey

ANNEXURE 'A'

ntly by implementing cost effective
and cnergy consumption per unit of finished goods produced is as

Unit Current Year 2014 | Previous Year 2013
1*Dec~ 30 Nov 1Dee- 304 Nov
(i) | Electricity
{2} | Purchased Units Kwh 76.99,920 56,444,965
Total amount Rs 5,94,13,313 +.48,79,843 -
Rate Per unit Rs/Kwh 7.710 7.950
{b} | Own Generation :
Through Diesel
Generator Rwh 40,912 51,584
Diesel Consummed Lir 11,882 15,172
Through Wind mill { Units ) Kwh 813,545 11,110,575
Through  Co - generation
GT/GE Kwh 39,149,720 60,33,800
(ii) ) Others :
Natural Gas Quantity Scem 38,20,392 48,948,154
Total amount Rs 157,786,773 16,60,40,751
Rate Rs/Sem 41,30 33.90
Production of Finished goods | MT 11733 13510
Synthetic rubber
NBR/ SBR/ LATTICES/
POLYBLEND
Per MT consumption 2014 2013
1#Dee- 30 Nov 1#Dec= 304 Now
(i) | Electricity
(a) | Purchased Units [Kwh/MT | 636 H8
{b) | Own Generation :
Through Dicsel
Generator { Unirs | Kwhi/MT | 3.49 3.82
Diesel Consumed Lu/ANT .01 L2
Through Co - generadon
Plaat { Units )- G.T, G.E, ECT Kwh/AT | 337 447
(ii ) | Others:
Natural Gas Quanuty : Rwh/MT | 326 363

Techng!gg;_ : absorption, adaptiop and innovation

The Company had acquired the
February 16, 2008 under a slump
Apar Tnduseries Led had unporied technical knowhow fro

sale agrecment. The Com

polymer division in Gujarat from M/s Apar Industnies Ltd.on
pany has not unported any technolopy but
m Good Year Tyre Co.America in 1989 to



1992 for manufacrucing NBR and lattices. [owever the technologyfor manufacturng SBR was
developed by Apar Induseries Led irself.

Research & De\'clngment (R& D)

The Company has a ultramodern R&D Centre dedicated to Research and Development ofnew types
of dry-polymers,polyblends and powders as well as for improvement in quality ofexisting products
and development in manufacturing processes to enhance productritythe actual expenditures relited
with R&D2 is debited to the respective heads in the year inwhich it is incucred.



SRBC&COLLP Setior 42, Sector Hood
Chartered Accountants Gurgaan 122 002, Haryana, India

Tel : +91 124 464 4000
Fax : +91 124 464 4050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
(*“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at November 30, 2014, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Acl, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4 April 2014 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
‘and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We tonducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of
India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate 1o provide a basts for cur audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

We report that the Company has entered into a foreign currency transaction with respect to insurance
expense allocated by the holding Company which is not a specified foreign exchange transaction under
Foreign Exchange Management Regulations without obtaining the approval of Reserve bank of India as
required under section 3 of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. As described in note 13, the
Company is in the process of oblaining an approval from the Reserve bank of India. Pending the final
outcome, no adjustments have been made by the management to the accompanying financial statements,
However in our opinion, the same ought not to have been recorded. The Company’s records indicate that
had management not recorded this expense, operating expenses and net loss would have been reduced by
Rs. 2,721,084, and shareholders’ funds wouid have been increased by Rs. 2,721,084.

SRACKCOLLP a Lim'ted Liabilily Parinershie with LLP identfly Ho. AAD-4)18
Regd. Ollice : 22, Camag Street, Block C7, 3rd Flocr, Kelkala-TO0 016
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SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Qualified opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and givea
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

() in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at November 30, 2014;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
(c) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditer’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we have obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

(b) except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion propet
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014
dated 4 April 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

(¢} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on November 30, 2014, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on November 30,
2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956,

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Ficm Registration Number: 324982E

¢«

per Sandeep Sharma
Partner

Membership Number: 93577
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: April 21, 2015
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SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure referred to in paragraph 7 of our report of even dale

Re: OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited {‘the Company)

(i) (2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and material
discrepancies were identified on such verification. These have been properly dealt with in the
books of accounts.

(c) There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.

(ii) (2) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

{c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured 1o companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii) (a) to (d) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

{¢) According to information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not taken any loans,
securcd or unsccured from companics, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 (iii) () to
(g) of the Order are not appiicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of ils business,
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our
audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major
weakness in the internal contro] system of the company in respect of these areas.

'\ In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provision of clause
{v) (b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vii)  In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Gove or the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1) (d) of
the Companies Act, 195 the manufacture of Synthetic Rubber primarily includes

Pape I of 3
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Charterad Accountants

Styrene-butadiene rubber (SBR), Nitirile Butadine rubber (NBR) and Latex and are of the apinion
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(ix) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, or
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, cess have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there
has been a slight delay in a few cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employces’ state insurance,
income-tax, wealth-1ax, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other undisputed
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year cnd, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-ax, wealth-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of | Amount (Rs) Period to which | Forum  where
Dues the amount | dispute is

relates pending
[ncome Tax Act, 1961 | Income 4,966,004 2010-11 Commissioner of
Tax Income Tax

(Appeals)
Central Excise Act, | Excise Act | 10,744,162 2013-14 Customs, Excisc,
1944 Service Tax

Appellant

Tribunal

(x) The Company’s accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are less than fifty per cent of its
net worth and it has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial
year.

(xi)  Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has defaulted in repayment of interest due
to debenture holders during the year and prior year as mentioned in the table below;

Nature of payment Due date Date of Payment Amount

Interest on debentures December 31, 2010 Not paid 27,221,918
Interest on debentures March 31,2011 Not paid 26,630,137
Interest on debentures | June 30, 2011 Not paid 26,926,027
Interest on debentures September 30, 2011 Not paid 27,221,918
Interest on debentures December 31, 2011 Nat paid 27,221,918
Interest on debentures March 31, 2012 Not paid 26,926,028
Interest on debentures June 30, 2012 Not paid 26,926,028
Interest on debentures | September 30, 2012 Not paid 27,221,918
Interest on debentures December 31, 2012 Not paid 27,221,918
Interest on debentures February 07, 2013 Not paid 11,243,833
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Chartered Accountants

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(sevi)

(xviii}

(xix}

(xx)

{xxi)

The whole of such dues were in arrears as on the balance sheef date. The Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records
produced to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way
of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore,
the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are
not applicable to the Company.

In respect of dealing/trading in shares, securities, debenfures and other investments, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper records have been
maintained of the transactions and contracts and timely entries have been made therein. The
shares, securities, debentures and other investments have been held by the Company, in its own
name.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions,

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds amounting to Rs.48 202,801 raised on short
term basis in the form of cash credit facility from banks have been used for long-term investment
representing acquisition of ficed assets, repayment of long-term loan and funding of losses.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.
The Contpany has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

Based vpon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reporied during the year.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Firm registration number: 324982E

Chartered Accountants

ﬁ}ﬁw{fr"

r Sandeep Sharms
Partner

Membership No.: 93577

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 21, 2015
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OMNOVA Solutions Indla Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless othcrwise stated)

Notes 30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 120,100,000 120,100,000
Reserves and surplus 4 655,243,608 746,093,691
775,343,608 866,193,691
Non-current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities 5 275,674 10,966,440
Long-term pravisions 6 6,748,845 8,620,631
7,024,519 19,587,091
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 210,774,235 ¥78,327,870
Trade puyables 8 89,969,440 193,548,955
Other current liobilities 3 506,456,516 526,868,810
Short-term provisions 6 12,659,418 8,762,762
819,859,629 907,508,397
TOTAL 1,602,227,756 1,793,289,179
Assets
Non-current nssets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 466,180,289 504,802,250
Intangible assets 10 1,974,284 538,278
Capita! work-in-progress 2,003,338 1,919,042
Mon-current investments I 2,492,510 2,528,510
Loans and advances 12 41,654,004 34,995 864
514,304,425 544,783,944
Current asseds
Inventories 14 305,242,08) 416,825,769
Trade receivables 13 474,536,829 515,331,969
Cash and bank balances 15 74,604,471 68,560,522
Loan and advances i2 233,539,948 247,786,975
1,087,923,331 1,248,505,235
TOTAL 1,602,227,756 1,793,289,179
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC& CoLLP

Firm Registration No: 324982E

Chartered Accountants

/pgr ?éandeej Sharmyg

Pariner

Membership No.: Y3577

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 21, 2015

For end on behalf of the Board of directors of

OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limiled

S

Anup Kumar Srivastava

Director

Deepak Birje
Director



ONMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 3¢ November 2014

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 30 November 2414 30 November 2013
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations (gross) 16 2,310,762,260 2,420,262,911
Less: excise duly 236,282,046 240,525,808
Revenue from operations (net) 2,074,480,214 2,179,737,103
Other income 17 61,516,347 11,669,484
Total revenue 2,136,016,561 2,191,406,587
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 1,384,437,991 1,495,974,101
FIncrense)l decrease in inventories of finished goods and work- 19 56,718,463 (20,990,298)
in-progress
Employee benefits expense 20 124,942,550 95,578,209
Depreciation and smortisation expense 21 58,965,170 59,381,311
Finance costs 22 22,310,957 53,867,235
Other expenses 23 579,491,562 570,162,073
Prior period expenses 24 - (3,005,807}
Total 2,226,866,643 2,250,%66,824
Loss before tax (90,850,083) (59,560,237)
Tax expenses
Current tax
Pertaining Lo profit/(loss) for the current period - -

Total tax expense - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations (90,850,083} (59,560,237
Loss per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 10 (30 2 71.6) 6.1)

November 2013: Rs. 103

Basic and difuted (Computed on the basis of loss for the year from continuing operations)

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per aur report of even date

For SRBC & Co LLP
Firm Registration No: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

“per Sandci Sharma

Pertner
Membership No. 93577

Place; Gurgaon
Date:  April 21, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of

OMNOVA Solutions India Privatc Limiled

N

Anup Kundar Srivostava

Director

Deepak Birje
Director



OMNOVA Solutions Indin Private Limited
Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended 3 Navember 2014
{All amounts arz in [ndian Rupess, unless otherwise stated)

30 November 2004 30 November 2013
(Ra) (Rs.)
Cxsh Now from operating activitles
Net profit/{iass) ufter tax (90,850,083) (59,550,237
Adjustment 1o reconclle profit after tux 1o net cash flaws
Depreciation and amertisalion 58,965,170 39,381,311
Astets wrillen off 2717952 -
Priar pericd expenses - {3,005.807)
[nicrest expense 22,310,957 53,867,238
Unrealized foreign exchange lags {6,804,749) 25,569,557
Provision for taxation - -
[merust income (240) {60,716)
Bxcess provitions written back {44,793.098) (5,540,828)
LossKprafit) on sale of fhxed assels 1,296,943 110,513
Provision for bad debts 25.014,557 5.281,676
Operating profit before working caplial changes (3%,144,590) 76,042,704
Mavemenis in working capital :
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (103,586,031) 14,830,443
Increase/(decrense) in other current liabilities 25,936,073 {1,618,755)
Increase/{decrensa} in short tetm provisions 1,896,676 (429,604)
increasef{desrcase) in long-term provisions {1,871 306) 628,861
Incresse/(decrease) in other lony term Jiabilitics (10,690,766 391,442
Decrease in short term loan ard advances 14,295,553 56,488,024
{Increasc)/decrease in trade receivables 18,748,886 (62,972,054)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 111,583,686 (62,142,961)
{Increase) in long-term loans and advances {6,658,142) (3,879.882)
Cash geoerated from operations 19,509,542 15,334,208
Prior period items . 3,005,807
Direet taxes paid 48,531 3,666
Net cash flow from sperating activities (A} 19,461,011 8,338,349
Cashs flows from investing aclivities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (26,762,130) (7.404,774)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels 617475 19,740
Investmert in bank depoyits {having original maturity period R 5 00D.000
mare than three months) e
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturily period
mare than three months) ° (5.000,000)
Proceeds from sale of investments 36,000 -
Interest received 240 60,716
Net cash (used n) lovesting activities (B) {25,608,463) (7,264318)
Cash flows (rom financing activitles
Proceeds from shon-term bormowings 253335995 1,540,342 469
Repayment of short-term borrowings (219,578,671 {1,572,055 968)
Interest paid (21,565,921) {34,791,141)
Net cash from/used in) financlug activities (C) 12,191,303 [66,504,640)
Net {acreasefidecreasc) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 5,043,949 (4£5.430,609)
Effect of exchange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in forsign
cunency ) .
Cash and cash equivalents at the bepinning of the year 68,560,522 123,991,131
Cash and cash cquivalents ut the ead of the year 74,604,471 68,560,522
Components of cash and cash equivaleats
Cash ond cheques on hand 126,520 84,129
With banks MATI951 68.476,393
= Of SuriEnt Aceouttt
Total Cash nad cash equivalents { note 15) 1&04.4“ 68,560,512
21

A3 per our report of even date
ForSRBC & CoLLP For and on Lekalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Regisuation No: 324982E OMNOVA Solutions Tndis Private Limited

Chartered Accountlants g
7 per Sul.leejsmrm Anup Kl Deepak Birje
Partner Director Director

Membership No q 3¢ 7
Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 21,2015



OMNOVA Solutions [ndia Private Limited
Notes to financial statementy for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in l_!\tdian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited (“the Company™) (formerly known as Eliokem India Private Limited) is a subsidiary of OMNOVA
Solutions India France Holding SAS, France, o Company incorporated under the laws of the Republic of France in 2001. The Company is
cngaged in manufecturing ol nitrile rubbers and latex praducts.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepased in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAATD).
The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (23 amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements
have been preparcd on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except in cose of assets for which provision for impairment is
made and revaluation is carried out.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.

2.1 Summary of significani accounting policies

{n) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statcments in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make judgements, estimates and essumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

{b) Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets arc stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impuirment losses, if any. The cost cemprises of the purchase
price, borrowing costs if capitalization crileria are met und dirccily atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving a1 the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including dny-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, ure charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which stch expenses are incurred

Fixed assets under construction, advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets and cost of assets not put 1o use before the year end, are
disclosed as capital work in progress.

Gains or Josses arising from de recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assct is derecognized.

{c) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

Depreciation on fixed assets, except leasehold improvements, is caleulated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives estimated by the management or those prescribed under the Schedule X1V 1o the Companies Act, 1936, whichever is higher. Assets costing
below Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Asset Rates (SLM)

Computers 16.21%

Office equipment 9.50%

Furniture and (ixtures 9.50%

Vehicles 9.50%

Leaschold improvements 9.09% or the ralc based
on lease period.

Building 31.85%

Plant & machinery 9.09%

Leasehold land 82 years

In the opinion of the management, these rates represent the useful lives of such assets.




OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
Noles to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
(A}l amounts arc in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of sigaificant accounting policies (continued)

{d} Intungible assets

Tntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Foliowing initial recognition, intangible assels are carricd ut cost
less accumulated amortization and nccumulated impairment losses, if eny, Inlemally generated intangible essets, exchuding capitalized
development costs, ure not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The company uses a rebuttable presumption that
the uselul 1ife of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive evidence exists to
the affect that uscful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of its useful
life. Such intangible assets and intangible assets not yet availuble for use are tested for impeirment annually, cither individually or at the cosh-
generating unit level. All other intangible assets are asscssed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The amortization period and the amoriization method are reviewed ut least at each financiel year cnd. If the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is chanped accordingly. If thers has been a significant change in the
expected patiern of cconomic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed 1o reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are
aceounted for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for the Peried, Prior Period ltems and Changes in Accounting Policies.

Guins or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured os the difference between the net disposal proceeds und the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in e statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill

At the time of acquisition of the business, the difference between purchase price and the fair vaiue of assets as at the date of acquisition is
accounted for ns goodwill, Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over a period of five years.

Seftware

Costs relating to computer software ere capitalized and amortized on straight line basis over their uscful life of 3 years, as technically assessed,

() Leases

Where the company is lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed us
lensed nssets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of rerurn.
Finance charges are charged direcily against income. Leasc management fees, legal chorges and other initial direct costs are copitalised.

A leased asset is deprecisted on o straight-line basis aver the useful life of the asset or the vscful life envisaged in Schedule X1V to the Companies
Act, 1956, whichever is lower. However, il there is no reasonnble cenuinty that the Company will obtnin the ownership by the end of the lease
term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the sharter of the estimated useful lifi of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the [casor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leaszd item are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease paymens are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on 2 siraight-line basis aver the lease term.

(N Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that on assel may be itnpaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impaitment testing for an asser is required, the company estimates the nssel's recoverable amount. An nsset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's o cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual assct,
unless the asset docs not generate cash Inflows that arc lasgely independent of those from other assels or groups of assets, Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable nmount, the nsset is considered impaired and is written down to its rccoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value vsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into aceount, if availoble. If no such transactions can be identified, an apprepriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the
company’s cash-generating units Lo which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast caleulations are gencrally covering a
period of five years, For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows afer the fifth year, After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised camying omount of the asset over its remaining useful life.




OMNOVA Solutivons India Private Limiled
Nates to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
(All amtounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

An nssessment is made at each reporting dote as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses moy no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company cstimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been & change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recovernble
nmount since the last jmpairment loss was recognized. The reversal is litnited so that the carrying amourt of the asset does not exceed ils
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the assel is carried at a revalued
mmount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

There was no impairment during year ended 38 November 2014 and 30 November 2013.

(g) Investments

Investments, which ere readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made,
are classified as current investments. All other investments are cinssified as Jong-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such
as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carricd in the financial statements at Jower of cost and fair value determined on an individual invesiment basis. Long-1erm
investments are carried at cost, However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments,

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of
profit and loss.

(b} Inventories

Raw materials, packing materials and stores and spares are valued a2 lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not writlen down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorparated are
expected to be sold at or sbove cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued et lower of cost and nct realizable value. Cost includes direct materials snd labour and o

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal eperating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty and is determined on a
weighted average basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimaated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

(i} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criterin must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewnrds of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. The company cotlects sales taxes and vatue added tmxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefare, these
are not cconomic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Excise duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the
amount that is included in the revenue (gross) and not the entire amount of liabilily arising during the year.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proporlion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable intercst rate. Intercst
income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

{j} Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of un asset that nceessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capilalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
(Al amounts are jn Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of significant aceounting policies (continved)

(%) Foreign currency transactions

Initial Recognition
Foreign custency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the forcign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchunge rale prevailing at the reporting date. Non-moenetary items which are carried
in terms of historical cost denominated in u foreign currency arc reported using the exchange rale at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
ilems which are carried at fuir valuc or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date
when such value was determined.

. Exchange Differences
From accounting periods, commencing on or after 7 December 2006, the company accounts for exchange differences arising on
translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on a monctary item that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in a non-inlegral foreign
operation is accumulated in a foreign currency translation rescrve in the financial statements until the disposal of the net investment. On the
disposal of such net investment, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences which have been deferred and which relnte (o that investenent
is recognized as income or as expenses in the samc period it which the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

2. Exchange differcnces arising on long-terin foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a fixed asset are capitalized and
depreciated over the remoining useful life of the asset. For this purpuse, the company treats a foreign monetary item as *long-term foreign
currency monetary item”, if it has a term of 12 months or more at the date of its origination.

3. Exchange differences arising on other long-lerm foreign currency monctary items er¢ accumututed in the *Foreign Currency Monelary Tiem
Translation Difference Account™ and amortized over the remaining life of the concerned monetary item.

4. All other exchange differences are recognized as income ar as expenses in the period in which they arise.

{)) Export Benefity
Export benefits under various schemes of Government of India are accounted on necrual basis on the basis of exports made and the value of
imports made to/be mede there against.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. Contributions payable to the pravident fund are charged to the
profit and loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The company has no obligation, ather than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.

The company operates e defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

Superennuation fund is & defined contribution scheme. The Company contributes a sum equivalent to certain percentage of basic salary of the
eligible managerial cadre employces’ salary to Superannustion Fund administered by trusiees and maneged by an insurance company. The
Company recognizes such coniribution as an expense as and when incurred. There are no other cbligations other than contribulions payable to the
fund. :

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee benefits. The company measures
the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reparting date.
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Notes to financial statemcnts for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in [ndian Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

The Company treats accumulated leave expected ta be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term cmployee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately tken to the siatement of profit and joss and are not deferred. The Company presenis the entire
leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it docs not have an unconditional right to defer its setlement for 12 months afier the
renarting date.

{n) Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current end deferred tax, Current income-tax is measured ot the amount expected to be paid lo the tax euthoritics in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacied in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tox jurisdicrions where the company operates
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those thal are cracted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date, Current ircome
tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of prolit and loss.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year
and reversal of timing difierences for the earlicr years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted et the reporting date, Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deduetible timing difTerences only
to the exient that there is rensonable centninty that sufficient future taxeble income will be availeble againat which such deferred tax assels can be
realized, In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets ore recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized ngainst future taxable profits.

Al each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecopnized deferred tax asset to the extent that it
has become reasonably certain or virtually ceriain, os the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred 1nx assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The company wriles-down the carrying amount of deferred tax
assel 1o the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtally certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or
vinually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be availuble.

Deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-0ff current fax assets apainst current tax
liabilitics and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate lo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period,
ie, the period for which MAT credit is allowed 1o be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit s an asset in
secordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961,
the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the
“MAT credit entitlement” assct at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that
it will pny normat tax during the specified period,

(o) Segment reporting
Identification of segments:

‘The Company hus only one reportable business segment of Synthetic Rubber. The analysis of geographical scgments is based on the location of
customers.

Inter segment Transfers:
There are no inter-segment transfers,

Allocation of common costs:
Since the Company has only one reportable business segment of Synthetic Rubber, there is no allocation of cost.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its scgment information in conformity with the accounting polictes adopted for preparing and presenting the financial
statements of the Company as a whaole,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
(All amounts arc in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are ealeulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders (afler deducting
sttributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares arc treated as a
fraction of &n equity share to the extent that they are entitled to purticipate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. ‘The weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement ine
rights issue, share split, and reverse share splid (consolidation of sheres) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without 2
comresponding change in resources.

For (he purpase of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the cliects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

(q) Provisions

A provision is rscognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probeble thet an outflow of resources will be
required 1o settle the obligation, in respect of which a relioble estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value ond are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, These are reviewed ot cach balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best eslimates,

Where the company expects some or all of a pravision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement i3 recognized as o separate asset but enly when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(r} Contingent linbilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exislence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or & present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation. A contingent linbility also erises in cxtremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because il cannot be mensured refinbly. The company dees not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

(s) Cash and cash equivalenls

Cash and cash cquivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an originul
maturity of three months or less.

{Space intentionally left blank)
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3. Share capltal

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(Ra) {Rs.)
Authorised shares (No.)
161,600,000 (30 November 20E3: 12,050,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 161,600.000 120,500,000
Issned, subscribed and fully pald-up shares (No.)
12,010,000 (30 November 2013 12,010,000} equity shares of Rs.1¢ each 120,100,000 120,100,500
‘Total issued, subscribed and (ully paid-up share capital Eo, 100,000 120,100,000

a. Reconciliation of the shares outsianding at the beginning aoid at the end of the reporting period
Equily shares

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
No. (Rs.} No. {Rs.)
At the beginning of the peried 12,010,000 120,100,000 10,000 100,000
Issued dunng the period (d) - - 12,000.000 120,000,000
Outstanding at the end of the period EEOID,DOII l![LI 00,000 lzu_lg.ﬂﬂll 120,100,000

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares baving a par value of Ra. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares ls entted to one vote per share

There were no dividends paid to equity shareholders during the year ended 30 Novembar 2014 and year ended 30 November 2013,
In the event of tiquidation of the Cotmpany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive rempining asscts of the Company. The distribution will

be in proportion w the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

¢. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company snd/or thelr subsidiariea/asiociates

Out of the equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company snd their subsidiaries/associates are as

below:
30 November 2614 30 November 2011
(Rs.) (Rs.)
OMNOVA Solutions India France Holding SAS, France, (Holding Company)
12,009.99% (30 Novernber 2013: 12,009,999) equiry shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up 120,099,990 110,099,990
d.Agpregate number of shares lssucd for conslderation other than cash during the five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
No. No,
Equity shares allotted on conversion of fully compulsorily conventible - 12,000,000
debentures
e. Detalls of shareholders holding more than §% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder 30 Nevember 2014 30 November 2013
No. % holding in the No. % holding ko the clasy
clan
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up
OMNOVA Solutions India France 12,009,999 99.99% 12,009,999 59.99%

Hoding SAS, France, Holding
Campany

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcho!ders/ members and other daclarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

ituereat, the above sharekolding represents both legal and bereficial ownerships of ghares,

4. Reserves and surplus

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Ra.) (Rs.)

Seturities preminm account
Balance as per the last financlal statemnents 1.080,000,000 -
Add: premivim on conversion of fully S 1,080,000,000
compulsorily conventible debentures.
Closing Balance 1,080.000.000 1,U80,000,000
Deflcit in the statement of profil snd loss
Balance as per last financial statcments {331,906,309) {2714,346,01)
Loss for the year {90,850,083) (59,560,237)
Net deficit in the statement of profit snd loss (424,756,292) (333,906,349}
Total reserves and surplus 655.1-12!!608 746,003,691

AR
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Notes {o Bnancis) statements for the year ended 30 November 2014

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

5. Other long-term Yabilities

30 November 2014 30 November 2413
{Rs.} (Ra.)
Letse equalisation reserve 275,674 291,439
Security deposits . 10,675.001
175,674 10,966,340
6. Provisions
Long-term Short-term
30 Novetuber 2014 30 Nuvember 2013 30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratity (refer note 27) 6,748,845 §,620,651 3,694,393 1,050,000
Provision for leave berelits - - 8,965,045 7,712,762
Total 6,748,845 8,620,651 12,659,438 8,762,762
7. Short-term borrowings
30 November 2014 30 Novemnber 2013
{Rs.) {R1.)
Loans repaynble on demand
- from banks (1) & (2) 120,000,000 118,939,324
- from related panties (refer note 25) 11,574,494 12,912,000
Bank overdrafi (2} 79,199,741 46,476,546
210,774,235 178,327 870
‘The abnve amount includes
Setured barrowings 199,199,741 165,415.870
Unsecured borrowings 11,574,494 12,912,000

. Loans repayble on demand [rom banks includes
- working capital demard loon of Rs. 50,000,000 (30 November 2013: Rs. 50,000,000 carrying interest @ 11 50% (30 November 2013 10%) pa.
- buyars credit wiilized of Rs. 70,000,000 (30 November 2013 Rs. 68,939.324) carrying intercst @ 10 19 (30 November 2013 10%) p.8.

Thie above loan repayable on demand from banks is made available against s promissary note of Rs. 50,000,000 issued by company in favour
ol HSBC bank and & standby letter of credit (SBLC) granted by BNP Paritas Bank, Paris out of the credit facility provided to OMNOVA
Solutions India France Holdings SAS.

L)

8, Other carreat Uabllities

30 Navember 2014 30 Nevember 2013
(Rs.} {Rs.)
Trade payables (refer nate 31 for details of dues w micro and small enlerprses) 89,969,440 193,548,955
Other Liabilitles
Liability for expenses 57,071,937 42,420,483
Liability for expenses- Related party 131,728,663 177,627,958
Accnied employee cost 16,960,018 13,886,348
Interest acerued and due on borrewings (1) 256,301,131 257,519,403
Security Deposits 10,675,001 -
Advance from customers 1,832,290 727,903
(Onhers
Interest free deposit from contractors (2} 2,055,199 1,499,501
Excise duty payable 24,960,663 29,430,685
TDS payable 1,977,742 1,414,087
Custom duty payable - 1,540,316
Provident fund payable 850,511 7431416
Professional tax payable 39,361 38,210
506;‘56&!5 516£68|810

1. Interest scerued and due on borrowings includes uapaid debenlure intcrest of Rs. 254,761,646 (30 Movember 2013 : Rs. 254,761,646). It was
not paid for the period starting December 31, 2010 ending Feb B, 2013. Thesc debentures were converted into equity shares on Feb 8, 2013,
refer note 3,

2. Deposita against cancellable contracts for a periad less than ong year
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OMNOYA Solutions India Private Limited

Males to financial siatements for the year tnded 30 November 2014

{All amcunts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

11, Non-turrent investments

30 Naveinber 2014 30 November 2013
Ry} {Rs.)
Non-trade investments (valugd ot cost unless stated otherwise)
lovestment ko equity instiruments (unquoted)
247,500 (30 Nevember 2013, 247,500} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 475,000 2,475,000
in Narmada Clean Tech Limited
1,751 {30 November 2013 1,751) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 17,510 17,510
in Bharuch Enviro Infrastructure Limited
1,492,510 2,492,510
Government and trust securities (unquoted)
Investment in gavesmment securities - 36.000
2492510 FIGTETN
Agpregate amount of unguoled investnents 2.492,510 2,528,510
12, Loans and advances
- Non-current Current
30 November 2014 30 November 2013 30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Ra} {Rs} {Re.}
Capital Advanees
Unaecured, considered good - 312 679 - -
(A} - 2679 - -
Security deposit
Unsecured, considered gaod 39,371,617 33,920,715 ° - -
(B) 39,373,617 33,920,735 - -
Advances recoverable in cash or Kind
Unsecured, considered pood - - 28,561,840 10,711,908
[ (o) - . 18,861,840 10,711,908
Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income-lax - B 48,531 5,666
Prepaid cxpenses - - 7,880,995 6,805,394
Loans to employees (refer note 25) 2,280,387 762,450 3,013,850 1,432,887
VAT receivable - - 191,734,732 228,831,120
2,280,387 762,450 104,678,108 237,075,067
Provision for doubtful advances - - - -
[(1}] 1,180,387 762,450 104,678,108 237,075,067
Total (A+B+C+D) 41,654,004 34!9955864 233,539,945 247,786,975
Looss und advances due by directors
Non-current Cucrenl
30 November 2014 30 November 2013 30 November 2014 30 November 2013
[Rs.) {Rs)) [Rs.) (Rs.)
Loans to employees include
Dues from executive directors 1,985,000 . 600,000 B
13. Teade receivables
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Current
Qutatsndiog for a period exceeding six moaths from the date they are
due for payment
nsecured, considersd good 5,073,239 335,004
Doubtful 23,133,031 5997.917
33,206,270 6332,921
Provision for doubtfl receivables 23,123,031 5,997,917
5,073,138 335,004
Other receivables
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 469,463,590 514,996,965
Doubtibil - 1,100,000
469,463,590 516,096,965
Pravision for doubtful recaivables - 1,100,000
469,463,550 £14,996,965
474,536,829 515,331,969
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OMNOVA Solutions India Privaie Limlied
Notes to fizancial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts arc in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Re.)
Raw matetials and components (includes in ransit Rs, 6,146,975, 59,400,457 114,833,234
30 November 2013: Rs. 48,256,199 , (refer note 18))
Work-in-progress (refer note 19) 43,003,362 13,582 404
Finished goods {includes in transit Nil, 198,099,444 263,330,860
10 November 201 3; Ra. 5,544 OH9, (refer note 19))
Packing material 3,103,900 2,536,046
Scrap 1,634,920 2,542,525
305,242,083 416,825,769
15, Cash and bank balances
Current
30 November 2014 30 Nevember 2013
(Rs.) (Rs,)
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On curreat accounts 74,477,951 68.476,393
Cash on harnd 126,520 84,129
74,604,471 68,560,522
16. Revenue fron operations
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs) (Ra.)
Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Finisted poods 2,286,203 310 2,404 095,613
Other operating revenue
Scrmp sales 24,558,450 16,167,298
Other - -
Revenue fiom operationy (gross) 2,310,762,260 2,420,262,911
Less: Excise duty # 236,282,046 240,525,808
Revenue from operations {net} 2.074,430.214 1.179.737“ 03

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 236,282,046 (30 Noveraber 2013: Rs, 240,525,808) hes been reduced from sales in profit & loss azcount and
extise duty on increase/decrease in stock amourting to Rs. (8,283,961) (30 November 2013 Rs. 5,854,457) has been considercd ay (income)/expense in

note 23 of financial statements.

Details of products sold
30 November 2004 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Ru.)
Finished goods sold
Bale 1,168,388,842 1,222,351,766
Crumsy 550,468,064 644,874,191
Letex 74,881,437 51,550,070
Powder 156,383,219 145,637,512
Sheets 336,082,248 339,651,965
2,286,201.810 2.404,095,613
L
17. Other lncome
30 November 21014 30 November 2013
{Rs) {Rs.)
Interest income on
Long-term investments 240 60,716
Others 7,180,873 515,57)
Excess provisions written back 44,795,098 5,540,328
Duty drawback 3,025,233 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets 4,950 -
Exchange differences (net) 5,325,847 .
Oiker non-operating income {net of expenses directly attriburable to such income - 3,258,194
of Rs Nil (30 Novernber 2013: Rs 4,056,644)
Miscellanzous income 1,204,066 2,294,175
Total 61,536,347 11,669,484




OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
Notey fo financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

18. Cost of raw waterial and components consumed

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Rs.)
[nventory at the beginaing of the year 114,833,234 74,187,69%
Add: Purchases 1,329,005,164 1,536,619.636
1,443,838,398 1,610,807,335
Less: Inventory at the &nd of the year 59,400,457 114,333,234
Cost of raw materiol and components consuned 1,384,437,941 1,495,974,101
M
Delaits of raw materials and components ¢ )
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(M.} (Rs.)
Acrolyte 346,966,534 341,940,524
Butadine 555,987,859 642,508,168
Styrene 239,545,628 289,492,293
Others 241,937,920 222,033,116
lgu.-u'i,m 1.4921974]101
Detslls of inventory
30 Nevember 2014 30 November 1013
{Rs.} {Rs.)
Actolyte 7,801,600 46,678,582
Butadine 11,560,163 39,671,282
Styrene 12,521,800 1,072,463
Others 27,516,894 27,410,907
59,400,457 114,833,234
19. Incresse/ (decrease) in inventories
30 November 2014 30 November 2013 Iucrease / {decrease)
(Ra) s} {Rs)
Inventories at the end ol the year 30 November 2014
Work-in-progress 43,903,362 33,582,404 9,420,958
Finished goods 198,099,444 263,310,860 (65,231,416)
Scrap 1,634,920 2,542,925 {908,005)
242,737,726 199,436,189 ({56,718,463)
30 November 2013 30 November 2012  Increase {decressc)
(Rs.) {Rs.} (Rs.)
Inventocies at the begining of the year 30 November 2013
Work-in-progress 33,582,404 40,715,575 (7,133,171)
Finished goods 263,330,860 237,532,566 25,798,294
Scrap 2,542,925 217,250 2325175
299,456,189 278,465,891 20,990,298
56,71 8,463) 10,990,298 (77,708,761)
Detalls of Inventory
30 November 2014 30 Noveber 2013
(Ra) {Rs)
Work-in-progress
Raw material 4,463,924 5,517,100
Latex 34,307,191 24,361,706
Rubber 4,062,625 2,333,307
Others 169622 1,369,791
43,003,362 33,592,494
Finished goods
Bale 143,628,539 182,568,440
Crums 12,218,260 38,340,689
Laiex 5,367,325 4,353,062
Powder 8,701,337 12,038,906
Shests 28,183,933 26,029,763

198‘099‘444 163,330,860



QMNOVA Salutions India Private Limited

Notes to flnancial sistements for the yenr ended 30 Navember 2014
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

20. Employee beneflt expense

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(Re.} (Rs.)
Salaries, wages and bonus 110,277,172 54,068,112
Contribttion o provident and other funds 5,256,264 4,561,097
Gratuity expense (refer note 27) 2,073,715 1,681,560
Othet post employment benefity 2,009,999 1,690,936
Srall wallare cxpentes 5,325,400 3,574,504
124!94]!.550 953573209
21, Depreciation and amorlization expense
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Depreciation on fangible assets 58,074,360 37,035,563
Amortization on intangible assets §90,810 2,345,746
38,965,170 59,381,311
22, Finance cests
30 November 2014 30 November 1013
{Rs.) {Rs.)
[merest on debentures - 22,684,930
Interest on short term borrowings 13,545,194 18,084,180
Other bomowing costs 8,765,763 13,098,124
22,310,957 53,867.235
23, Other expensce
30 Navember 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Ra.)
Consumption of stores and sparcs 30,402,498 25,555,750
Consumption of packing material 22,207,430 10,782,767
Sub-contracting expensas 28,296,817 25,722,993
{Increase)/decreese of excise duty on inventory (8,381,961) 5,854 457
Power and fuel 217,200,116 21823540
Water charges 10,153,649 5,245,543
Freight and forwarding charges 18517441 27,425,038
Rent 4,112,698 4,712,584
Rates and taxcs- others 14,951,155 8,148,255
Insurance 12,068,816 12,179,249
Repair and mainterance
- Plan: and machinery 18,778,191 12,395,002
- Duildings 6,598,088 6,791,387
= Qthers 18,510,898 11,256 497
Discounts and sales commission 56,287,752 50,294,759
Traveling and conveyance 15,040,138 11,209,180
Legal and professional fecs 15,624,874 9417,717
Exchengs differences {net) B 28,979,640
Provision for bad and doubtful dobis 25,014,557 5,281,676
Loss on sale of fixed asseis (net) 1,301,933 10,513
[nterest- Others 4,824,056 6,111,209
Bank charges 8,545,400 13,319,441
Storage charges §7,351,249 20,113,782
Service charges {refer nole 25) 14,521,244 30,351,993
Miscellancous expenses 17,466,423 13,654,805
579,491,562 570,162,073
Payment to auditor
30 November 2014 30 Nuvember 2013
(Hy.) {Ry.)
As auditor:
Audit lee 2,900,000 2,700,000
Tax audit fze 150,000 150,000
Reimbursement of expenses 300,000 300,000

3.350,000

A 3,150,000



OMNOYA Solutions India Frivate Limited
Noles to (inancial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in Ind'an Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

24, Prior period expenses

30 November 2014 30 Navember 2013

{Rs,) (Rs.)
Freight and forwarding charges . 1,177,478
Discounts and saks commission (written back)Vcharged - {4,181,28%)
Prior period capenses, (net) - (3,005,807)

{Space intentionally left blank)
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OMNOVYA Solutions Iadia Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

d) Balances as at yeas end

Year ended Loans anrd Other current Short term Aceured Total
advances liabilities hotrowings  Employee cost
Ultienate Holding Company
OMNOVA Solutions 30-Nov-14 - 44,616,393 - - 44,616,393
Intermational SAS 30-Naov-13 - 51,945,156 - - 51,945,156
OMNOVA Soluations inc. 30-Nov-14 - 787,031 - - 787,031
30-Nov-13 - 241,817 - - 241,817
llolding Company
OMNOVA Solutions India 30-Nov-14 - 336,115,508 11,574,495 2,314,826 350,004,829
France Holding SAS 30-Nov-13 - 373,569,413 12,912,000 - 386,481,413
Fetlow Subsidories
OMNOVA Solution SAS 30-Nov-14 . 71,609,874 - - 7,609,874
30-Nov-13 - 9,287,730 - - 9,287,720
Key management personnel
Mr. Anup K Srivastava - 30-Nov-14 2,585,000 - - - 2,585,000
Whole time Dircctor 30-Nov-13 - - - - -

¢) Remuneratian to key managerial persoanel

.

30 November

30 November

2014 2013
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Mr. Deepak Birje
Salary, VPI, Ex-Gratia, Performance Encentive and Bohus 4,374,800 3,579,400
Mr Anup Kumar Srivasiva
Satary VP!, Ex-Gratia, Performance [ncentive and Bonus 3,785,760 2,969,800
Total 8,160,560 6,549,200

Note: The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, us they are

determined on an netuarint basis for the company as a whole,

{Space intentienally left blonk)




OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
Notes (o {inancisl statements for the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts ere in tndian Rupees, unless otherwise staied)

26. Lass per share

The foltowing reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations:

30 November 2014 30 Navember 2011
(Rs.) (Re)
a he yen

Laoss aflter tnx (%0,850,083) (59.560,237)
Net loss for calculation of basic and diluted EPS {90,850,083) (59.560,237)
No. No.

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculpling basic EPS 12,010,000 9,708,630
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating dituted EPS 12,010,000 9,708,630

27. Gralulty

The compeny operates gratuity plan, wherein every employee who has completed at-least five years of service pets & gratuity on departure at the rate of 15
days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. Gratuity is payabie to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement of separation or

death or permanent disablement in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The following tables summarize the components of nict benefit recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized

[t the balance sheet.
State o:
Net employee benefit recognized in the employee cost
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
(Rs) (Rs.)
Current service cost 1,537,829 1,451,307
Inzrest cost on benefit obligation 1,818,722 1,440,636
Expected return on plan assets {995,613} {927,331)
Net actuarial{ gain) / lass recognized in the year (287,223 {281,051)
Past servics cost - -
Net benelll expense 1,073,715 l.ﬁs&.&ﬂn
Actual retum on plan assets - R
Balance sheet
Benelt asset/ (liabllity)
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) {Rs)
Present valye of defined benefit obligation {22,968,903) {21,567,368)
Feir value of plan assels 12,325,665 11,896,717
Man assel / (liabillty) (IG.MJI_ZQL (9.670&
Changes fn the present value of the ifefined henefit abllgation are as follows:
30 November 2014 30 Nevembier 2013
_[Rs.) (Rs)
Opening defined benefit obiigation 11,567,368 19,034,876
Current service cost 1,537,829 1,451,307
Interest cost 1,818,722 1,440,636
Benefits pid {994 ,655) {4%3,521)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on olitlgation (960,361} 124,070
Closlng defined beneflit obligatlon M
Changes in the fair value of plan assels are a3 follows:
30 November 2014 30 November 2013
{Rs.) (Re.)
Opering farr value of plan assets 11,896,717 10,043,087
Expected return 995,613 921,331
Conritiations by employer 1,301,128 1,004,690
Benefits paid (994,655) (483,521)
Actuarial gains / (losses) (673,138) 405,121
Closing fslr value of plan assels 12,525,665 11,896,717

“1The company expects 1o contribute Rs. 3,694,393 to gratuity in the next yeas (30 November 2313: Rs 1,050,00030
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OMNOVA Solutlons India PPrivate Limlted
Notes to financial statements fur the year ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in [ndian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

27. Gratulty (Continued)
The ma|ar categories of plan assels us a percentage of the fair value of tolal plan assets are 83 follows:

30 November 2014 30 November 2013
Investments with insurer 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used ln determining gratuity beoefit obligations for the company's plans are shown below:
30 November 2014 30 November 2013

Discount rate B.25% 9.00%
Expected mate of return on assets 9.00% 9.00%
Fuetirte salary increase 12% for first 3 years  15% for first 2 years
and 8% thercafter and 8% thereafler
Employee tumnaover 13% for all apes 13% for alt ages

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniarity, prumotion and other relovant factors, such as
supply and demand in the emgployment market.

The averall expectad rate of retum on asscts s dewermined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable 1o the period aver which the
obligation is to be sezted. There has been significant change in expected rate of returmn on assets due to change in the market scenaria,

‘Amounts lor the current and previous four periods are as follows:
30 November 2014 30 November 2013 31 December 2012 31 Decomber 2011 31 December 2010

Ra. R, Rs. Rs. Ra.
Gratulty
Defined benefit obligation 22,963,901 21,567,368 19,034,877 10,839,163 10,366,718
Plon asscts 12,525,665 11,896,717 10,043,027 B,286,461 7,976,971
Surplus / {deficit) 10,443,238 9,670,651 8,991,790 2,552,102 2,389,747
Experience ndjustments on plan 598,518 841,844 1,092,577 1,099,981 {1,292,097)
linbilities
Experience adjustments on plan (673,138) 405,121 166,739 (2,651} 643,998
assels
28, Leases

Operating lease: company as Jessee

The company hes emtered into commercial kcases on offics premises, IT equipments and vehicles. These leases have an average life of three to five years,
Renewal opticn exisis only for |enses on office premises. Thete are no restrictions placed upen the company by entering into these leases. There is an
escalation clause of 20% on lease rentals and deposits after 3 years for office premises and diminishing clausc of avernge 30% on IT equipments, There arc
no subleases,

Futute minimum rentals payable under nan-cancellable operting leases are as follows:

30 November 2014 30 November 2013

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Within ane yenr 4,352,400 5,610,147
ARer one year but not more than five years 10,267,462 13,999,921
More than five yeary - -
14,619,862 19,610,068

29. Segment information
a) Segmeat informatlon for primary reperting (by buslness segment)
Since the Company has only one reportable business segment of synthetle rubber, hence information for Prirary business segment is not applicable.

b) Scgment information for secondary sexment reporiing (by geographical segment)
The Company has two reporrable geagraphical segments based on location, of customets.
i) Revenue from customery within India

i) Revenue from customery outside Lndia




OMNOVA Solulions India Private Limited
Noles tt financial statements for the year cnded 30 November 2014
(All amounts aro in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

Gy

The company's secondary segments are the geographic distribution of activities. Revenue end receivables are specified by location of customers while the
other geographic information is specificd by the location of the assets. The following table shows the distribution of the Company's consolidated sales by
geographical market, regacdless of where the goods were produced

Sales Revenue by Geopraphical Market

30 November 2014 30 November 2013

_{Rs.) (Rs.)
[ndia (domestic) 1.568.852,156 2,012,322,214
Outside India {expora) 105,628,058 167,414,889
3,074,480,214 2,179,1737,10)
A —

Total assets and additlons to tangible and intangible fixed assets by geographical area:

The fo'lowing table shows the carrying amourt of segment assets and addition to segment assets by geogrzphical area in which esscts are located:

Carrying amount of segment asseis and  Addition to fixed nssets and intangible assets

intanglble assels Rs.
30 November 2014 30 November 2013 30 November 2814 30 November 2013
India [,587.492,541 §,774,050,595 26,411,584 8,271,242
Dutside India §4,735.21% 19,238,584 - -
li602.221 756 5,793 289,179 2641 IISM 8,177,242
36, Derlvative inylruments and un-hedged forelgn currency expodire
a) Derfvatives outstanding as at the reporting date
Pariculars Nature of contract

Forwerd contract to by US$ Nil (30 November 2013 Hedge of cxportfimport fore’gn currency exposures.
1SS 500,000 )

b) Particalars of un-hedged forelgn currency cxposure as at the reporting dale
Particulars Amount
Trade Payables USS 67,041 @ Closing rate of 1 §= Ra. 61.97 {30 Navember 2013: US$ 23,043)
Rs. 4,154,772 (30 November 2013: Ra. 1,449,866)
GBP 1,899 @ clesing rate of | GBP = Rs 57,36 (30 November 2013, GBF 1,162) Rs. 184,900
(30 November 2013 Rs. 120,134)

Advances recoverable in cash or US512,582 Nil @ Clos:ng rate of | $= Rs, 61.97 (30 November 2013: US$ 96,901)

kind - Advance to suppliers Rs. 796485 (30 November 2013 Rs 6,097,011)

Skort Term Bomowings - Secured € 150,000 @ Closing rate of § $= Rs. 77 16 (30 November 2013, € 150,000} Rs.] 1,574 495
and Unsecured Loan (30 November 2013; Rs, 12,912,000}

USS$ Nil @ Closing rale of | $= Rs, §1.97 (30 November 2013, US$ 591,837) Rs. Nil
(30 November 2013: Rs. 37,238,366)

Trade Receivables - (USS) S 237,766 @ Closing ruie of | $=Rs. 61.97 (30 November 2013° USS 308,306)
Ra.14,735,215 (30 November 2013: Rs.19,238,584)

Other cunent Lintilities -Interest USS 205,893 @ Closing e of 1 §=Rs. 61 97 (30 November 2011: USS 742,910)

payable 10 H O (US$)-Interest on Rs. 18,337,554 (30 November 201 Y- Rs, 46,743,999)

LC, Intecest on unpaid Excom € 1,085 @ Closing rate of | €= Rs. 77,16 (30 November 20i3: € Nil) Rs. 83,719

charges (30 November 2013: Rs. Nil)

Cther current Linbilities - Inerest € 13,955 @ Closing rate of } €= Rs. 77.16 (30 November 2013 € 30,458) Rs 1,076,314

payable on - Temporary advance (30 November 2013; Rs. 2,621,808)

(Euro €)

Other Current Lisbilities - Overhead US$ 1,849,394 (@ Closing rate of | $= Ry. 61.97, {30 November 2013;US55 2,039,104 )

Charpes Reimbursable to Parent- Rs. 114,613,592 (30 November 2013 Rs. 128,300,426)

Excom charges, Coface & € Nil (@ Closing mtz of | €= Rs. 77.16, (30 November 2013 €30,393 ) Rs. Nil

Environmental tnsurance. Bank Fees {30 November 2013; Rs. 2,616,229)

and WAN Service Chasges




OMNOVA Solutivns India Private Limited
Notes to Minancisl statements for the yesr ended 30 November 2014
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless atherwise siated)

1. Details* of dues to micro and small caterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

With the promulgation of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company is  required to idenufy Micro, Small and
Medium Suppliers nnd pay them interest on overdue amounts autstanding beyond the specified periosd irrespective of the terms with the suppliers The
Company kad eirculated confirmatian leters to all Suppliers secking their statys, Response from the suppliers is still awaited. In view of this, the ligbility
of interest, if any, cannot be reliably cstimated nor the required disclosures made. Accounting In this regard will be camied out after the process is
compicted and reliable estimate made in this regard. However, management is of the opinion that liabilty in any case will be insignificant having tegard ta
the supplier profile. The Company has also 1ill date not yeceived any claims in thiy regard from any of its suppliers.

30 November 2014 30 November 2013

(Rs;) {Re)
The principal amount and the 1nterest duc thercon remaining unpard (o any
supplier os ot the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount dus to micro and small eatsrprises 7,452,709 13,180,707
= Intorest due on above -
7,457,709 13.180!707
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in 1erma of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2005 along with the - -

ts of the payinent made 16 the supplicr beyond the appointed day duting each accounting year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have teen paid -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withowt add:ng the Interest specified under the MSMED
Act 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end. - -
The amount of furthsr interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the smali enterprise for the purpose of disallowancs as
1 deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

* The Information above Is az certified by the monagement,

32, Value of imports calculated on CIF baasis

30 Noveraber 20(4 30 November 2013

(Ra.) {Rs.)
Raw materials 409,178,970 495,799,045
Componentd and spare parts 1,621,255 931,832
Capital goods (refer note 25) 7,341.438 1.216.50]
418,141,663 497,947,380

33. Expenditure In foreign currency (accrusl basis)

30 November 2014 30 November 2013

Rs) {Ra.}
Interest 3,476,391 4,570,668
Setvice charges 27,938,252 39,607,612
Salary Expense 12,655,805 -
Legal Expenses 2,144,537 -
Repair and maintenance - Plant and machirery 4,431,736 764,304
Discousts =nd sales commission 3,004,726 27,575
Traveling and conveyance 2,390,781 2,556,134
56,042,129 47,526,714
34, Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spage parts consumed
% of total Value % of 1otal Value
consumplion {Rs.) consumption (Rs.)
30-Nov-14 30-Nov-14 30-Nov-13 30-Nov-13
Raw Materinly
Imported 13 453,039,496 26 394,332,260
Indigenausly obiained 67 931,398,445 74 1,101.641,841
100 1,384,437,941 100 1,495,974.101
Spare party
Imporied 9 1,591,968 6 1,431,426
Indigenausly cbtained 9§ 27,810 532 94 24,124,324

100 30,402,498 100 25,555,750




OMNOVA Solutions Indis Private Limited
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 30 November 2013
{Al. amourts are in [ndfan Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

35. Earnings in foreign currency (sccrual basiz)

30 November 2014 30 Navember 2013

{Rs.) (Rs.)

Exports at F O B Value 105,628,058 167,414,889
105,628,058 167,414,889
36. Deferred Taxes
30 November 2014 30 November 2013

(Rs.) {Rs.)
DefTeced tax lability
Fixed asscts; (mpact of differences berween tax depreciation and deprecialion/amortization charged lor the 46,734,070 49,518,232
financial 1eparting
Gross deferred tax lisbilitles (A) 46,784,070 49,538,232
DelTered tax asact
Carried forward loss and unabsatbed depreciation 145,891,171 129,794,104
Provision for doubiful debzs 9,123,960 2,364,640
Provision for gratuity 3,188,309 3,137,643
Impact of expendilure charged to profit and loss aceaunt in the current year but allowed for tax pumposes 5,402,642 5,340,705
on payment basss
Gross deferred tax asaels [B) 161,806,682 140,637,092
Restricted 1o deferred tax lighility 46,784,070 49,518,232
Net deferred tax asset / (Ilability) - .

The Company follows Accounting Standard {A5-22) “Accounting lor taxes on Income™, s rotified by Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 Due
to losses, the Company has deferred tax assct with loss and unabsorbed deprecialion as a major component. However, deferred inx asset hay been
considered nil and has been tecopnized only to the extent of defemed tax liability since there i3 no convincing evidence which demonsmates virual
certainty of realization of such deferred tax asset tn the near future

37, Caplial and other commitmenty
- As at 30 November 2014, the coripany has capital commitments of R3. 346,500 {30 Noventber 2013 Rs. 9,150,000) relating to Flant and Machnery.

- As at 30 November 2014, the company has unutilised ameunt under Letter of credits issued by bank apainst purchase of raw materinl of
Ra. 69,960,954 (30 November 2013: Rs 104,591,041},

For commitments relating to lease arrangements, refer note 28
33, Other compliances
With regand 1o section 383A of The Companies Act, 1936 the company hes not appointed a full ime company secretary. The boand of directors are in the

process of appointing the company secreatry on full titne basis.

39. Previous year figures
Provious year ligures kave been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, 10 conform to this year classification,

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & Co LLP

Firm registration number: 3249826 For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Changred Accountants OMNOVA Solutions Ind:a Private Eimiled
.
-,
ndecp Sharma

Pastrer
Membership no. 93577

Place: Gurpson

B Anup Kumdr Srivastava Deepak Birje
. Director Director
% :(-"‘-__\'\
Date: April 21, 2015 LN ‘
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Members of OMNOVA
Solutions India Private Limited will be held on Friday, the 30" day of May, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. at the
Registered Office of the Company to ransact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited statement of Accounts together with the Direclors'
Report and the Auditors' Report thereon for the period ended 30" November, 2013.

2. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remunecration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To appoint Mr. Andrew Thomas Higgin as Director of the Company.

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

(RS

Explanatory Statement pursvant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 is annexed hereto,

By Order of the Board
for OMNOVA Solutions India Pvt. Ltd.

sd-
Director

Dated: 23" March, 2014
Regd. Office:  707/708, Meadows, Sahar Plaza Complex,
Andheri Kurla Road, Muembai 400059




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS
OF SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Item Nos. 3-5

Members will note that Mr. Andrew Thomas Higgin was appointed as an Additional Director during
the year and would hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. It is proposed to appoint him as
directors of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Apart irom Mr. Andrew Thomas Higgin, none of the directors or key managerial person or their

relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution.

By Order of the Board
for OMNOVA Solutions India Pvt. Ltd.

sd-
Director

Dated: 23" March, 2014
Mumbai



The Members of
OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 6the Annual Report for the period ended 30% November,

2013
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Particulars 30 November, | 30 November,
2013 2012
(Rs) (Rs.)
Revenue from Operations 2,17,97,37,103 | 2,61,11,07,206
Less:Expenses 2,13,77,18,278 | 2,42,59,34,416
Profit/(Loss) before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 5,36,88,309 19,17,58,152
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 5,93,81,311 6,16,81,707
Less: Finance costs 5,38,67,235 15,91,75,830
Loss) before tax (5,95,60,237) {2,90,99,385)
Current Tax = 1,14,03,354
Loss for the year (5,95,00,237) (4,05,02,739)
Balance Brought forward from previous year (27,43,46,072) | (23,38,43,334)
Balance carried forward (33,39,06,309) | (27,43,46,072)

DIVIDEND:

In view of the carry forward losses, your Directors regret their inability to recommend any dividend.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 217(2AA) of the Act, the directors confirm that

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

2,

A proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate appropriate accounting
policies have been selected and applied consistently, and have made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 30t
November, 2013 and of the loss of the Company for that year.

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safe-guarding the
asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

The details as required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of
Directors) Rules, 1998 concerning conservation of energy and technology absorption, respectively are given
in Annexure A.

Foreign exchange earnings and utilization during the financial year was 16,74,14,889 respectively

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION 217(2A)

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits specified under section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Patticulars of Employee) Rules, 1975 as amended.

AUDITORS OBSERVATIONS

The OMNOVA Group has an insurance policy which covers all the companies within the Group. Cost of the
insurance premium to be borne by each of the Group companies, and accordingly the Company has shown
the expense in its books. The Company has made an application secking the permission of the Reserve Bank
of India for treating such allocation as expenditure of the Company. There have been slight delays by a few
days in payment of tax deducted at source. The Company has taken necessary steps to ensure compliance in
future. On account of the losses, the Company has not been able to make the payment of the interest on
debentures issued to the parent company.

AUDITORS

M/S R B C & Co LLP., Chartered Accountant, the Auditors of the Company retire at the AGM and are
eligible for re-appointment. You are requested to appoiat Auditors and fix their remuneration.

For and on behalf of the Board of Ditectors

Sd- Sd-
Ditector Director

Place : Gurgaon

Dated: March 21, 2014
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ANNEXURE 'A'

The Company continuously makes endeavors to use energy efficiently by implementing cost effective
measures. The total encrgy consumption and energy consumption per unit of finished goods produced is as

under:-

Previous  Period
Unit Current Year 2013 | 2012
1% Jan - 31 Dec 1% Jan - 31 Dec
(i) | Electricity
(a) | Purchased Units Kwh 2,995,260 2,978,940
Total amount Rs 22,437,033 20,874,417
Rate Per unit Rs/Kwh | 7.49 7.01
(b) | Own Generaton :
Through Diesel
Generator Kwh 12,800 38,188
Diesel Consumed Ler 3,765 11,232
Through Wind mill ( Units ) Kwh 1,018,858 1,411,563
Through Co - generadon
GT/GE Kwh 11,790,118 9,395,688
(ii) | Others:
Nartural Gas Quantity Scm 7,581,598 5,008,611
Total amount Rs 131,680,660 61,155,987
Rate Rs/Scm | 17.37 12.21
Production of Finished goods | MT 15916 13030
Synthetic cubber
NBR/ SBR/ LATTICES/
POLYBLEND
Per MT consumption 2010 2009
Ist Jan to 3lst
Dec 1st Jan 10 31" Dec
(i) | Electricity
Kwh/M
{a) | Purchased Units T 188 229
{(b) | Own Generation :
Through Diesel
Kwh/M
Generator { Units ) T 0.80 3
Diesel Consumed Lue/MT | 0.24 0.86
Through Co - generation
Kwh/M
Plant (Units }- G.T,G.E,ECT | T 741 721
(ii) | Others :
Kwh/M
Natural Gas Quantity : T 476 384
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(b)

(ii)

(ii)

Conservation of Energy

The company continuously makes its endeavor to cfficient energy consumption by
implementing cost effective measures . The total Energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of finished goods produced is as under:-

Unit
Electricity
Purchased Units Kwh
Total amount Rs
Rate Per unit Rs/Kwh
Own Generation :
Through Diesel
Generator Kwh
Diesel Consumed L

Through Wind mill { Units)  Kwh
Through Co - pgeneration

GT/GE Kwh
Others :

Natural Gas Quantity Sem
Total amount Rs

Rate Rs/Scm
Production of Finished

goods MT
Synthetic rubber

NBR/ SBR/ LATTICES/
POLYBLEND

Per MT consumption

Electricity

Kwh/M
Purchased Units T
Own Generation :
Through Diesel

Kwh/M
Generator ( Units ) T
Diesel Consurmed Lir/MT

Through Co - gencration
Plant ( Units )- G.T, GE, Kwh/M
ECT T

Others :

Current Year
2011

1st Jan to 30th
Nov.
3,421,410
24,807,764
7.25

39,344
11,572
1,125,450
9,035,940
5,792,947

126,291,904
21.80

13080

201

1st Jan to 30th
Nov.

262

3.01
0.88

691

Previous Period

2010

Ist Jan
Dec
2,995,260
22,437,033
7.49
12,800
3,765
1,018,858

11,790,118

7,581,598

to 3lst

131,680,660

17.37

15915.6

2010

1st Jan
Dec

188

0.80
0.24

74

to Jlst



b)

Kwh/M
Natural Gas Quantity : T 443 476

Technology absorption, adaption and innovation

The Company had acquired the polymer division in Gujarat from M/s Apar Industries Ltd

on February 16,2008 under a slump sale agreement. The Company has not imported any
technology but Apar Industries Ltd had imported technical knowhow from Good Year Tyre Co.
America in 1989 to 1992 for manufacturing NBR and lattices. However the technology

for manufacturing SBR was developed by Apar Industries Lid itself

Research & Development (R & D)

The Company has a ultramodern R&D Centre dedicated to Research and Development of
new types of dry-polymers,polyblends and powders as well as for improvement in quality of
existing products and development in manufacturing processes to enhance productvity

the actual expenditures related with R&D is debited to the respective heads in the year in
which it is incurred.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited

Keporton the Financial Statements

We have audited the accumpanying finaocial siatements of OMNOVA Solutions India Private
Limuted ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as ot November 30, 2013, and the
Statement of Profit and ) .uss und Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 3 summary of
signiticant accounting policics and other explanatory information.

Maunagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

-

Management is responsible lar the preparation of these hnancial staternents that give a true and tair
view ol the inancial position, financial performance and cash Nows of the Company in accordunce
with accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the Accounting Standards notified
under the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013,
issned by the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs. in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Tlis responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and preseatation of the financial statements that give a true and faie view and are
Iree trom matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsilility

e
3.

4.

Our responsibility 15 10 expiess an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requivemcins
and plan and perform the audil o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financist statements
are free lrom material misstaiement.

Anandit volves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuees
in the financial statemens. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 1he
assessment ol the risks of muterial sussaienient of the finoncist starements, whether due 1o fraud or
crror. In makiag those risk ussessments. the audilor considers internal comtrob relevant to the
Company’s preparation and (e presentation of the finuncial stuements in order 1o design andil
procedures that are appropriste in the circumstances. An audit also mclodes evaluating the
appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of (he fnancial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis lor
aur audit opinion.

Busis for qualilied opinion

3.

We peport that the Company has entered into a foreign cuerency transaction with respect to
imsurance expanse alfocated by the holiding Company which is ot a specificd foreipn exchunge
trennaction wder Foregn Exchange Management Regrdations withow obtaining the approval of
Reserve bank of India as required under section 3 of the Foreign Excluge Managemen Act, 1999,
As doseribed in nete 13, the Compuany Is i the process of obtaining an approval from the Reserve
henk of India. Pending the final eutcome, no adjustments have heon muide by the management 1o the
accompanying finincial statenients However in our opinion, the same ought not (o fave beon
recorded. The Company’s records indicate that had management nor recorded this expense,
aperating expeinses and ner fosy would have been rednced RS SY 338, ad shareholders” funds
would fnve been mcreased by Ky, 3.219,338 LA

P

N D .
SRALADD atan [T 1 E v \I.:_'-I,Q('..f-?-d 5 2.0 TBUAT G Sl



e O S T L O T O R R T T T T T T S T T T T TR F A TR TR TR VAR VR TR I TR

SRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accousitents
Caalificd opinien g

6,

tn our opiion and to the best of our nformation and according W the explanations given o us,
eveepd for the effccts of e manter described in the Basis for Cualified Opimon paragraph, (he
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act™) in the
nrnier $0 required and give o true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepied in lodia

(1) the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of afTairs of the Company as at November 30, 2013;

(b) in the case of the Stitement of Profit and {Loss. of the loss for the year ended on thay dwe: and

()

1 the case of the Cash Flow Sttement, of the cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Repoart on Other Legal and Regubuory Requirements

8

FourSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 3240828

'.(J/O.,I'J'LL L /7 _é!’”_—-"/

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order™) issued by the Ceniral
Government ol India m erms of sub-section (JAY of section 227 ol the Act. we give in the Anncsure
a slatement on the matiers speciiied in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

As required by section 22703) o the Act. we repon that;

(@)

{b

—

()

(d)

(v)

Except for the marter described in the Busis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we liave obtained
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledse and belich were
necessary tor the purpose of our audii.

Lxcept for the matter deseribed in the Busis for Qualificd Opinion paragraph, In our opinion
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
{rom our examination of those books.

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profic and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Exvepd for the gffect of the manier deseribed in the Bosis jor Qualified Cpiion paragraph, o our
opinion, the Balance Shect, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Stutement
comply with the Accounting Stundards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with
General Cireular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aftiirs,
wrespect of Section 133 o' the Companies Act, 2013,

On the basis of wrilten representabions received trom the directors as on November 340, 20173,
and tahen on record by the Bourd of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
November 30. 2013, Trom being appointed as a director in terms of elause (g) of sub-section (1)
ul section 274 of the Companies Act, 1936,

per Sandeep Sharma

PPariner

Membaership Number; 93377
Phice of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: March 21, 2014
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SRBEC&COLLP

Chartered Arcountants

Annexure referred to in paragraph 7 of our report of even date
Re: OMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited (“the Compuny*)

(i} (1) The Company has mamtained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and simation of fixed assets.

{b) All fised nssets were phy sically verified by the management in the previows year in accordance
with a planned progrimme of verifving them onece in two rears which, in our opinion, is
reasonable baving regard o the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
diserepaneies were noticed onsuch verifivation.

() There was no disposul ol s substantial pan of Nixed assets during the veur,

(1) () The management has conducted physical verilication of’ inventory al reasonable intervals
durmg the year.

(b) The procedures of physical verification ol inventory (ollowed by the management arc
reasonable and adequate o relation to the size of the Company and the nature of s business.

ct The Company is maintammg proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies wire
Y 15 g1 Y
noticed on physical verifeation

() () According o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans. secured or unsceured 1o companies, firms or other partics covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act. 1956, Accordingly. the provisions ot
clause (i) (a) w {d) of the Order are nor applicable 10 the Company and hence not
commented upon,

(¢} According (v information ind explanations given w us, the Company has not ke any loans,
sceured or unsecured from companies, finms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1936, Accordingly. the provisions of clause 4 (i) {¢)
1o (g} of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company and henee not commented upeH.

() I our opinion and accordmg to the information and explanations given to us. there is an
adequate infermal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of' its business, for the purchase of inventory and (ixed assets and for the sale ol goods. During
the couwrse ol vur audit, we have not obsernved any major weakness or continuing failure 10
correct uny major weahness o the internal control sy stem of the company in respect of these
areads.

(v) I our opinion. there are no contracts or arrangements that need 0 be entered  the register
maintained nnder Section 301 of the Companies Act. 1936, Accordingly. the pravision of
clituse (v) (b) of the Order 15 not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(v The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

Page §af 3
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SRBC&COILLP

Chartered Accountunty

{viD

(viii)

In our opimion, the Company has an internat audit system commensurate with the size and
natuwre of s business

We e broadly reviewad the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant w (he
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under scetion
2091y (d) of the Compantes Act, 1936, reluied 10 the mapufscture of Synthetic Rubber
primarily includes Siyrenc-butadiene rubber (SBR), Nitirile Buadine rubber (NBR) and Latex
and are of' the opimon that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained,

(x) () Undisputed statutory dues meluding provident fund. investor education and protection fund, or

employees” state insurance. income-tas, sales-ax, wealth-tax, service vy, customs duty,
excise duty. cess have generally been regulurly deposited with the appropriste authorities
though there has been a shght deluy in a fow cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees” state insurance,
meome-tax, weadth-lax. service x, sales-tax, custows duty. excise duty, vess and olher
undisputed statutory ducs were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

() According 1o the intormation and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax,

{x)

{x1)

siles-tax, wealth . service ax, customs duty, excise duty and cess which have pot been
deposited on account of any dispute,

Phe Company s accumubaed losses at the end of the tinancial year are less than Fiily per cent
ob s net worth and 1t has ot incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding
financial y car.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are ol the opinion that the Company has defaulted in repavient of interese
due o debenture holders during the year and prior year as mentioned in the whle below:

Nature of |);lv\!lll.'l;|“ | . Due date Date of Payment Amount |
Interest on debentures | December 3 L2010 Not paid 27221918
Iiterest an dcbcntui; . Mareh 3 l,2011 ' Not paid 26,63()-, 137
Interest on debentures June 30,2011 Not paid 26,926,027
Intercst on debentures | Scptember 30, 2011 Not paid 27,231,918

Interest on debentures | Decemiber 3 1.2011 Nut paid 27,221 018
inlesest un debentures March 31,2013 Ne paid 26,926.028
Interest on debentures June 30. 2012 Not paid 26,926,028

| nterest on debentures September 30, 2012 Not paid 27221918
lterest on debentures | December 31, 2012 Notpaid | 27231018
Iu_l.crc.-'.l on debentures I"t.'hrl;;;l:_\" 07. 2013 ""“_md"" “J 11243833 |

Fhe whole of such dues wore in arvears av on the balance shoer dare The Company his not
detiualied in repayment of dues 1o a financial mstitution or itk

Page 2uf 1
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SREC&COLLP

Chartarvd Accountanty

(xii)

(adil)

(Niv)

(xv)

{x¥i)

(xvil}

(avin)

(x13)

(xx}

{xX\1)

According 1o the informition and explaonations given 1o us and based on the documents and
records produced 1o us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities. ’

In our opinion, the Company is not a chiv fmd or a nidhi £ inutual benetit fund ¢ socicty.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 4ani) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003
(45 amended) are not applicable 1 the Company,

[n respect of dealingrrading in shares. securitics, debentures and other investments, in our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, proper records have
been maintamed of the tansactions and contracts und timely entries hiave been made therein.
The shares, securitics, debentures and other investments have been held by the Company, in
its own name.

According 10 the information and explanations given o us. the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans ahen by others from bank or financial institutions.

The Company did not have any tenm loans owtstanding during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overatl exanination off
the balunce sheet of the Company, we repont that no funds raised on shen-term basis have
been used for long-term investment.

I'he Company has not wade any prelerential allotment of shares 10 parties or companies
covered i the register maintained under scetion 301 of the Companies Act, 1936.

The Company has unsecured debentures oulstanding, during the year, on which no sceurity or
charge is required to be ereated.

The Company has not riaised any money through o public issue during the year.

Basad upon the audit procedures performed lor the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the lnancial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

Fors RBC & COLLP

Firm registration number: 32498218
Chiartered Accountants

oéh\_ukﬂlfn‘&f

per Sundeep Sharma

Parinur

Membership No. 93577

Place: Gurgaon
Pate: Mareh 21, 2014
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OMNOVY A Solutives [ndin Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 30 November 2013
(AL naunts are in Indisn Rupecs, unless ofiraise stided)

Nules 30 November 2013 30 November 20112
[11CH) {Rs.)
Equity snd litbilities
Shareholders' funds
Share cuapital 3 12,0001, 100,000
Reaerves and surplus + T4.60.93 691 (27,43 .46.072)
46,61,93,691 (27,42,46,072)
Nun-current liabilities
Long-term bomowings 3 - -
Cher long-term habilities 6 109,606,440 10373001
Laig-term provisions 7 #0.21L651 79.91.79
1.95,87,091 1LE5.66,791
Current lishilities
Shart-term bormow s b 17.43.27.870 264,560,128
Trade pazables y 19,35,48.955 1 7.58.64,704
Wiher current labilitics 7] 32.68.68.810 108,67 60,922
Shurt-1cm provisivns 7 ¥7.62.762 91 92,366
90,75,08,897 208,12,74,180
TOTAL 1,79.32.89.179 1.42,55,94,899
Ansely
Non-current assels
Fived sssets
ingible assets 10 SU,48.02.250 A3,-HE 394K
Initang bl assets 3l 338,278 24,75.761
Cupital work In progress 19.19.042 10,21.872
Nun-currenl insestiments 2 2528510 23.28.510
Laraits and ady smes 13 3.19.493 864 2.01,15.982
54,47.83,944 SHU3,00.214
Current asscis
lnvemorien 13 41,08.23,760Y 35,460,852 K08
Trale receivables 14 SL33.31.909 453550414
Cash nnd bank balagies 16 6,835,600 522 12539911530
Loan and udvanees 3 23,7786 973 304264353
124, 45015.235 1.23.62.93,685
TOYralL, 1,79,52.89,179 1.82,55,94,899
LSwnmary ol signilcan accounting policies ey

The scommpanying sotes are an mwegral part of the Bl stalcrments,

Az per our report ol even date

ForSRBEC K Co LLP

Firm Registralion No: 324982F

Chartered Accountinty

s 5=

< per Samleep Sharma
Puriner
Mumbcrship Mo
Plave. Liurgaun
Dote: March 21, 20114

e

Amip Kasmde Srivista
Director

For and vn behal 1ot the Board of directors o
OMNOVA Solutions ndia Private Limited

-

Dcepak Burfe
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OMNOVA Selutions India Private Limited

Sttement of prolit and loss for the year coded 3 November 2003

Al umounts ure in Indian Rupees. unless othe m tse stated)

Notes 30 November 2443 30 November 2002
(18s) {Hs.)

Cuntinuing operations
[ncome
Resenue from aperations {uross) 17 242020201 2,88,30,03,343
Less: exeise duy 208,25 508 27.24,98.1537
Revenne frow uperations (net) 1179737143 Lol 11,07.2006
Other Inguine I8 110,069,484 13.83.502
Toal resenue (1) 219,041,587 2,601,76,91,308
Expenses
Cust of raw mateeial and cumpoenents cansured 19 LA%39, 74,101 1.85.82.26.338
Slncrcu:‘.c)" decrease in inventaries of finished couds and work- 20 (2.09.90.2958) (12,76.95.036)
H-promeess
Fanploree benetits expense 2l Y9.55.78 200 Y 4760413
Other eapenses Ll 37.01,62,673 38,42.80,000
Prior perivd enpenses 23 {3(L03.807) 1,63.62.451
Totul (51 2,13,77.18.278 2,42.59,34.416
Larnings before interest, G, depreciation and 5,36.88 309 19,17.58,152
amortisntive (EBITDA)Y (1)-(11)
Depreciation und mnortisution eApense il 3938030 6,161,707
Fhrgnee costs 23 5.38.67.235 15.91,73, 830
Luss belure tan (5.95,00,237) {2,90,99,345)
Tar exprnses
Curreat ax - i.14.03.354
Totul tax expense - 1,14,03,354
Lass Tor the yeur (3.93.60,237) {4.015.02,739)
Loss per shire [Nominad vabue per shure Ry, 10 k1] -
Nmulnher zﬂl'.’.l: Is, Lt : ( 27 ) 030
Basic and diluted (Contputed on the basis of Tos - fur the aeur)
Summary of signilicang accounling policics 2.1

The accumpany ing notes are an integral part ot the fnancial statements,

AS PUr our report ot even date

ForSRB O & Colpp
Firm Repistratiun No: 32498213
Chartered Acvountants

7 jgi,—'—’_—-_-f-_‘

per Samlccﬁ Sharn
ariner
Memburship N,

Plave Gurgweon
Date: Marchk 21, 214

For and vn behadf ol the Board of dicectors ol
OMNOVA Solutons India Private Lintited

Anup Kumbr Seivastav

I3rector

Beepak Diigl



OMNOVA Solutivay Indae Private Linuted
Cash Flow Stitement for the year euded 30 November 2013
{AH amuounts are in bndian Bupees, unless othenvise stated)

30 November 2013
{Rs.}

30 November 20102
{Rs.)

Cuxh fieny from aperating activities
et profitiioss) alter tax

Adpustment 1o reconsile profiv attor rex fo nst cavh fow s

Peprecintion and ameortisation
Prior period expenses

(5,95,60,237)

5,93.81,311
{30,05.807)

(4.05,112,739)

6,16.81.707
1,63.02.431

R T O K I O I U O U A ¥ O O O N O U U O T A U O T LR T TR

Intercst expnae 3.38.67.233 14,93.87.059
Unrealized rarcign exchanae loss 2.55.00.557 32,54.312
Proviston lor tasation - 1,14,03.3534
Interest ineurne (6. 710) (3.70u}y
Excess prnisions writien back (35,40,82%) t1,22,8035)
Lassdprofiy) on sale o fiaed asscs 1,160,313 t1.21,187)
Provistun for bed debty 3280670 1367107
Operaing profit befure working capital changes T,60,42,703 20,47,30.329
Movemunty inwarking capital

Irereise in trde payables 1.48.30,443 1,47.43,034
Increasedidecresse) o vther current habalitics (16.18.763) (2,77,50417)
(decrease) Inerease in shon wem prosisions (4.29.604) 1,92.846
[ncrease in fong-term provisions 628801 94,09, 180
Inerease in other long twerm Babilipes 391459 1.05,76,001
Iné reasestdeureased in short lerm Joan and advances 36085024 {(0.21,97,193)
{Inercase)/ e rease in tnwde receavables (6. 29.72,054 FAS 65,404
(hirerease) ininy entorics (0,21, 42.961) (12,6K,58,233)
(irereasel in long-1erm loans il ady ances {38.79.482}) {63.48.551)
Cush geneeated from operitions 1.53,38,204 6,11.12,098
Prior period items J003. 507 (1.63.02.431
Threat tanes paid 3,606 1.14.03.354
Net eash How From operating actisities (A} 1.83.38.345 33346313
Cash Mows from investing activitics

Purchase of fised assets, including CW1IP (73,04.772) (53,106,200}
Proweeds from sale of tised assets 79,740 32TA23
liv st tn bunk deposits (has mg origioul makarity penod . 50.00,000

more than three months)

Redemptian ot bank depusits (hasang craginal natunts S0.00.000)

pentod 1ore than three mnths)

Interest received 60,716 3. 700
Net eash used ininvesting activiries (1) {72.64.310) (79,775,481
Cash flows Truam linancing uetivities

Procecds trom shont-lerm borrowinzs L34 0342,.472 3,19,99,243
Ruepayment of short-lerm bormas inus {1.37.20.33 804) (8.532.03, 119
Intereat pand (347911411 L5805,
Net cash used i Binancing activities (() (6,63,04.637} {(7,71,67,207)
Net inereaseddecrense) in eash and cash cquivalents (A+B+() (3.54,30.008) 15,010,906, 135}
Erfect of exchange ditflerences on cash 8 cash cquivalents held in forcicn

LIITENCY :

Cush und cash cqunatents o the beginnmg ol the sear 12.59.49]. 050 1734 87,563
Cashamd casly eepuivalents wt the eod of the yeure 6,85.60.522 123991154




QMNOVA Solutions [ndia Private Limisert
Cash Flow Statemicnt for the year ended 3¢ Noyvember 2013
(AN wmownts are in Indisn Rupecs, unless ulbemhise staen)

’ 30 November 2003 30 November 2012
{Its) {Rs.)

Components of cash amd cush equivalents
Cush und chegques on fnd

With banks

= Wi edrrent geconunt

Tolal Cashiund esh equivalents | nose 1n)
Sumpany of significant sccounting policies

84,129 1.73.462

0.64,76.393 123817 6y

685,610,522 12.39.91,136

/g’%u\:iu p
per Sandeep Shirma

As perour report ol even dite

ForsRBC & Ce LLY
Firus Registration No: 3249821
Clartered Accountants

o
i

Purtner

Membership No.
Mace: Gurgaon

Initer March 20, 2014

-
Anup Kanue Srivastiva
Director

For and on behalf of the Boasrd o1 Dircctors of
OMNOVA Soluions Indue Peovate 1imied

Deepak Bitpe
Phector
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ONMNOVA Solutions India Private Limited
aSates o fimncial stadements for the sear endel 30 Novenber 2013 .
CAN smiunts ase in Indian Rupess. uidess athicrs i stated) :

1. Corpurate informatimg
OANUVA Salutions India Pavae Limited (the © smpany ™y {formerly known as Eliokem Idia Privike Limied) is o subsidiury ol OAMNOV A
Subutions India Franze Holding SAS. Franee, o Conmpany icorportod under e laws of the Kepublic of Francs in 2001,

2, Basis of preparation

The financial sttements of the compity have bevn prepased in accordance with generally accepied uccounting principles in Indiu (ndia, GAAPR).
The compuny hus prepared these Faascial Stacments 1 wamply a0 all muwterid respeats with the accounting stukdards notilied ender the
Companics (Avamming Standardsy Rules, 2006, (e anended) and the refevam provisions of the Compunics Act. 1956, Tie financial skdements
Jane beun prepared on an acerual busis und under e Nisterical cost consestion except it vise of assers fir which provision e fmpairment is
made and revaluation is carmied oa.

The scomunuey policies lupted 1n the prepasiation o finang il statements e consistant w itk thase of previows year.
20 Siesificant awcuunting pulicics

() e o extimates

The prepacstizg of fnancisl statements in contoriaty witlh Indew GAAL requires mansgement 1o mahe Judgenents, cstimanes and assonpions
that aifeet the reported amaunts ol ncowes, expatces, wsacts and liabilitics and disclosare of contingent fiabitities wl the date of the Gnuueiat
staberienis and dhe nesulis of operations during the fepaming pezingd Although these catimates are hased upon manaeernent’s best knowledge or°
currcab evems und actions, uncenaingy abouas these o ssumplions and estimates could result in the oueomes reyquining a material adjustment w ihe
LUTY M A0unts of tets or iabtlities m lutune Presis

{h) Tangible Gyed avsets

Fived ussets ars stmed s ciast et of accumelated dugncviation und accunmulated impainment logses, i any. e cost comprises of the purchise
price. borrow iy costs i capitali Zaion criteria ane mel and dircetly annbuiabe vos ol bringing the wssel © its working condition for its intended
et Ay il discounts and rebates ane deducied m arriving at he porciise price

Subscquent expeaditure related 1w an item of Gived ussct js addad to it buok value anly il it inoreases the Fature boreefits from the evisting agset
beyorud its presivush wssessed stundund ol pestivimance. All sher EAPenaes o8t enishing tined assets, ncluding day-to-day epair aml maintenine:
expetditre and cost of ieplicing parts, e clia ged o e stement of profis and loss for the period during which such expenses sre incurred.
Fined assets under construction. advimees paid towards acquisition of fixed assets iund cost o assets mot put i use befive the year end, ure
dischised ax capital work in progress.

Guins of fosses urisig rom de revognition ol itved teats are metsund @ e differemce betwioon the st disposal proceeds and the carryving
Wl ol e isset and are recopnized in the statenen o peobitand foss when the asua is duerecornized.

) Ihepreeiation on tangible Gued assets
Deprociation an tived assets, eveept Jasehold s emeits, S calcubsed onasizaighi-lne bisis using the fates armived an based o the usclid
Ives estimied by the management or those prosenbsd under tie Seledule NV 1o the ¢ ompanes Act. 1936, whichaver is higher

Nt coting bolow Ra. 30000 age 1ully deprecisted n the year of purchase.
The company Bias usud the follow e 1 tles 10 pros kde duprecaation on its fived assots

Sanet ) Rittes (S1.0])

Caunputers 16.2]%

Uflice wyuipurent 8500,

Famiiun: nod listees 930,

Vohioles 0 50

1 casediold irmpros wineus A% or e e bused
o e poraod

Hubdarig 3 835%

Plant & Machinen Q044,

| eieichold land ] B2 sy

[nthe tpuien of thy managegent, these tatcs wprownt e wsctul bives o such teets
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OMNOVA Salutions India Frivate Limited
Nudes to Bnancial staternents for the year caded 30 Noyember 2003
(AN amounts ure in Indian Rupecs: undess wihor ise siated)

2.1 Significant accounting pulicies (continued)

foy Intnngilie assets

hangibile dssets acguired separaicly are measurcd on il recugnttion at cost. Follow ing initial recogruuon, wiangible wssets are camed sl cost
less accumulated wnonization md wecumulued impanuent fosses, if ey Inernally peneried intingible essets, wacluding copitalized
duvelopuent costs, are not capitalizcd and expenduure is retlected in the statement of profit and Joss i the year in which the expendine s
invuired.

Intangible issets are wnontized on 1 straight line baats over the eatimated wieful coonomstic hic. The compuny uses a rebuttable presumption that the
wweful life of un intangible asser will not eyeevd 1en yoars frum the dare when the asset s wailable for use, 1 the perauiive evidence exists 1o the
affuet that wseful lite of an inLangsble asiet exceeds i years. the company amontizes e ntengible asset vver e best estimate of i15 wsatul hire.
Such inungible assets and Totagible wssets nat st wvarbable for use e tesied for impairment anmwdly. cither individually or a1 the cash-
gencrating unil lovel, AN other intungible wswets aie ssersd-for smpainnent whenever these s an indicaion thal the mengible wsser way
mnpuured.

e wimorttestion penod and the amontizabon methiod are reviewed at heast ot each financial year end. I the eapectad waelul hiv of the asset is
sipniticantly difterent from previsus estinites. the woenisaion perd is cranged eceordingly. I there dus been asignifivant chunge in the
eapiented griern of veonowic benctits from the anset, the amarlization muethod s changed 1o reilec the chusged patern Such clunges are
sccounted for i accardince with AS 5 Net Pralit or Lass for the Period, Prior Period Ttems and hunpes in Accounting Poboivs,

Giaing o losses anishg: o derecagunion of un intungible asset ae meastred as e diflerence between the ner disposal procecds and the carmy ing
autennt of'the asset and are recognized i the stateman ol profi snd foss when the mset is dherccugmicn,

Goodwill

Al the e of aiguisiion of the business, the ditictenee between purclase price and the e valug of ssets as at the date of scquisition 1
acemied toras gondwill. Goodwill 33 wmortized wing the straizit-line method over a periud of five years

Salivwa

Custs relating W computer seflware ane capitalazed and amostezed on straight line basis over their useful lile ol 3 yuurs, as teghically wssyssed,

(e} Lemaes

TEhere ihe company is fesser

Fumce leases, wliel chicetivedy transivr w0 the ¢ wmnpany substitially all e dsks and benelits incidenial 1o ownership of the Leasaed weny, are
capitalized arthe kowerof the Liie value and prosent s alug of the nimamuim leuse pavments af the fnception of 1he leitse wnm aod disclosed 15 desod
usacts. Latse payiicnts e apportioned blween the il tharges und reduction ol the Jease Tobiliy fused va the implicel e of peluri,
Fovanee churges ane chawged direaly agmnst incame o ininaguinent tees, oeal charges and oflwr initial dircad costs are vaptladiseid.

It there s no rewsonable certainty tha tie Cumpany will obtun the ownership by the amd of the lease wnn, captadieed leased wsaets wre
depreciated vver the shorter of the estimated wscind Bte of the assetor the lease 1o

beises where the lessor eifvetvely retaing substantiedy all the risks and benelits ol uvnereshitp ol the Jeased item are classificd s vperating leses,
Uperating lease payments ane cognized s an expense netine Profit and Loss iccount o a steaght-line basis over the lease i,

(£) opairment of tangibic and intangibile usscts

e company wssesses il cach reparting date whethier hons i an idication that an assct gy b impared. 1any indication eadsss. or when annwat
PRI WSt Far e assel 5 tequired, the cnmnpaery csturies the aset’s recoverable smount, Al isset's seeoverable wnount is i higher ut
an isset's or vish-peneriling vnit's (COU) ot sdling price autd s value in s The recovershle amount s determined for an i scbis] set,
undess the asset does nol generate cash indlows that an: largely wdependent of those from other asscts ur groups of wssets. Where the carry g
amanit of un vt or U GUH eveceds its recaserable aunoont, the aaset is considenad snpaired swd s written down wits recosesable anwount, In
assessing sulue in use, e otinated e cash ows are discontted o their present vatue using o pre-tan discount rite that retlects corrent
manhet wscessments of the time vl o money and the rashs st to the asset, In determining net selling price, recent masket transacuons are
faheit Into wevnn, 10 avmlahle 1 e such transactions can be identificd, an appropeialke vaduiation moded is used,

e company bases ity mmpaiment celeulatinn on Jotuled budpets and forecast calcudstions which are prepard separalely tor cach of the
CORIEN 3 caabi-peieranng wints by which the indivadial assets are allocated. §hese budgery and fureust caleulatons are gencrally vovering a
penod of five years, For longer penods, a bing won crowth saie i caloulated and applicd o project future casti thows atier the Gilh sear. Aller
imprdrmment, depiveiativn 1s provided un the neised o s i piount of the asset ovr 1t remaiming wsefil hic
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OMNOVA Salutions India Prisate Limied :
Notes t financial siarements for the ycar eaded 30 Nosember 2013
AL wmnuntz are b fodrn Rupecs. unless othcrs g slated)

2.1 Sigailicanl avcounting policies (continuedy

An assessia it is made o each reporiing dute s i wheaber tiore 1 any indication s previvusly recosnized inprment losses muy o longer
eniat or oy e deervesed. I sach sdicatnn exisis, e company' vstimates the wsseet’s or cisfi-generating unics recovorable amoont. A
previously recopnizal impassent Joss is reverssd onby 11 diere hus been a changs . the assumptions used © determing the asset’s recuverable
wmoun! e the Lst impwement s was recogmized, The resersal s Bimied so tha the carmving anoun of the wsset docs not exceed ity
recincrable amauat, nor exceed e carm g amount that would have been Jetermined, ner of depreciaiion, had no dmpaitment foss been
roeognized for the assel i prior sears. Such reversal s recogniad in e statement of profis and Joss unless the asser s carricd at o revalued
amnoual, in wiich case fhe reversal 1 nsied as a nesaduaion erease,

There was no impaimicnt durmg year ended 30 hovember 2013 and 30 Noveinber 2012

() bosestinents
Investments, which are readily realizabic and mioaded 1o be held for not more than one vear from the date on which such uscstmeots ure made,
are v lassiled as corrent s esiments. Al wilier oy catm s ate clisailied as lung-lenn i Gsiments,

On anitd recognitton, olf investipents are e ot wost T he vost vomprises purchise price and dircerly atrbutable wequisition charges sucias
broterage, fees and Julivs

Current invsestments ane carried in the financal Sarcnens a lower of st and Lar salue determined on s individual imesunan busis Lung-ienn
invustments e arried al cost, Howeser, provision ior dinunution i s giue s made 1o recogmze 3 dechne alfwr than tonpotary in e vadue of the
s cstients.

Ui disposal 0f i s estmunt, die ditercnce hamen its ing amount and net disposal proteeds 5 chaged o credited 1o the statement of prolit
and fuss

() v casorics

Raw materials, pucking matcrials and stoses and spares are vidied a1 hinvee of cost and set realizable vadue, However. mateials and other it
bl for use e production of investtories are ot writien down behnw cost i the Timshad products i which they will be meorporaied wre
enprected o be sl it or abos e cost. Cot s determincd on o wetghted average basts

Work-m-progiess and Gnishied ponds e valued at dower of cost and et reafizable value. Cost imehedes ditect matoriats and lubour and u
propertivn of imanuiiounig ovorhwads based on nemaab opersing ¢ iy, Cost of finshed goods wrddudes excise duey and i< deternnned on a
wutphted iverage buses

Nedraabicable value s the L"H.:'.Il!ltll scHing price inthe ordiran wourae el busness, Jeis citimiatd custs oF completnen mal eatimated costs
[ b {
nevensany W e the sale

(i} Revenue cecopnition
Rescie 1 meeopnized to tine extent than it s probable thay the coonomie benutits will tlow 1o the company wmd the roenue can be relibly
mastsured. The oilossing speciliv ecigmition chivna must aiso be mt belore rovenoe 1 fecognized,

Saale of ks

Revenue from sale of gouds 15 recogmzed when sl the sipmiticant msks aod rewards of wwnersiup of the goads hive been pasised 10 the buyer,
usiadly on dufivery of the goods. The company vollocts sutes Liaes id +alue added tases (VA ) on behalf of the gosemmient and, dwrctiore, these
e not ceonomic benefits Howing 1o the company o, they are excluded Trom revenue, Excise duty deduetedd from wevenuee tgross) s the
amenat ahat b incloded inthe resenne @ooss) iad oot the coune amount ot liabality arising during the year.

fnterest

Interest iwome is recognized un a tme proportion basis whmg into aceeunt the ot outstanding and the applicabhe interest rate. et
meomu i mclided under the hed “other meome” in 1w staement of protitand loas

Dirvicheends

Y idond uwsee 15 revogntecd whuon ibe: company s caht to receive dividend is establishiod by the reporting date.

G Borresang Costs

Pirrosang cuats direatly sttridusable 1o the aoesiten, constructon or prsdictin of an asset that necessinify takaes o subatantiab period of o (o
et reudy dor s vnded e of sale are copitidizad e part of e cost of the respective ussel, Al other bogran iy cosls g espensad in 1w period
they st BOrmon ing costs consist o intere st and stk vinls that an cattiy fcnes i comnvetion wih the borrowing wf fnds.
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OMNOVA Sulutons ladia Private Limied
Nunes to Ninancial statements for the year ended 30 November 2003
CAL sawonnts wre in Indian Rupees, anless ethonw e aated) .

2.0 Signilicant accounting policics {ventinued)

(h} Forcign curreney trmsaciiony

D Initia) Reeoonition

Foreign curmency transactions s recorded in the iwporing curreney, by applying 1o the Turaign cumency amount the exchange rate bawesn the
repotting correney and the loragn correiey o the dare of e transaehut.

2 Comensien
Foreign currency monetasy ums are retranslated aamg the exchange sate prevaibing at the reporting date. Nonsmonetan items which are carried in
terms ol hisiorical cost deoominated ma foraign cumency are roported using the exchange rate st e date ol e ranssetion. Nor-monciny iems
which e tarried o fdr value or othar simidar valuzton denomingted in w forvign currency. are translaicd wsing the exchange rae o ihe date when
stch valug was deternnned,

. Eaclamge Differences

brom accounting perwds, cotmeneing onoor afier 7 December 2000, the company accounts lar oxchangs dillizences wrising on
translition seitlentent D] lonin CcUrrency Histctary 1ents s below:

b Pxclange ditfenances ansing an oo mateeany ilem that, i substance, formt part o the Company's tet investiwnt in o gon-incgrd lorcign
operative & aciumulated i forcign curency nskation wserve in e fineedal staements until the disposal of e net invesuneat, On the
isposal e such net invesiment, i cumnlative amonnt of the exchange diflerences which have been defirrad and which rebie t that investment
s recognized as mcomme or as expenses in thie same perivd in which the gain or loss an dispasal is recognized.

i Exchumge dilfrences arising on longteom freign corrency monetary ilemns redaied 0 acquisition ol s fised st are capitalioad s
depreciated over the remiining usetil BE o the asser, For this purpose, the company treats 34 Rrigm monens e as “Josg-lenn loreien cureney
monctury it i i has 4 e ot 12 months or more wt the date of s rigination,

3 Eachange dulusenves wising o other fong-tenn furegn curmency imonctars s are secimulated i the F orcign Conenes Motctuny Blan
Frmstaten Ditlorene Account” und amortized eyver the romiining Ble o) the concemed motenry dem,

L Allother exchange diffencnees are revognizcd as invome or s expenses in the peried nwhich they arise,

Hedging of nionctay axsces aned licbalite s -

Exchange dillercices un hedging contracts are soignizad i the statenent of profit and Toss i the perivd in which the exchange rates cange,
Ay luss arising on cancellation or reewd of a Grwand exchange contract is recognized as income or a5 expense fr the peniod. Protit ansing on
s coniracts are nol recognised.

Uy Fxport Benefiny
Lxport benetits under variows suhemis of Gavemnwat o Indke sre accounted on acorual bisis on the basis of exputs maasde and the saue of
napins masbe wbe made theee agiinst,

{m) Retirement and othee cmployee henelits

Retement benctit i the form ul provident Ruad 3 0 detined contributon schome. Contributions pay able to the provident fund are chargad Lo the
profic and foss account during the perfod wwhich the cmployee enders the reluted servive. Thie company il no sbligition, atber tian e
conlrthulion iyable o the prosiident fund.

.
Vi compuny operstes . detined beglie plan lor wa eniplis wes, vizs, gratmiiy. Ui costs of providing benetits umber tus plon aie detenmned on the
basts ol actoarst) vaduahon it cich year-end Separate actarial valuation 35 iuricd out Toe each plan using the projected unit credst methud.
Aatsiariul gans wnid bosses tor the datioed benetin plan are recognized in i tie perid m which they oceur in the stilement o probit and lass.

Superanniation fund s w detined contribution scheme. The Company commbistes @ som equisalent 1o certain percentage aof busic oty ol the
shygshle gl cidre eimployeey” salary 10 Supuranioation. Fusml administered by irusiees and managed by an insurance company, 1he
Contpauny recogiizs sucli comtribution ws an espense 2s and when mesrred, There e no wther ablizations other thin contnbutions payable & the
nind

Avcumulated Jeave, which s cxpentad b be ublizal wintun the rest 12 montin, is reated s shom-tenn empboyee beneiis e company measires
the vapouted cost of auch abaences s b addinenad smoent that it espeets o pay as o result of e uaused cotitlement that has accumulated o the
rputing date.
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OMNOY A Sulutions Indis Prisate Limiged
Notey te finunciad statements Tur the yee coded 30 November 2003
£ wsounts g i bndinn Ropees. unless othiens v stited)

L1 Significant aceounting pulicices (continucid)

Phe Campany treats accumulated Teing expeeted 1o by carmied forward beyond taebve monibis, sy forg-tem conployee benstit for measurement
purpuacs. Sugi Jong-lenm compensated absences are prinded tor based on the acuzareal vabuation using the projected unit credit mabod of the
seapeand, Adteariad painsfosses e immediately tahen 0 the staternent ol profit and foss and are not deferred. The Compeny presents the emire
lenve as g curment habuliny in the hulanee sheet, sinee it dovs 101 heve an uncondittonal right to déder its scitbement for 12 monihs afier the repuerting

[} Income taxes

Fax exjrense comprises corrent and deferred tin Curecet sneomestas B meisurad at the amount expected 10 be paid 1o the s authoritics in
accurdinee with e Incume-ts Act 1900 enaewd o ndia and s Taws provadimg in the ropective tas jurisdictions where the company operaes,
The tax rates and x Jaws wsed W compute the anoanl are thase that are iaeted or substaninely enuted, o the reporting date: Current income
1ax relabutg (o nems revogiized dircethy ncegeiny o recognuzed meguity and not in the stutanent o prolit and foss

Detervd meome taves relbect the mpuct ¢f ooy diflerences between axable mevine and accouniing inceme erignating during the coment year
and reversal of nming dilferenees for the carber years, Brelered wxos measured using the 1ax mtes ad e b Lsy enacted or substaninely
enacted ot ee seponting date eferned incume v rebating foitems recogrzed dircaly ety s weogaized inequity and not in the stlemenn of
prubitand foss

Deterred tax Dabibities wne revogniocd tor il tovebile nming ditferences. Deerred s asets we recognized dor deductible timing ditlerences only
to e entent tha there s reasensable conataty that snificicar huture taxable waeome will be available against wlireh such deterred g anscts can by
seallzad, In situitions where the company has winksinbed depreciatron oc casy Torward L Josses, all defumred s assets ate secognized onty al
there s virual cortainty sugguiicd by conviacig o idenee Hhag ey e be realized aganst fuiure tisable profits.

A ech reporing dat, the company re-assesses unecogmzed defirred s wascs. U recognizes utirecognized deferrod ay et to the uxtent it o
Itzi become reisonably comam or virtualy certan, as U case may be, that suliictent futuie taxable meone will be avinkable against which such
detemed ta wsiels can be realised

The carry g wmaunt of deferred T sy are resiowed i ceh reponing date. The company writes-down the camying amomnt of defomed s
agscl o thie oxtent flial it is vo funger reasenably cortam or vingally certain, g5 the case may be, that sullicient fetung tivable meome will be
usathable azainst which deterred tan issar can be ealizacd, Any such writeedinvn 15 roversed 1o the auent that it becomes reasonably cenuin or
virtnally vertan, s the ¢ase may be, that salViciont finere taxable meome sl he availible.

Defomed ty assets and deteored s Tatnbaics e oflia, i a legully cndorocable right exists o scl0fi curment iy issets against cureent tax
Habiletes wind the e terred Loy saects amd deterred Rives rebat o the same tasable ety and the same xaton authorits

Mamum wdiermate L (M MA L) piad D yasr s Ciaged to the statament ol profit and Toss as courrent tas. e company recogiizes 3A L credit
avanluble s a asset only 1o the extont that thers v comvincing evidence tat the company will pay nonmal inasbe 1ax during the specified period,
Le the perived for which MAL credit 3s allowed 1 be crried fonvard. T the year e which the eompany recogmzes MA L credit s an assct in
aceorifnee with the Guidanee Note wn Accaunueg Tor Credit Availablie nrespect of Manimun Aleenaive Tax ander the Incame-ay Ac, 1960,
e saieh wsact iy crcated by way of credin o the stitement of profit and luss and shown s “MAT Credst Falthement ™ The conjuny wviews the
“ALAT cocdst ennitloment” asset al vl ieporting shate and writes donan the asset to the extent the eoiagany dos nob i e cominicing ey dene: that
i wilk gy nonnad ta dusioe the soeditivd period.

(1} Sepment repurting

Ldeatilication of swegments:

T Cumpany hus andy one reportiable husimuess segimeat of Synifictic Rubber. The zealy sis of geographics) segments s based on the location o
LTS

linter segment Transfers:
Flecre are na nitvr-seginent (nnstees

lscativn of conamon costs:
S e Cunmpany bus only o reportabl Tusin: o sgment ol Ssithene Rubber, there 15200 allocation ot vt

Segment Policices:
Lhe Comprany preparcs ity sement idotmetion @ osnformny with ihe souennung policios adoptad or greparing and preseanng the lnanel
staterrents of the Company as o wiole,
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OMNOVA Sulutions Jadin Private Limited
Neves 1o fimancial stitements for the yeur emded 30 November 21 3
AT srauns are i dndian Rupess, enless aih 3w st d)

2.1 Signiicunt arcounting pulicies (cantinued )

(1) Esrnings per share

Basie ewrmangs por share are culeubued b ddiv iding: 1the net profit or loss for the year attributibl, o equaty shiwahiolders fatter deductiny utinibutabic
tves) by the weighied weisge nember o] wyuiey ~hares ousstanding duzsing the period, anly paid gty shares e neaed &5 o fraction of an
st shire fo the anient tha vy are cititled o participate 0 deadends relusive w g fully puid equiny share during the reporting petiod e
wiighted average number af eyuity shares s tandee Jusing tie period is adjusted for events such as bonus s, bunus clement in a rights 153ue,

Aare split und reverse shig split (eonsulidanog of sharus) that by e chumged the number of cguity shares vulstanding. without u vumesponading
chatere i wsources

For e pumpose of calculaime dilewd v s prer hare. the net protit or oss 1o he period wirtbutable 10 ey sharchoeldaes wnd the wahicd
i eduge pmber o shares outstanding dury the potiodare adjusted for the crieets oF all dilutive potenial cquiky sheres

) Pro iy

A prove

s Teeogiised when an enterprise b o present abhgatan as 3 wsalt of past event, it is proohable that an outlow of esoirees: will b
requined 1o setile the ablicativn, in respeet ol swhich a relinble estiniste cn be sade, Frin sions are gol disvounted wits present value and wive
deterinmed based on beat cstumate requinad 1o seitie 1he abligaon b the babuice sheet date, These wie reviewed at cach habiztw sheet dute il
adjnated turedlect the cuttent Best ey linnics,

Where the casipuny expedts sonwg or ail of o s isiun o be seamburd, e reimbirsement 1s Feniiniond U5 separate st hut anly when 1he
reinbursemnt is vty corain, ' ENPetia rekaing Lo provisivn is presented o the statesient o) prolitand loss net of any reinshursemct,

tr) Contingent Jeshilidies

N contingent liability 15 31 posaible obligution Heat arises from past evants whiose exsstenge wall be contitmad by the pecsrency or non-ueaarivce
OEOe o8 mare focetisin fature events buyoned the control o ihe canpany of i presutt ehlgation et is oot weogmesd because it is nol probable
that air outlaw of resoveey will he rauired ook the obhgation. A contizait lubibity also arises inovtrenich e Gises 1 ite there o

fabity that cannot b recognized becoise 3t canmat Le weasund edrbly 1 he company doey Bot FeCHinge ik Contuzent labibis bk decloss its
exestenve in the Hiuncial seacients,

50 Cashi o cash citivalents

Cash it cash cyuivadents tir (e purpies of Lash thow stiement vomprise ciash at bank and in band aad shorn IeEng ins s tments wath e oiginal
ity ol e months or fess,

(6) Meisurement of ERUIDA
As perntiad by the Guidines Note on the Ruvised Sedude § Do the Companies At 1950, 1he vy b cleced 1o prosent cannngs belose
wdcrest s, depeeciatan ad wnotization (FBELD A e i separale i tem on the Faes of the stuemon ot prolat and fuss The Company

meastees FBELDA i the by o profie (s rons contnnang operatons. s imcsurement, he company dovs wot dudy depreciation wnd
amortization expense, Hnane costs snd G AP, )

e nentionelly Lot blank)
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QXN0N A Subbtions bindia Privare Bindted
Notes (o Ninancial statements for the year eaded 30 Novemsher 2003
LA amsuas are i Indian Rupees, unless atherwias staed)

3. Share cupital

30 November 2013 30 November 202

R TTTTL Pl el PR LT DR = . s} (o)
suthurised shares {Nu,)

12UA0 0G0 November 2082 3040} equiy share: of B8, Hieuch 120500000 S bui
Isswed, sobscribed and fully paid-up shares {Nu.)

1 2016000130 Novenber 20120 10,0001 cquiny shares of Ks. 10 cach 12,00 Akl 1,00.041k
Toral issueds subseribied sl lully paid-up share capitad 12010000 HHVRTLT]

i Revonodiation of the shares vulstunding a1 the beginning und at the end of the reporting period

Eyuiry shares

30 November 2013 30 Nuvember 2012
Nen, (118 Nu. 11,0
Avthe beginmng ol the perd 10,060 [ROXU#] 141 Dérdy 100,00t
Lisued during the period td) 1. 2000 12,0000 430 g G
Outatnnding at the emil of the period 120, 1 UiH 1 2.6 1 (HI 3 b R 1,00, k)

b Terms/eighes attached to cguily shares
Ihe Company Bas wids ooe obass of equity shates having o pan vadoe o Ks 10 per share. Fach holder of cqanty shites s entatled o one vote per share,

Ihere wee achsdends pasd o cguity shaschabders dogng the year esded 30 November 2003 and year anded 50 November 2012

I the cvent ot Tiguiitation of tie Company, tke holders of vguity shares will be entitled 10 feeeive remaining nssets ol the Company, The distibstion will be
A1 praportion o e numbes of cquity shares bald by the sharcholders.

. Shures bekl by boldingfullimaté haldiog company and/or their subsidiariesfassociales
that ol e cyuiy shares sued by the company, shates held by its hulding company, ultinrate halding compiny and their subsidianesansocntes are as
Diclens

30 Nvvember 2003 30 November 2012

T = AhEEon e o e (s (Hx.)
UIMNOVA Salutions todia Prance Holding SAS, Fance, (Holdmg Company)
12099 130 November 201 209,949 equity shares oF Rs, 10 cach bully patd up 12,1040 S PRI

i Susrewade unmber ol shires sued for comsiderstion other than cash during the five yeurs immediotely preceding he repuos finze dute:
3 November 2003 0 Nosember 2002
o, Na,
Fauiy sluares adfonicd v ooy ersaos ol Tully campulseily convenible L2000 iy -

dehuntures ireler pule 5)
e Dewails uf sharehlders holdiog more thin 5% shuares in e comprny
Nanmie of the sharcbholder JU Novenmber 2103 30 Noveniber 200012
hY™S Yo Tolding in the N %o holling in the

vlasy chuss

Foguny shaves of R W cach futh paid up

VANV Selutions Indsa France 1,30 U2, 59Y ORI 9,494 D gLty
Hubding 3%, France, hulding

Campinny

As per reconds of the Company. melading us sogestes of sharchulders? wienburs and other duclarations tecerved trom shurchohdas sopandimg bonebual
inteied, Ui sbove sharcwlding raesents bat legal and beseficnl ownesstnps ol shares

4. Reserses wind surpins

Ju Sinvemibier 2003 30 Nowembier 2012
{1x.) za {Hs.)

Securilies pEeminm acconnt

16 tha frer 01}

Lalane as por the List hnascal sicocms
Adid. proconem on cin ession b tekly
computsariiy cimyerible dehentures.

145 L0000 o

{ lusing Balaner

Surpbusi(detivin in e stabcment ol pralit aend foss

Efadanue s per st fiendial sttemarls (27 5. 40.022) (233843330
Laras fur the year AR IIRAY] [EIARIREL Y
Netsheficit in the statement of profid and lows (33900, 30Y) (27,43, 46,072)

T4H003 64 |

Fotal veserves wind surplus
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CRMNONLA Solutions Ladon B riv e Linnted
Nutes w finaacial sistements fur the sear ended 310 November 2013
Al amounts are m ndin iupecs, unfess olieruase stucd)

. Lung-rerm borrowings

Sanscurrent purtion Current maturitics
30 November 2083 0 30 Novewmbrer 2002 30 Nivember 2003 3 Sosember 2142
= (Re.} [1LEN] 11 (s}
[helentures
FhE(Previous Year FL0001000) [0 - - 20,60 00,000
Fully compubsenly conserible deboniures of' '
Hs 100 easls (sevuredy
- - 1,200 tHb.(HHY
The aboy e siount includes
Secured biironwangs - - - 1,20.06,00 Qi
Unseerred borrowings - - - -
Amaunt disciesed undor thie bead
“other cunan Teabilizes” (note Y - - - 1,20 00 00 Hun.
Seb ot - - - -

o Fach deburituse shall be converted by 1 Eguity slase of R W cach at any tame w the aptiont ol the dzbenture holder wilim o penod of 5 vears from
i dte o alloment viz, February § 2008 aud fahog v hich they shall he vompubenty vonversed e equity shares as atoresad ol 1he expiry of # years
from e e ol allorent I curtent vear o expiny vt 5 v o (18 February 2003, cach debomuare lis beeen convenied into | Fyuy duate of Ry 16 -
carch b o proesin of B 590 per share dunng the v

O L2hey Tomy-term liabilities

30 Novesiber 2003 30 November 2002

{Hs.) {1~
bease onalisitn resci e 291459 -
Sotunty deposits 146 75 001 148,735,000
1L.0Y. 0, 430 LIS, 75,141
T Provisinns
= i Langt-term Shart-term
N November 005 0 November 2002 30 Neveanber 2003 30 Novemiber 2002
(K] (s (Rs.} [1108]
PProvisiug for empliy e beg s
Provision b grannty (reder vite 28) Ké. 2ioz1 79.51,790 16,30, 000 [LERVTRV T
irovision tor keave lenclils 1742767 #1.92.366
Total o K3, 20651 79.4%41,790 R7,61.762 91,9230

8. SEoa-1erm boreowings

SU November 2003 50 Novemnber 2002

(1) (2}
Lents tepavable v demand
= o baeths (1) & {20 11 kv 34323 19,36,60,03 1
= tiom rebitted partivs Geter noe 6) 1,29.12,000 1 01.89,497
Haok vvendratt(2) A0, 70,540 -
17.83.27.4%0 06450038
Llee abios e smvonent ingJudes
Suenred borrowss I S 13870 19,56,00 b3 1
Unaecuredd harzowings 12912 ubi 1 U7 59497

1 oans wepas ble on demand rem hanks srcudes

= worhiag cepital deovamd e ob Rs, S0.000,000 {50 Sovember 2012 Rs 155001 k) cirymg mterest @ 10% (30 hovembee 20020 15%0) poa,

= heyers vt sulized of €5, 6R U534 G0 Nevebor 2012 Ry A,000.63 1y carry g wierest gy 1o 30 Soverber 2052 1170 a0 13%3pa
2. Fhe above loan tepasble an demand tron banks 1 made avsilable Agitnst 4 promsssory note ¢f Rs SU000,000 ssued by company w (avonr ol 11514
bark ancta atandby leiter of eredit (YBLUY grantad by B0 Panbas Bank 1%ans out of the oredil Leerhiey prowsded e ONPSOVA Solatons Didi Frince
Hulding bAs




UNINOY A Soluturns bndia Private Limitedd
Mudes bo Bincial statements foe the year cnded 30 Susember 2013
(A asnounns are an Incis fupess unicss atherw e st 8

Y. Onher corrent labilities

ININTRY

30 November 2003 30 Noscinber 202

C L] {Rs.
Vrade pavables getr ot 32 for detatls ol ducs o pue . and sl Loiiprisey} 5 19.35.4%,955 17, 88.04,764
:a Other [ jubilitics
' Carteat pratirites of long-tomt bormow mgs srefin note &y - 1,20.040,00,000
:’ b rabiity o exposes 424,20 ,153 599 31,082
Viatalay lor expetiscs- Relaad fFarn 17.76.60,354 14,5048 041
Averued ciploves coat 1.3533,552 10621020
: [ntweresy averued and dug o harros ngs (£ 25.95,39,4003 2LRLOES L
' Interest secrued Dot st dus o borowangs . EALTAS WL
!3 Advitee trom cudmiers 17,2790 4,794
I Uthers
:! Literesy fres depsit from centraciors 2 14,94 5ir 899,350
L duty puyable 2945053 233,27 804
=3 Ty payable 4,183,087 34 R6, 60T
Custutn duty payatde 1240516 2393 034
: Prov et fund gragable T4 6,32 494
Frotesstenal tay pavable 38200 38150
3 S6M.08.900 LOK.GT.60.922
U tnteaest aierid and due va bortesings wilud.s unpasd debonbire Bucest of Rs, 237,380 204 (30 Noveaber 2012 Rs 2IXA08.514) It Las not been
3 panl for the penid starung December 31,2000 codue Tob 2007 These debentures were comveried min cquiy shares on Fob 8, 2013, reter mne 3,
3 < Depeaiti agmest cateeltable comracts tor s peeod loss i wne e
3

{Space intentionally left blank)
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OMNOVA Salutivas Lindia Private Limiied
Sotes fo Duancial statements for the year eaded 3 Navember 2013
Al wmonns are o Indian Rupees, unless othenses stued

12, “on-vurscat tnvesbinenls

30 NSosenthes 2013

J0 Neyemnbier 2012

(1] {its.)
Nun-trade sy estmcents (aloed af cost andess staded sidierw ise)
Lisvestanent in equity instruments {(umguoted)
247,500 30 Now zmbier 2002 247,5005 eyt shizies of B, 160 cach fully pard-up 24,75 Oihd S I ARULY
w Rarteada Cloan Teeh | amined 3
L3510 November 2003 1,750 cquity shares wr ls 10 cach fully pand-up 17310 17,510
m Bhansh Eavieo Infeastiocare Esuiud
RERLEI] 2481510
“Government and trust securities (unijuuted})
Laveslnent i gos cemuent seaititivs Sadul 30 HI
2518510 23.28.510

Aggregate amount ol yuated mvestiments
Aprpaepike ik al ungaiokad nesbinenls

2525310

23 2H. 510

L. Lennats uend s ssoees

Noa-turredt
3 November 2002 30 Novemboer 2H13

30 Nuiveniber 2003

Currenl
30 Nuvember 2002

(1<} [{IN] {Hs.) (1159
Capital Advances
Unscouzad, eonaidroad good 3,122,679 . .
IRY] A12679 - - -
Seeurity iepasit
Unsecused, vonsicheral gooud 339 LTS LEI30.3U02 Til WHW]
(1) 3300755 24336302 ST
Vihvanees recoverable tn cush o hind
Ulisecureid, comsiderat pood - - 107 119N w1 03,00
[{%] - - LT, 1,008 H1.63.563
Ouher loams il shvinves
Lansesutel, considered good
Aabvancy mcome-tin - - S nnn -
Prepaid eapenses - - oX 95 304 T4 584
Fazans e emplasees(reter aule o) 76245 T 7o L8 14,52 ¥87 10.81,797
VAT tecenable . - - 21 48,30.120 28 Toul S8
'f.la!,-lSH 7.7, 6EN 23,70,75.407 20, 61L%3, 7
Irovision e doubtlal idvanees ER— . 9
{n 702,451 7,70.040 23,70,73.5067 26085770
Lot (AR ECHD) JAY5. 804 201.15.9482 2477864973 042464333

14, | radde receivables

JU Nevember 2003

Ji Novenher 2012

(its) )

Coerenl

etz ing Toe 4 pevidd cxceediog sis moathis Draon the dste they are

due for payment

Uisecuied, consndered guod 335001 290,57

Bhouktii 5997917 287107
63,3221 13,77,943

ifroveston tot doubulnd reeeables A9 07 07 187107

333,004 RRICTTE w11

Other receivubiley

Sewtited, contandurcd pood
Llimseeuiead. comsibercad posil
Doubid

Prav isson Lin danbtial peceis ol s

A1 A Gy g s
[NREIILYS

A% 4,50 55N

308,138

ALOI Y6 H0R 4503 68,476

_Lhewi vt 3308 438

) SLAY963 45, 10.59,538
515340409 4333.50,414

e
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OMNON A Solutions Endia Prisare Limited
Notes 1 financial statements for the year ended 30 Sosember 2013
(ALl 2enouinta e i lndian Rupees. unless othors1,g slatedy

LS dmveoteries (valued at low er of costind net reahzable value)

I Nwveher 2013

30 Nuvember 2012

Raw marenials and compensis (inzlindes m W Ko 15 330, [0,
S Noveber 2002 its, 4.2260,397 refer ke B0
Worh-meprogeess (relor e 200

Firnahud goods (tinciudss in transit s, § 334 119

30 November 20120 Ry, L639,730, (reter note 2ty

Fackmg matizl

Serap

Hi. Casby and bank balances

[113%) {14}
148,533,254 7ALE7 0%
33582404 AU 15375
16,33,30.800 337552 300
23.36. 30 029208
3342125 217150
$1.08.23.70% J5. 40 H2K08

30 November 2013
{Rs.)

30 November 2012
(1Ry.)

Cushe und cush eguin abents
Bt aag ey wath Brgis

~ Ehl Lireul scoouis
Caslion liaad

17, Hevenue N uperations

6 846 393
B, 12

125817 608
1.75 461

fH45.00),522

12,390,330

Resenue from apecatings
Nale of products
Fintbed goods
Gther operating resenue
Serap salus
Gther
Revenue finn opetibons (21055
buss: Eonune dan 8
Hevenue from opetatrons (nety

30 November 2013
{Ra.)

S Nosvember 2012
{1}

2404045615

LGOL 07,298

2 E6,23, 20 13

24295 400

IA2,B2,02411
210525 KB

2883005543
27.24 98157

279737003

L461,0L07.2066

# Exerse duty on saes anowitang to Rs 248525 868 (30 MNovanler 2012 Rs. 222 498,137) has been reduzed frone sales i poolit & loss sccount and
exgise ity on mereise decrease in stnck amounting o Ks. 5 834457 (30 Nosember 2002 (Ra. 15,047,998)) has been comsadered as PSR pense 10

s 24

ety ul prodoets subil

JE November 2013
{Rs.)

JU November 20012
[5SY]

Finished gomls vokl
Bule

Crums

[ JETLIEEN

Fowder

Shevts

LS. CHber income

1.22 13,31 766
£1,08.78 19
3,15 S0,079
14,56,37,612
3196 #1565

1,73,79.09 133
o201 (10195
27,70 104
13,26.28.066
310035 082

20405613

2.86.23.29.943

6 Sovemibaer 2013

Stk November 2012

(1ts.3 iHs.)
{nterest incoame on
Fangz-tenm inseshnets o 716 3,700
ibers 31837 18,42.570
o ok siade o e assets - AN ¥

Foacess prinvisions wrtten bk
Ly i back

Cahser mom-opeatig meomaics of e petises discetly attobatable 1 soch oo ot

Iy L0800 30 Noveaber 2012 Ks 34754370
tutul

3500 B2K

53 52,300

1 22865
502,271
75250

IRTYTNIT

GA.45,162
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ONMNOV A Salutions budis Prisase Lined
Nates W0 finuncisl sticements for the y ear ended W Sovember 2053
CAH wmours ace 1 Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated

9 Cast of raw material and compooents consumel

30 Navemsher 2003

S0 Ninember 2012

[R159] {H)
imventons a1 the beginning ol the year 7-41,87.699 3,25,00,043
Add. Putcieses 1.335.40,19,030 158 30214

L61,08,07.3358 193.24,14,257
s Tisentary st the eand ol Hie yeu §1.48.35.254 TA1LET.659
Cont ol riny merial and conponenis constied 1.49.59,74.101 1.85.82.26.558

Details of s iiuesials aod components consusiod

30 November 23

30 November 2012

K} [{i38]
Actonis - 341930324 34,95.63,553
Tt e 64,25 OY, Ins FO#2,20,37 0600
hHYEEY 2RU4H2093 26 TLGSS
by 222035116 24,53 32,0000
1.49.59,54.101 1AM I6, 550

Details ol inventory

30 Nuvember 200)

JU November 2012

(Is-) (Hs) -
Actolyie 106,78 542 L4373
Butaduie 306,71,282 0,68, 199
Sevtee HL72 A0S T ELEG ETS
Uithicrs 2. 700007 25054891

£1,45.33.234 TALBT.60

2 Ingrease/ (degrease) in iny volories

J0 November 2413

30 November 21T

Inerease / ecrease)

1) 1) [11EN]
v enlosies at the end of the your 3 November 2013
Wark-tprogress 33382 14 407,15 573 IL3LITD

Frushied powdy
Senap

26,33,30,600 23,73,31,360 2579824
25.42,9235 217750 23235173
200450, 14 27.H4,65.891 2R, 298

3k N embrer 2002
{itn.)

JU Nuvember 200
(Hes)

Increase [ {decreuse)
{1ts)

lventories atthe hegoing of ihe 5 em
Warh-m-prog tess
LTI S HTCY RTT B
Nurap

Detaily ol inyenbary

30 November 2012

40715578 228,379 V7888770
237532 360 12,74,23,756 10,76, U8,81U
217750 16,300) 201450
273658401 1307, TU855 13, 70,95.40030
2APLY0. 29N 12704503 (VL6774

Ji Suvember 2013
{1}

30 November 2002
{13n.)

Wirrk-in-parogress
T TR

1 sty

Tubber

b

Finisbied gommls
ale

i

I aten

Mowler

Shvers

33,1710
R ERANIE

SRR ¥ ARIH
3211280

2333807 LR ENAX]
13 60,751 LALusY
JI3424H RN AR

I5,25 65,100
I ER AT
112306
b2, 08,0
20079763

13.43,05,280
pFASWES
11 35,159
11153005
5w o

pIRAMTIN T

23,73.32.304
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EVINOY A Subulinns badiz Private Lumited
Nutes w financil statements Tor the ycar ended 30 Nuvember 2003
LA ansotnts kg §) e Nepess wiles otherwice statad)

21 Fmplosee benehit evpcnse

30 Navember 2013

Jit November 2013

(BN 11s.)
Salunes. wanes and hones BA4D 08112 TR,11.550
Comctbunon w ooy dent e other funds 4501 097 Au,64 083
Gratunty expenss el nole J8) 10,83 360 73,534,602
Cnher gt enzplos et benedits 16 90 36 13,66 804
Statl willare cxpieeses 35,74 504 SiLET 164

22, Depreciadion asd uniortization cxpense

$55,78.200

9,47.60.443

I i ember 2013

Jt Nuvemiber 2012

Diepredtanon on Langible wissts
ARz v ol tanibls wscts

13 Finunee custs,

1K) {Ks.)
3,70035 505 502,351,573
23457346 54,3033
ANIH1I11 i 16.81.707

30 November 2063

JU Nerember 2012

ilts,} (Hs.)
Inierest om dlehentures 2 24 K4.931 12.03,258 J68
Leczest on sleoet e hosson ings 180K+ 180 288,25 09y
Other harmiraang costs F30,9%,124 30254943

3. 38.47.235 1591,73.480

24, Other expenses

30 Nwvember 2013
[{[EN]

J0 Novemnher 2042
(Ry.}

Comumpiinm ol staies and spares
Consumptian of packing sacrial
Sub-contrauting cvpenss

(Encremsedidecre e of exgisg daty an IECIHUTY

Power and roct
Water churges
Frewght unat Jurw arding charges
Rent
Rates and tases- athers
Instatiee
Repuir anh i iansn, e

- Plant and sachinery

= Buwddingss

= bty
Iiszoumis und sules conmnission
Trnceling and conveyance
Lol und proressional fews
Enchase diticrenees (nen
Bad debig
Luss e aale ol tiaed assets ety
Intercsts Onhrs
Bank clarges
Sorage charges
Service charges Grefer note 26)
Miscolluazing eyprensas

Wy ment aanditer

2,55,53, 7510
U782, 767
13722993

53X 54,457
L3543
5205844
LEL25.053
47,1208
8108253
1,217,744

1,23 26,002
YA IR Ry
1,12,50,447
302,490,754
1,12.19,i%0
G4,17.717
1E9, 79,610
FrRL6Tn
11513
4011209
103,194
I 13,782

51517979
[RETETR N
23423202
L3u-T uug
19,37 t:4 505
56,04, E8p
310,28 aus
46,1268
17,40.085
103,19 0.495%

2.6 24 32
07,243 097
33402010

T8 122

LUK 13,438

117,07 830
1299737
1387107

14705051
1,202 4 (14
RRETR R

3,03 51,903 1,994, 15 v6ls
L36 54,805 Y1067
A701.062.073 S84 250020

U November 2003
{Ry.}

33 N ember 2512
(ids)

As duditar
Andn e
Lax audit 1oy

Ramnbursanent ot cipunes

Ry R
1 3u,008
REEIXTHN

36,00 0
1.50 dni
b, 7170

J1S0.u00

4424400
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OMNOY A Sobavions India Private Limned

Notes 1 finanvial statcwents Gor the scar cuded 30 November 2013
(AL Aoty aee in Mdiin Rupess. unless ohiers e statel)

28 rivr peritd expenses

30 Nuveambier 2003

3 N ember 212

(IR (Hs
Fronghe and foraarding charpes bETTATE -
Discounts ed salss conmmission (writizn back ) diareed (11,83.285, 67,10, 190
Chtbier basiosving cisls - 3352228
Serviee charges - ERRVVAT V)
Prior prriod espenses, (nel) {JUAS807) 1.63.62,431

{Space inteationally lefl blank)
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ONINOY A Selutions ladia Urivate Limizcd
Notes to fieancial sttemeaty far the s car eoded 30 Soveniber 2003
M amounts are in Indian Rupees. undess vibuiwise staed)

o) Bakaaees s at year end

Yearended  Luvansand Other current Short termn Frade Payables Lona)
ailyvanees linhiliies bhorrewinas
L Inoaie Holding Company
OMNOVA Sobutions JthNov-1 3 - S0%45,156 - - 51945156
Intermitiionnt 5.8 301! - 14,06 45,051 - - L O0.03,031
UMNOY A Sulutions me S0-Nan-13 - 1410817 - - 140817
S-Nn-12 - - - .
Holding Company =
OMNOVA Selunens India J0-Nav -1 3 3735.64.413 1,19,12.4000 I864.8E,410
France Holding SA8 30-Men-} ! . 13 803,309 1.07,89,497 2492 32800
Felluw Sulnsidarics
CMNOVA Solutin SAs RITBTI R - Y2,57,720 9287724
3-Nmv-12 - 45.42.990 - - A3 43 Gk
Koy mamagement personnel
M Anop K Srivasia g 30-Nam-b 3 - - -
W hale vt Direcior JO-Now -1 B XTI - - . 30, 1M

e} Hemunerativg 1o hey managerisl personacl

L1 YT cm.ln:r .

2013
1Ry

T30 November

2052
{Rs.)

Mr. Degpith Birje

Sabary, VPL EscGratia Poctormance Dicentive and Bonns

Mr o Anup humar Seivastya

Salany NP Lx-Grang, Penormance lseentine and Bonus
Latal

33, 79400

29,09, 40

33,1951

2747704

63,49.200

O0.67.21%

Note: The jimaneration o the e tnanzerial posonel docs i inclid the provisions mads Tor gruity and feane bengtits, m they ane

deteemmed on an el bisis fog e company s i whole

(Spuace witentionally left blank)
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OMNOV A Solubions Jadia Private §ioned

Notes te fingocial statemcnts for the year ended 30 November 2013

LA mvounts wre in Indian Rupecs, onbess othenaie staed)

27, Lirs per shure

Tha totlow ing selicets the Juss anad sha data used mode hosie und difuied Toss per shaie cmmpatstions

3 November 2013
(Rt

JU Nvcmber 2042
[ [N}

Total speratinns (o the scas

| sy wiier b

et lows o caleuduton of bases IS
et loss s above

Adlet - interest on debemures: convernible mo cquity shares et 0l g
et Towa for caloutaton of diuied LPS

Woagined average number of equity shares i caboulsung basic Cits
Werghivd aversps number af cguity shares mcaloulsung dduted BBS

24, Gty

(595.00.237)

14,09 112.759)

{3.95.60.237)

(4.05,02.739)

(593,000 237)

(4,02 02,73%)

(5.95.61,237) {4,05.02,739)
o, Nu,

47 08 631 10,00
G708 630 10,00

The vothipany vperates pratusty plan, wherem every ampluves who has completed at-deast five yeats of sersice gets a grataty on departre at the ratc ol 15
duys o St dravwn sadany for cach complated sear ol servioe, ittty s pasable woall chygible anployees of the Cuimpany on tetiremaal of separabon o

deathy ur penranent desablement wterans of the provisions of tie Paymeat of Gratuty Acl 1972

T foltoswang tabley swannttize the components uf net Bt o sl o the statenent of prodit and less and tie funded stass wd smounts recophleu]

i the bithaee sheet

stadenaent ol prolie cnd buss

Netempborves benelit expense regngnized in the cmphiyee cost

3 November 2083

30 Novesnber 2002

[1159] {Hs,)
LHITCAE SURV I wiist LLSE3UT 9 50K
Tnserest vost un boasfit obligaton 14,460,636 923553
Eapuocied rewnn o plun s (*.27.331) WAL I5S)
Netacueiall gamp/ ass recogiizd o e year {241,052} 6139513
Past service west - -
Het boweli erponse 1G.83.500 73344402

Autual wwhum on phin daswes
Halancre shewt

Henedid wssel! {iability)

Ju Nuvembier 2013

3 November HIE2

[1159] [1LEN]
Peesenl vibue of delined benelit abilgaten (2,13,07.368) (150 34 877)
1aie vitloe of pln wssels 1.18.56.717 1,00 43 047
Plast asset £ (abality ) {96,70.651) (49,091,791

Chipes i the present solsee o the delimed benclit oldigativmire as Tullows:

MY Nuvember 2003

U November 2002

i) (v
Opeait delmed bentit ublipation 1,90_34.576 108 39 163
Cnnreat sers e cist 1451,307 9 K0 841
Bulsrest vust 14,40,636 Y8557
Henetits pand {4.43.521) RALET
Avtuatial (gams) £ lusses on obhigenon 116070 03 Un 352
Clivsmg defed banshit ohiganon 25,6738 L6 34.870

Charmees in the Gair value of plan assers are s follines:

MY Nivember 2013

S0 Nosvemdber 2082

[$i30) 1ts.)
Openenz Lue valun ol plan assets 10045 087 180,06l
Fapettad tetum 9,27 351 T1L135
Contrbutions by cruployer [{URSS RS LEAR T
Tienetits panl 14 53320 {17 083)
Avtianial gatis £ glossesd J0x 1210 Loin 754

Closbtg, Gue value o i sesets

e comnpiney cspects b oot ibuge Bs. LUSO000 Lo prauis i the nest sear (U November 200120 Ba B OB 005

e
Gt 13ONT
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OMNOV L sutubivis Ladia Prtate Loted
Nutes 0 finunciul statcments for the year cuded 30 November 2013
(AN smounis are i badian Rupees, uniess otherwise st sd

24, Gratwity (Cualinued)

‘Uhe major eateguries of plag avaely as o percentaze of the fair salue of totad plag aascis are a8 fulluwa:
L I

Hi Nmember 2013

30 Novenber 2012

v eatments watls aesiergg Jo)a,

100%q

Lhe principal assimptions vsed in determining gratuity benelit oblipntions for the compuny's plans are shuwn helw :

J0 Nuvembier 2013

I Nevember 2012

Inscoen suts G 90%

LRI
13%0 for tirst 2 yeurs
amd B4 thereafter

Expected rate of retum on assets
Funsie salury garease

Emphoy e urnoser 15% fur it ages

§.25%,
9%
13% 1a figst 2 years
zad 54 thereafier

12 ot sounger ages

and reducng 1 240w

older ape

I vaamiales ol future sufy ptorcases conssdered 1 act neral vobaation, ke
suppily und deisand w the caployment marhgt

The vverall eapoied 1 of e on dssets 10 determmied busiad an ihe
ubiigativen s 1o be senled. There s been SR cst change m

i lug e cuiront awd prosions T peninds wre i Jullows

aecount ot milaton, seoiory, momaton and vibes reles lacturs, such ay

market priecs prevaling on that dae, apphicable w the penod ives whach tie
esfrected riite of fetum on assels dus 1y change m e ket seenanio.

3 Minember 20103
R,

Jit Novembicr 2002
[[$8

3t Becember 2441 JE December 210

31 Mecember 2009

Hs. fis. s,

Gratuity

Defurey beaefic abliganon 21567368 LU0 31877 108,39, 163 L5 60718 LERL I
Plust asicts 1L,18,90.717 100,307 82,860,461 7 70971 73,770,466
St phies {delion) W6, 70,631 8201, 790 25,532,712 23,89 747 1422233
U purienee adjustiments o plan BALN inm2 577 10,99 981 1129247 1.1 838
Batnliey

I s penence audjstments un plan 4U5, 121 166,754 (263 4390 (326417

ey

0.1 cases

Uperating lease: CUNERAEY ity [esser

Ihe compuany as entered imta conmmerc il e
Renuwal opoi cansts auby 1o leisses an ofifce premses [here
axcalation clamse of 2000 on lease rentals

and Jepuosits atier 3 yeats 1or ol promses wml dmmmishang clavse 01w cruga 300
e siehleases.

Fuluee munimum rentds payable umbr nan-canceltable s raling letsod are as toliows

ek en olbive promses, T cgumpmens and Vehieles These leases hae an avetape D el thre o e years
we o resticions pliced upon the cimpay by emenmg i these leases here 15 an
conn 1T cquipments There ore

U Nuvembrer 01

it November 2012

(Rs.) (R,
Wtk onc year S0.00,147 67,19, 140
Sber une vear bat ned o than live years L3949 u3) HITRIAe T
Mure than five veurs e 5 R
a 136,100,008 LU LGN

SU Sczment informcatim

i) Segmient intormatiug fur Pritiary eeposting (by business segmenm

St the Comrany bas only ong reportable busingss sapanent ol synihicue rubber, haiee st ior 1)

i} Segenent inturmatinn tor secomlaey sepment tepieting (hy peupgraphical sepment)
Ve Contpany i 1 1eportanke ceographival segments Boed on jucanion of custamers
T Revenae fow v dinmers wotbun e

i Revenie om custeriers oty hindiy

iy Busutess segnkit i nul apphcadile
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OMNOVA Sulntivits Tnlia Privaie Limited

Notes te Rouucial statcments for the year cated 30 Sovember 2013

TAN amounts aee in lidian Rupees, unless athinw < statud

Gensraphical Sepments

The company's secondzpy sepmens are the gespzaptue dhsiabutin of sttvties Revenue and tecenables are speaiticd by locusan uf custoncrs whide the
L ok presaf P

ather goographic wlormation is specified by the focstion of the vsseis. The bl g able shows the daribiuen of the Company s consolidated sales by

grugruphitcat mash et regsndless of wheze the poads were produced.

Sales Kevenne by Geograpliical Markel

30 Nevember 2003 30 Nuvember STYES
(e} (Rs.1

India (duiestic)
Ontside Tadis (eagmta)

2012522014 135 8263930
174,14 B9 21 28 40 2oh
2119337103 26101107206

Total aysety and additions W agible and integible ficed assets by peopraphical area:

The Ellowiaz wable shows e canmving amount of scpmant sssets smd additon T segnient assets by geographival wes mowich wsscts e locuied

Cuerying apount of segment asvets amd sdditinn to fived anscts and intangible
inbaagible asscts issvls

30 Novemsbes 2013 30 Sovember 2002 30 N ember 2003 30 Sosember 26002

[ndia
Quiside Jodia

1.77 4030 393 1.80,61.21 (132 4277242 88,260 637
192 58,584 191,75 887 -

1.7 3244,179 LYISS WL §1,77.242 BE.20.037

I Devivagive isteoments aad ao-hedged fureign curreney cxposure

a) Berivatives ouistanding us at the reporting daty

ITaeticulurs

Nautuee of coniraet

Forward contract w buy D55 300,000H35( Nincmber

{ledzg ol exporcunpant JinciEn coeney vapusties

Iy Barticnlirs of uadieitued Joresgi currency expusire s it the regracting oty

Iarticulars

Amound

rwde Payables

USY 25,043 @) Closing rate of' | $2 Ry 62 92 (30 Novembher 2002 LSS 1 580 022

s 133 K66 (20 Boverbee 20120 Rs 37320571

P 1162 o closing rate of 1 GDE = Rs HE3 43 (30 November 2012 US54y Rs 120133
(30 tenvember 2001 1il)

Advances secaverahle in cshoer

ok ~ Advanes to supplicrs

USS o 801 53 Clising tate o' 1 8= Ks, 62 92 (30 Noveanber 2002 8l
Ry 6,097 011 (30 Novemiier 2012: daly

Shetr Fein Herrowings - Scouted
abl Hnscemed Lo

& 130G o, Ciostg rite of 1 5= Rs B0 08 (HU Nosanber 2012 & 130,000 Rs 1.2 212 000
(30 November 2002, Ks 10,759 300)

1i9% 391,837 i Closing rate o 157 Rs 02 92030 Movember 2082 Dy Rs 37 2058 5p6 (30
Newgmber 20020 KRs. tab

Trade Keeennables - (HS%9)

USS 308 806w Closurg rarg of 1 8= Ra 62 30450 Monember 2002 3566, 917) Rs 19 258 584
(I Mosember 2017 e 20 242 450)

Orther cargent Liabzlibics -Irest
paavable o 1O (HSY-Intcret on
L7, nterest un unpiid Excom

cilarges

Ontlter cagean Lkl < larerest
payable on - Temporary advagce
(Fite =y

NS T2 Y2 45 Clostg rate ot 1 3918 62 92 (30 Navember 2002 US55 070 303y
Ka 16,783,99% (30 Ninember 2012 s 3017.907)

A58 a1 Closing tate of 1E - Ka 86408 {30 Novenher 3017 ¢ 20 3703 84 2 671 40K
130 November 2002 R 2,112,620

Chtlier Cairrent 1 iabilities - On ethead
Clarges Reimbursabte ur Parent-

b ssom charges, Colice &
Fovoonmental Insurwnes. Hank Fees
and WAN Service Charges

198 2030 104 (7 Closing ste of |32 Re 02 92, (50 Novanber 200120 15963 0760)
Fs 128,300,420 (340 November 2002 Rs 108 230 133)

V033 gl Ulosing rete of 1= [, 86 08, 0 Nosembar 202 Ml Rs. 2616229
U Sovember 2tH7: 1 Nily
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ONMNOY A Solutions bisiia Private Liomed
Notes o fimancial stuteaents for the y ear ended 30 Sovember 2013
(Al amuunts are in Indian Rupess. unless atherwise ststed)

32, Details® of duey to micro aand small enterprises us defined under sthe MSMED gt 2006

Wilh the premuolzation of the Micro, Suult aud Modna Enerprises Deselopmueat Act, 2000, the Company 1 required v whntely Micsw, Sinall and
Medimn Supphicrs and pay then interest on o crdue amows wutstasding beyond the specificd petsod irrespective of the s wab the supphess. The
Companty had gircubsted confinmanan ktiers 1o ol Suppliess secking theer staws, Respunse from the suppliers s sull avaited. Inview ol thas, the ability of
interest, if any. cann be reliakly estimated nor the requined discloswes wade. Avcounting in his regard will be currizd out sfier the prowss is completed
aned relisbic estunaie mrade i dus regard, However puagement i ol te opuuon thi labiluy inany case wilt be insignilivam b epasd 1o the supplice
profile. The Company s abie b ot tot e ed wniy claims in tus regand (o any of is supplicrs.

3 November 2013 30 November 2012

- ) (R} {R~.)

the principal amornt g the mterest due thereon ieocimng ubjsod i any supplizr

s ad e eid of cach accounting yeu

« Prinzipal amount due o miceo and smiat coterpiiscs L3150,707 53,538,057

= Interest due ant ubove - c
§31.80,707 H3.58.057

The amoutt of jatcaest pasd by the buyee in s of section (6 of the MSMETL Act 20t along with the - -

amounts of the payment made w ke supplice beyand the appointed day during cocli sccountng year,

The amount of inkerest due and payuble lor the period of dekay In making payment (which have been paid o S

it beyond the uppoitticd day dusing the year) but withset inhding the mitcrest specitivd wider the MSMED

Act o,

The wnount oF mterest acerued ad rensming unpaid at e cad. - -

The amount of furtht inteaest tonainimg due amd payuble vven in the succonding yeurs, until such dai o e

wiien thie isterest duvs sty ahove sre actually pad Lo the sanall suterprise Tz the purgnese ol disallowanc as
a dedicnble expendhiture wnadber section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

* The infurmation ahove iv ay vertificd by the manageiment,

33, Value ol imports calenbated s T Ty

30 November 2003 30 November 2012

[11T9] (1119]

T mascrials o 230645 359 755404701
Cumpatients aied spare pans 431,832 LUGH5 314
Capritab poods greter noie 20) 12, 16,503 -

24.0790,094 KA6H0,015

M. Expenditere in furcign curreney Goecrnul busis)

30 Novewher 2003 30 Suvember 2002

{Ha.} )
Tnctest c A5, 70,608 1,10.36.455
Servace clanpea 306,07 032 3218732
Roprr and mamtewse - Pl anid machinen 701,38 67,786,173
Thacounts amd sahs comiissin MR 14 0ty J4a2
bravehing atd comveyansy 25,3613 1774631
4,75.26.7 14 50377387
35, Lmported and imligenuss riw watesials, contponc ity and spare putts cotsamed
R e ul takal Value “% ol tutad Valoe
OIS i [ILEN] caby i (#s)
SU-Naveld 30 N3 MH-Now-12 JheNov-12
Raw Materils .
Impurted 26 39,4332.260 13 23.77 96,594
T eionsly obrand 74 [RGATEIRR]] 17 1 6204, 900
100 1,450,746, 108 LI 1L95.42,20,558

Spre ety

Lingranad [ 431420 6538213
Lsdigeninidy obbangd Y 5050 730
Hin 3.73,17.4978
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CNNOVA Selutions India Irivate Limiied
Mvates Lo finacisd statements Jor the s ear enaded 38 Sovember 2013
(A0 wmaynty are 10 lnding Ruprees, unless othera e satodd

3o, Uaenings in foreivn currency Geersal Iasis)

3 November 2013 30 Novewber 2002

[1150] (LY
Eapats a F OB Vil 16 74,14 880 .28.11.2606
16,74, 14.85Y 21.28.41.200

37 Delferred Tuxes

JiNovember 2003 30 Novewsber 20102

i Hs. ) iRs.)
Delfered tay liability
Fised wssees: Tnpast of dulferences bassesn 1y deprodniton wid deprecrtionamonzanion charged e Lhe 4.95,3%,2532 340,883,532
fisuizial repioung
Gruss deferred tas labilities (A) 495 36,232 5,40.83352
Detlercd tax asset
Carried Tarward Joss and onadeorbed deprevienon 1207091 14 F125.04, 545
Provisivn fur soubuiul debig i 6l 18,153,637
Provision for graniity EIEFR (Y] 29,171,380
Etfect of expenditiee debiicd tu prodivand Juss accoum r the corrent yeas It allowed for tax purpose w 53,0,703 47,110,182
tedlow g yours
Gross dicferred tisy saels () 13,4He 37,0072 12,18 38,544
Restriciad to deforred s Hubduy 4,45.34,232 3.40.43,152
Netdelerred tan asset S (Habhiliny) - -

The Company fulluns Accounting Staniind (AS-22) " Actoutaing 1or tases o Ineane”, us nolihed by Companies Secounting Standands Rules, 2006 Due
10 fosses, the Company bas delormed tax csser with Less and usabsorbed depreciativn as i major component. However, defeered s woct hus beeo
vittidered ol and bas been recogieed only o ahe extent of dofurred fus Lalahty sioce there 15 oo cony e g ordence which deniistiaces v aual certamy
al'reshization ol such detoroed 1ax asset i the e futie

6. Cupital amil other commitments
= As a1 30 Fuseaher 2003, the company has capual conmutmats ol Ks 9 330,000 (30 November 20012 Rs 1007360 relating to Lot and Machery

« As 30 November 2013, the company hag wnutifised sisenns under | eaer o coedits saued by haak agamst porcise ol tas auderial ol
B T S9L03T (30 Bosemnber 005 Bs 0,863,775,

P conmmntments selutang 1o lesse airangamients, relu pole 29
39, Other compliances
With regard w section 3838 of Fhe Companics Aot 13356 the compam bas oot spgpeanted 2 8l e conpany sectetay Ve boand of directons are m the

Provess of appointing the caompany secreutry oo lull i bises

ik Peevinus year ligures
Presmus year figeres bave been regronped £ e basslied where peeessany o confona w this vear classificaton

A et our repuat f eain dale
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